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Overview

• To find out more about our 
community services and projects 
see page 36 
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COAlRMAN'S FOREWORD 

•1 • 1 

Alice Perkins 
Chairman 

In this second Annual Report since the 
Post Office became en independent business, 
we describe the progress we made in 
the year 2013(14 towards our goal of 
commercial sustainability 

We have taken significant steps forward in four 
important areas 

• Publishing a new strategy through to 2020 
and securing funding from our shareholder, 
Government, through to March 2018 

• Increasing our operating profit (including 
our Network Subsidy Payment) before 
exceptional items 

• Making big strides in transforming our network 

• Working with the people who deliver our 
business and with our external stakeholders 
in new mutual ways to engage them directly in 
how we improve the running of our organisation 
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These achievements were secured in a challenging 
commercial market and we were unable to achieve 
the revenue growth to which we aspired However, 
by improving our efficiency and taking more cost 
out of the business we achieved the increase in 
operating profit before exceptional items set out 
in this report This includes a reduction of the 
losses in our Crown branches 

Our new strategy, Securing the Future (published 
in November 2013), sets out the path we will 
take to achieving commercial sustainability while 
remaining at the heart of communities and further 
developing our digital presence We will continue 
to be a trusted partner, helping our customers 
meet their needs — traditional and new 

The fact that Government has settled our funding 
through to March 2018 is most welcome This 
gives us certainty against which to plan the 
further investment needed to complete our 
transformation of the network and the discipline, 
which we welcome, of reducing our reliance on 
taxpayer subsidies 

The way most people will experience the 
transformation of the Post Office is by going 
into one of our modernised branches We have 
now transformed around 2,000 of our agency 
branches and almost a third of the Crown 
network Over 1,000 branches are now trading 
on a Sunday and we are now open for an 
additional 50,000 hours a week 
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We are also working with our people and 
stakeholders in new mutual ways, with the 
aim of improving engagement, increasing 
focus on customers and becoming an 
organisation that truly listens and learns 
from those with an interest in the business 
We demonstrated this commitment to broad 
engagement by establishing the Post Office 
Advisory Council, chaired by Tim Franklin, 
one of our non-executive directors The Advisory 
Council, which met for the first time in March 
2014, will play an important role by giving 
us the benefit of a cross-section of views, 
skills and experience from the diverse 
communities that have a stake in the 
Post Office in the 21st century 

We also completed work to define our public 
purpose as a business during 2013/14 This 
important work is a further example of mutual 
ways of working the statement was drawn 
up following a comprehensive process of 
consultation and engagement with customers, 
staff, subpostmasters and stakeholders For 
the first time it describes the unique role of the 
Post Office as a commercial business set apart 
by a fundamental role in connecting communities 
and helping them thrive and prosper We will 
continue to embed this purpose across our 
business and mark our progress in future reports 

I would like to thank the Post Office Chief 
Executive, Paula Vennells, her team and all 
the people who work so hard to support the 
business as we continue along the path to 
commercial sustainebility I would also like to 
thank my colleagues on the Board for their 
work in supporting and challenging the Post 
Office as we undergo this period of change 
We were sorry to lose Susannah Storey, our 
first Shareholder Executive representative, 
from the Board and look forward to working 
with her successor, Richard Callard 

We have made good progress in our ambitious 
programme to transform the Post Office We 
know we have a long way to go and the path 
is not linear The many people who care about 
the sustamability of the Post Office can take 
comfort from the steps we have taken so 
far and the increased pace at which we have 
worked We will build on this, drawing on the 
energy and commitment of our people to secure 
the future of the Post Office for the benefit of 
the communities that it serves 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW 

i I 

Paula Vennells 
Chief Executive 

The Post Office is changing, and the benefits 
are becoming more evident 

The 2013/14 financial year saw the number of 
branches we have transformed exceed 2,000, 
delivering longer opening hours and brighter 
retail environments to customers across the 
UK These branches, and our plans to drive the 
transformation to every corner of the business, 
underline to our customers, subpostrr'asters and 
colleagues the commitment of the Post Office to 
remain at the heart of communities, connecting 
people and providing access to key services into 
the future 

Annual RepoKand Rnanccaal staeerienis 2013114 

But the maintenance and development of our 
physical network is just part of how the Post 
Office is developing as a business We have an 
increased presence online and we are investing 
in technology to ensure that we are easier to 
do business with 

Our clear ambition as we make these changes 
is to ensure that we put the customer first every 
time and we are doing this by driving forward 
with our modernisation and becoming a top 
class retailer -fast, flexible a nd with a focus 
on the detail 

None of this is to cloud the reality of what was 
a tough year In an increasingly competitive 
market, our revenue was down by 4 5% with 
particular challenges in the mails market, and 
it is clear that the Post Office must operate with 
greater pace than ever before - and focus even 
more on its customers and commercial realities 
We demonstrated this clear-sighted approach 
in 2013/14 Delivery in our complex change 
programmes was accelerated while we worked 
hard with our partners to tackle the specific 
issues faced in the mails market 

Given this context it is pleasing therefore that 
operating profit before exceptional items 
increased again, up £13 million from last year 
This profit improvement was delivered through 
greater cost control that more than offset the 
decline in revenue At the same time we have 
managed to prioritise investment in the key 
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transformation programmes as we work towards 
future financial sustainabiiity 

In mails, telecoms and Government Services 
we have put in place the fundamentals which 
we believe will allow us to build and open up 
new revenue streams in the future Meanwhile, 
we are fast becoming a challenger brand In the 
financial services market with a widening product 
portfolio that now, significantly, includes a current 
account offer 

The decline in mails revenue was of course 
disappointing but we remain confident that we 
have the right commercial strategy in place and, 
importantly, the right retail mindset to be able 
to reverse this position 

Strategy and funding 
It is also important to reflect that 2013/14 
was a momentous year in relation to our future 
funding The planned £10 million fall in the 
Network Subsidy Payment received from 
Government underlines our increasing core 
strength and ambition to achieve commercial 
sustainability over the course of the next few 
years Meanwhile we were also able to secure 
the funding which will allow the business to 
continue its transformation and announce 
the strategy that will deliver this change 

To have done so while also making substantial 
progress in transforming the agency network 
was an achievement that stood out in 2013/14 
We also took pleasing steps forward towards our 
goal of transforming the Crown branch network, 
those branches which are directly managed by 
the Post Office More than 100 - almost a third 
of the network - were modernised though the 
year while the annual losses were reduced by 
£11 million We are moving rapidly towards our 
goal of financial breakeven in 2015 in this part 
of our network 

Pace and depth 
These are major transformation programmes 
in their own right but they sit within a larger 
portfolio of structured transformation activities 
which include major IT and business development 
programmes I am conscious of the risks and 
complexities of running a number of large 
multi-dimensional programmes in parallel, and 
professional co-ordination structures have been 
established to oversee implementation However, 
I am also aware of the pace and depth of the 
change required to sustain and build this company 
for the future and there is a determination 
within the Post Office to drive change forward 
with confidence and vigour 

As this demonstrates, the modernisation of the 
Post Office reaches far beyond the changes to 
our physical branch infrastructure Investment 
in our mobile website, a Travel Money Card app 
and the next generation of Post & Go automated 
machines are just three examples of how we are 
creating a digital and dynamic Post Office 

We have also invested in a new e-commerce 
platform that will give us the ability to improve 
the quality and ease of use of our online 
products and services This Common Digital 
Platform represents a significant investment 
in our digital future, enabling us to build our 
emerging digital products and services on 
a platform that will grow and flex with our 
changing requirements over the coming years 
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Change can however be difficult and the 
industrial relations landscape proved testing 
in 2013/14 Although we did experience strike 
action, colleagues pulled together to ensure 
that service disruptions were kept to a minimum 
and the critical focus on customer service 
was maintained 

Alongside the work that has gone onto 
transform the way we deliver our business 
to customers the last year has also seen some 
Important developments in the way we work 
as an organisation 

We are committed to the principle of developing 
mutual ways of working This means providing 
the opportunity for all involved in the Post Office 
- whether employees, subpostmasters and their 
employees or wider stakeholders - to share 
responsibility for building the business and 
engaging in a two-way dialogue to get the 
best for our customers 

We launched in 2013/14 a Branch User Forum 
and branch support programme to provide a 
means through which our front line colleagues 
can help shape the way the business works 
More will follow an this track, while the new 
Post Office Advisory Council is bringing us 
crucial expertise and insight, which can only 
benefit our business 

Annual Report and nnancoai s'atemenu 2013 114 
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Core to this work was the unveiling of our public 
purpose as a business We are proud of the 
commitment to communities across the UK, 
which lies at the heart of this The strategy, 
which has been agreed with Government, 
ensures our commitment will be retained 
and enhanced - for eicarnple, by establishing 
a Community Investment Fund to support 
subpostmasters in the last shop in the 
village' and help build their businesses 

We have since published four milestones that 
could point the way towards a mutualised Post 
Office At the heart is the imperative of achieving 
commercial sustainability - the key deliverable 
without which mutualisation would not be 
possible - alongside the work we are undertaking 
to embed our public purpose within the business 
and further build a culture of mutual two-way 
engagement with all our people 

Our work with Go ON UK, meanwhile, highlights 
our commitment to helping make the UK the 
most digitally skilled nation in the world through 
assisting those who need to develop skills to 
succeed online Our On'ine Centre Locator 
signposts local digital training and IT learning 
opportunities to anyone in any of our branches 
who states their home postcode 

liii 
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I would like to thank all those who have worked 
so hard for the Post Office over the past year 
Achieving our aims is not possible without the 
commitment to customers and local communities, 
as demonstrated by those working in branches 
up and down the UK 

In February 2014 the Royal Society for the 
encouragement of Arts, Manufactures and 
Commerce (RSA) issued a report that outlined 
the potential of Post Offices in modern Britain It 
characterised the Post Office in the following way 

'The Post Office is an organisation like no other 
Local Post Offices contribute enormously to the 
life and soul of their communities, are an 
essential vehicle for delivering public services, 
and provide the vital infrastructure that our 
businesses need to prosper' 

Within this Annual Report and Financial 
Statements, this powerful view is shown in a 
number of ways alongside the financial results 
that illustrate the commercial underpinnings 
necessary to support it 

We made significant strides in the transformation 
of the business in 2013114 in testing market 
conditions This has given us the confidence to 
continue to drive the change that will ensure, 
in the future, that the Post Office remains 
vibrant, relevant and secure for the communities 
it serves 
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STRATEGY 
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In November 2013 we launched a strategy 
• Securing the Future - which will see the 
Post Office grow and develop as a retailer 
through to the end of the decade The vision 
set out was backed by Government through 
a further £640 million investment of funding 
over three years to assist us in transforming 
our business 

Securing the Future recognises the challenges 
the Post Office faces and the changes that 
must be made to ensure that the organisation 
Flourishes in the years to come 

The core aim of Securing the Future is to set 
out the steps the business plans to take to 
achieve the over-arching goal of commercial 
sustamabdity This aim is underpinned by four 
clear ambitions 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013/ 14 
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To broaden and increase our market presence 

To maintain our unrivalled physical network 
and expand our digital services 

• To create an organisation and operating 
model that is cost effective, agile and 
customer focused 

• To be an organisation that lives and breathes 
the principles of mutualisation 

The delivery of Securing the Future will build a 
more commercial, customer-focused Post Office 
that remains at the heart of communities, 
with a purpose that shapes all we do We 
will continue to be a trusted partner, helping 
customers, existing and new, meet a new 
generation of requirements 
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Background to the strategy 
The economic downturn has impacted 
margins across the high street 

Our traditional markets are the scenes of 
significant pressures as competitors assert 
their presence 

The volume and margins associated with 
Government Services have reduced and new 
business in this area has not materialised 
as hoped 

To stern the decline in traditional services, the 
Post Office will build on its established position 
as a retailer of financial services and telecoms 
products as well as introducing new services in 
growing markets such as collections and returns 

Our di ferentiator will be services that are 
simple, fair and transparent and provide value 
for money 

Our breadth of offer wil I make our 
propositions compelling to our customers 

We will develop targeted product portfolios 
that attract new customers The development 
of our small business offering will be a key 
focus in the short term 

Securing the Future not only sets the direction of 
the Post Office through to 2020, but anticipates 
us connecting cornrnunities across the UK by 
serving the essential needs of our customers, 
both individuals and small businesses The Post 
Office will remain relevant to society by offering 
products and services that people want and need 
via the medium that is most convenient to them 

IIIIIIII III II III II II III IIIIIIII I II I I II II IIIII II FIII III I I IIII I III IIII I II III III I II FIII IIIIIIIII I III II III IIII ItIriI l IIII IIIIIF I II II II II IIII I IIIIII IIII 

As 

an organ
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ion, 

the 

Post Office is 

unique in its size and reach across the 

UK 

as 

well 

as the trust that customers 

place 

in 

us. We are 

determined to 

continue to serve the UK ' s changing 

needs by connecting communities and 

customers in ever more powerful ways. 
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STRATEGY 

Building our future 
In its 2010 pahcy document, Securing the Post 
Office Network in the Digital Age, Government 
set out an ambition to create the opportunity 
for a mutually owned Post Office 

Significant progress was made towards this 
goal during 2013114 

With the Stakeholder Forum, we developed 
a clear definition of the Post Office's unique 
purpose as a commercial business, a crucial 
pre-requisite ofa successful mutual organisation 

The Stakeholder Forum included representatives 
from the National Federation of Subpostmasters, 
the Communications Workers Union, Consumer 
Futures, the BBC, Mutuo and the British Youth 
Council The Forum commissioned a public 
engagement campaign that ran throughout the 
summer of 2013 We asked our customers, 
colleagues, subpostmasters and the public for 
their views on the purpose of the business 

11111111111111111111111111111 III IIi111ti111111t1111111111111111111i III 11111111111 It 111I11111iiiiii ninill Iron 111111111111111111111111[111111111 
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This saw three key themes emerging trust, 
access and community 

A statement of purpose was then drawn up 
and approved by the Post Office Board in 
March 2014 

'The Post Office is unique a commercial business 
set apart by its public purpose 

'We believe in the importance of connecting 
communities and enhancing the powerful role 
they play in all our lives 

'We will stay true to this commitment by meeting 
customer needs through our unrivalled local 
presence across the UK' 

Work has now begun to embed this throughout 
the business 

We also made significant and successful steps to 
embrace mutual ways of working These include 
enhanced engagement surveys, the establishment 
of a Branch User Forum, and the creation of the 
Post Office Advisory Council 
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Post Office Advisory Council 

The Advisory Council held its first meeting in 
March 2014 following a national campaign to 
recruit members from a range of backgrounds 

The Advisory Council represents a unique mix 
of people and skills from business, charities and 
unions, which will help shape the future of the 
Post Office 

The Advisory Council will play an important role 
in reflecting a cross-section of views, skills and 
experience from the diverse communities that 
make up 21st century Britain It will help the 
Post Office learn from those with an interest 
in the business, enabling it to innovate and 
support the transformation of the business 

The Advisory Council is made up of 24 members 
to allow a broad mix of people and interests 
Members are appointed for a term of four years, 
non-renewable, with the fi rst appointments 
mixed between two, three and four years to 
maintain continuity Meetings will be held three 
times a year 

The Advisory Council will ensure the Post Office 
remains at the heart of communities by providing 
an innovative forum through which ideas can be 
shared and feedback sought 

Milestones to mutualisation 
Steps such as the creation of the Advisory Council 
and the definition of our purpose have established 
a foundation upon which the Post Office and its 
stakeholders can build a strong future In addition, 
we have identified and published four key 
milestones that will need to be met to create 
the opportunity for mutualisation 

Commercial sustainability must be achieved. 
building on the successful delivery of our new 
strategy This will mean developing a business 
with a track record of revenue and profit 
growth and positive cashflow generation, 
which is able to operate wholly independently 

• Linked to this, a clear funding relationship with 
Government will be defined and maintained 
Such funding will be materially lower than 
today and the relationship will need to provide 
the Post Office with improved long-term 
certainty and visibility as to its future 

The Post Office will deliver measurable 
success in embedding its purpose statement 
throughout the business and in meeting the 
standards it sets 

• A culture of mutual engagement will be 
further developed, demonstrated by strong 
performance in key engagement measures 
This will help to encourage new behaviours 
that support a broad commitment across the 
business to mutual ways of working, approaches 
the business is adopting regardless of its 
future ownership model 

The Post Office will work closely with its 
stakeholders to make progress towards these 
milestones, reporting on progress annually 

Annual Report and financial Statements 2013114 
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To find out more about our mall 
services and new innovations 
see page 18 

BUSINESS REVIEW 
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18 Business in detail 

22 Branch network 

26 Customer excellence 

28 Our people 

34 Supporting colleagues and communities 

For more detail on the financial performance 
In the year please seethe Strategic Report 
from page 38 
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BUSINESS IN DETAIL 

nli nnllnnlllnt

((

lliiii Iiillniilllil lit III II Irllllllill 11111 IIIiiiiiilitlliiii till If 1111111 till 11111111 ill 11111116I111111111n fill IIItll it 

£390 mllllon revenue 

2012-2013 £409 million -46% 

+ Over 21,000 Drop & Go priority service customers 

+ UK's largest collections and returns network launched 

The respective markets for mails, retail products (such as packaging 
and collectibles) and lottery are changing rapidly with the growth of 
e-commerce, intensifying competition and increasing customer 
demands for convenience, quality and value 

These pressures increased during 2013/14 
and combined with specific issues, including 
mails pricing changes, reduced National I ottery 
rollovers and the one-off prior year events such 
as the Olympics and Diamond Jubilee, caused 
overall revenues to return to 2011/12 levels 
with Mails revenue declining by £16 million 
and Retail and Lottery sales decreasing by 
£3 million, a fall on the previous year of 4 6% 

Actions were undertaken within the year to 
address these factors and better position the 
Post Office to take advantage of the underlying 
e-commerce-driven market growth in packages 
and parcels 

In the Mails market the Post Office offers a 
nationwide, accessible and trusted network 
providing a full range of Royal Mail products and 
services However, the year in which Royal Mail 
was privatised sawa rapidly changing marketplace 
with growing competition There are increased 
alternatives to Royal Mail postal products, while 
networks of alternative retail locations for 

Annual Report and nnancial Statements 2013 /14 

posting or pick up are growing, particularly 
in more heavily populated urban areas Online 
shoppers also increasingly expect competitive 
prices and convenience when it comes to delivery 

These factors, combined with short-term market 
adjustments to postal pricing changes, created 
tough trading conditions for the Post Office 
Year-on-year revenues fell back and reversed 
the growth of the previous year But despite 
these pressures, the Post Office made significant 
progress in realigning its offer to both meet 
the competitive challenge and harness the 
underlying growth fundamentals within the 
parcels market 

These measures included the development of 
value added services as Drop & Go for small 
business customers, by the year end more than 
21,000 priority services customers were signed 
up with strong future growth projected Working 
closely with Royal Mail, the Post Office has 
expanded its small parcels category It has 
introduced new approaches that enable 
consumers and businesses to post a greater 
range of items through the format delivering 
better value and convenience These changes 
were well received and helped turn around the 
more pronounced volume declines in the first 
half of the year 

In partnership with Royal Mail we also 
announced our Click and Collect initiative in 
May 2013 This allows Post Office branches 
across the network to be used as convenient 
parcel delivery option for online retailers We 
are continuing to extend this service and are 
confident that it targets a growing sector that 
requires the trust, convenience and accessibility 
that Post Offices offer 

Improvements have also been also been made to 
the Post & Go vending estate, thereby improving 
the self-service options available, and improved 
equipment is now being rolled out into our 
larger offices 

Other retail sales include packaging and National 
Lottery products (where the Post Office is one 
of the largest distributors, with 6,000 outlets 
offering the service) Sales were slightly down 
year-on-year, impacted by fewer rollovers 

The modernisation of the Post Office network, 
with longer opening hours, improved retail 
environments and enhanced sales skills, is well 
underway and continues into 2014115 It will 
both ensure the size of the network is maintained 
and enhance capabilities in Mails and Retail, 
thereby meeting the changing needs and 
requirements of consumers and small businesses 
Steps include improving facilities for collecting 
and returning items, greater ease in sending 
mails and packages, and creating the conditions 
for enhanced Retail and Lottery sales 
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£279 million revenue 

2012-2013f281 million -07% 

+ Revenue from Personal Financial Services has increased 
by 152% 

+ Launch of current account 

+ 100 mortgage specialists in branch and 
220 fi nancial specialists 

+ Launch of Payment Services Provider service to SMEs 

The UK savings market is still characterised by ultra-low base rates 
Customer rates continue to decline, resulting in low demand for savings 
products The March 2014 Budget will impact the industry by introducing 
an increased ISA tax-free savings limit, creation of new Pensioner Bonds 
and fundamental changes to the pension annuityrules 

The mortgage market is extremely competitive, 
with very low rates and new intermediaries 
expected Organisations have been focused on 
meeting the regulatory guidelines of the Mortgage 
Market Review The credit card market Is 

consolidating, with outstanding balances declining 
Regulation continues to impact the industry, with 
the European Union proposing to introduce a cap 
on interchange fees for transactions 

Motor insurance regulatory changes and strong 
competition have driven premium reductions in 
the market This is expected to be extended by 
the My Licence launch, which will give insurers 
the ability to check driving records Home 
insurance premiums also dropped over the last 
year, in spite of the severe weather conditions 

This is the environment in which Personal 
Financial Services at the Post Office continue to 
grow as we strive to be a significant challenger 
to the traditional banks and insurers We offer 
products that are simple, fair, transparent, and 
value for money, supported by the widest access 
from the largest retail network in the UK 

We provide a well-established range of savings, 
insurance and lending products in partnership 
with the Bank of Ireland We remain the number 
one provider of travel money and provide a range 
of other services including over-the-counter 
payment services, cash machines and access 
to cash for 95 per cent of UK current account 
debit card holders 

Financial services are vital to our strategy of 
growth and modernisation In the past financial 
year revenue declined slightly to f279 million but 
this masks a transformation in the profile of our 
financial services business Traditional products 
such as bill payment, while important for footfall 
into our branches, are declining in volume but 
we are pleased to have won and retained key 

contracts At the same time revenue from 
Personal Financial Services has increased 
by 152% 

To support our customers, the Post Office 
is broadening the financial services offer 

In 2013/14 we launched a range of current 
account products, these are being trialled in 
110 branches in the east of England and offer 
an inclusive approach to banking We have also 
offered customers the option of discussing 
their mortgage needs in branch through the 
deployment of 100 mortgage specialists across 
the UK We have also entered the Buy-to-Let 
mortgage market In addition to mortgage 
specialists, the Post Office has a further 220 
financial specialists across the UK 

We are increasingly supportng small and medium 
enterprises t5MEs) This past year saw us launch 
a Payment Service Provider platform, which 
allows SMEs to take card, online and mobile 
payments This illustrates our dedication to 
supporting the needs of the business community, 
which remain central to our growth aspirations 

The Post Office is proud to remain the market 
leader in retail foreign exchange and was voted 
by the public as Best Foreign Exchange retailer 
and Best Travel Insurance Provider at the 2013 
British `ravel Awards, for the seventh and eighth 
year respectively 

We have complemented our travel range by 
adding further currencies to our award-winning 
Travel Money Card, which has seen over one 
million loads since it was launched in May 2011 
We have also launched a mobile app that allows 
customers to manage their Travel Money Card 
easily while abroad 
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BUSINESS IN DETAIL 
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6 million revenue 

2012-2013 f164 million -11 0% 

+ Seven year contract signed with HMPO 

+ Growth in driving licence renewals 

Performance in Government Services was impacted by lower margins 
in Driver Vehicle and Licensing Agency (DVLA) services and the decline 
in traditional branch-based services This was offset to a degree by 
higher volumes in the Passport Check & Send service, however, and 
the decrease in revenue was in line with expectations 

The Post Office offers a range of services for 
Government departments, including pensions and 
benefits payments on behalf of the Department 
for Work and Pensions (DWP), Passport Check 
& Send for Her Majesty's Passport Office (HMPO), 
driving-related services for DVLA and photograph 
and fingerprint capture service for UK Visa 
and Immigration 

Revenue from Government Services fell 11% from 
E164 million to ft46 million While revenue from 
Passport Check & Send increased by £2 million, 
revenue from the DVLA decreased by £14 million 
ibis was mainly due to lower fees per transaction 
under a new contract that became effective from 
April 2013 Revenue from the payment of benefits 
through the Post Office Card Account was £6 
million lower, impacted by customer attrition 

The DVLA framework contract for Front Office 
Counter services which we secured in 2012 
helped us win further Government business in 
2013/14 We signed a seven-year contract for 
Passport Check & Send, which is proving very 
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popular with customers Revenue continued to 
grow after joint promotional efforts with HMPO 
and we are working closely with Government to 
develop services to support online applications 

Our Application, Enrolment and Identity (AEI) 
technology is used to support a variety of 
transactions including biometrrc residence permits 
applications and the 10-year renewal of driving 
licences Following a joint marketing campaign 
with the DVLA, which included radio adverts, 
we saw growth in the renewal of 10 year 
driving licence renewal applications 

During the course of the year the Post Office 
and DWP held discussions about the future 
of the Post Office Card Account ahead of 
the current contract expiring in 2015 An 
announcement is expected in the coming 
months, but it is anticipated that access 
to pensions and benefits will continue 
beyond March 2015 across the whole 
Post Office network 

In line with the continued drive to reduce 
Government expenditure, Digital by Default 
will be a key priority in 2014/15 The Cabinet 
Office's Government Digital Service (GD5) is on 
target to deliver 25 exemplar services by 2015 
We believe this will present opportunities to the 
Post Office supporting customers who need to 
establish their identity online or who require 
face-by-face support and may not have the skills 
needed to transact online or who require some 
form of face-by-face guidance 

An exciting development in 2014/15 will be 
the launch of our Identity Assurance service to 
support Government's digital agenda We are 
one of five providers of this service, which will 
enable people to prove their identity safely and 
securely when accessing certain Government 
Services online 
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1 4 million revenue 

2012-2013 £129 million -3 9% 

+ Upgraded physical infrastructure with a transfer 
to a service managed by Fujitsu 

The Post Office is a significant player in the telecoms market with 
around 450,000 customers in HomePhone and Broadband and the 
largest network of mobile top-up terminals in the UK This places 
us in a strong position for future development, although 2013/14 
presented some significant challenges 

Revenue in Telecoms fell 39%. from £129 million 
to £124 million However, we were able to make 
significant progress in building our Infrastructure 
to enable us to grow customer numbers in 
the future 

Our competitive residential phone and broadband 
service is the sixth-largest fixed line telecoms 
provider in the UK We are particularly competitive 
in the Horn ePhone-only market, where we offer 
market leading prices, and recent changes to our 
broadband pricing have enhanced our competitive 
positioning However, the market continues to be 
dominated by the big four telecoms providers 

September 2013 saw the transition of our 
services from BT Wholesale to a managed service 
provided by Fujitsu This was a large project, 
which upgraded our physical infrastructure as well 
as our billing and customer management systems 
There were some difficulties during the transition 
that negatively impacted customer experience but 
Post Office and its partners worked closely to fix 
the Issues 

By making use of the TalkTalk network, the Post 
Office can now provide our customers with access 
to higher speed broadband services The move to 
new billing and customer management systems 
well enable us to deliver innovative solutions to 
meet the changing needs of our customers in 
the future Additionally, it will make us easier 
to do business with through improved customer 
sign-up processes, email platform and better 
self-service options 

The new telecoms infrastructure will allow us to 
develop more innovative propositions including 
offering bespoke products for the SME market, 
an area that is key to the growth agenda of the 
Post Office 

We maintain the largest network of mobile top-up 
terminals in the UK and customers can top-up 
pre-paid mobile phones for the main networks in 
any of our branches or via 1,800 external ATMs, 
2013/14 saw 12 million top-up transactions 
across the Post Office estate 

We have ambitious plans for our telecoms 
business over the next 12 months We are in 
a position to leverage the new infrastructure 
and deliver more compelling propositions in 
HomePhone and Broadband to both SMEs and 
residential customers, and we are excited about 
the opportunityto make a real difference for 
our customers in the mobile market 
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11,696 
Post Office branches 
In our UK network 

Community fund 
announced by Post 
Office to support 
around 3,400 branches 
as part of our new 

strategy 

Of new customers 
visit our new style 
branches outside of 
traditional hours 

We are committed to maintaining a network 
of at least 11,500 branches, ensuring our 
products and services are readily accessible 
across the UK 

We are investing heavily in our physical branches 
with new style main and local branches now 
a feature of high streets Our branches are 
increasingly supported by digital and telephone 
services in line with our ambitions to be a 
multichannel retailer 

Customer service 
The Post Office is creating modern, commercially 
sustainable branches that improve the customer 
experience 

A highlight of 2013114 was the pace at which 
this modernisation programme increased, with 
around 2,000 branches converted so far and 
another 1,200 branches awaiting transformation 

Improved customer service is fundamental to the 
success of new style modernised branches and 
this is being delivered by our subpostmasters 

Longer hours and improved retail environments 
are benefitting millions of customers Over 
50.000 extra opening hours have been created 
each week with an average increase in opening 
hours of 62% On average 9% of customers are 
also visiting new style branches outside of 
traditional hours and customer satisfaction is 
consistently above 95% In addition, more than 
1,000 branches are open on a Sunday, meeting 
the demand for accessible services every day 
of the week 

Average waiting times are just 1 minute and 
33 seconds in the smaller modernised branches 
and 1 minute and 39 seconds in larger ones 

Subpostmasters are also benefitting from more 
efficient ways of working and an increase in 
revenue, both from their Post Office activities 
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and their accompanying retail business Operator 
satisfaction with main and local branches is 
more than 85% 

The transformation of our network has received 
the support of many MPs, with more than 300 
officially opening a new branch in their constituency 
in the past 18 months 

Community focus 
As part of Securing the Future, the Post Office 
announced a £20 million Community Branch 
Fund to support around 3,400 Post Office 
branches that are effectively the 'last shop in 
the village' In addition to providing Post Office 
services, these branches operate the only retail 
outlet In a community 

The fund represents a significant investment into 
these subpostmasters' businesses and their local 
communities These branches will continue as 
they currently operate to ensure our network 
reach is maintained and they will be able to 
access funding to improve their service for 
customers 

Crown transformation programme 
Work to modernise around 300 Crown branches 
the Post Office directly manages - normally 
larger branches in City and town centres - 
continues at pace 

Losses in the Crown network reduced to 
£26 million from £37 million in because of a 
transformation programme that aims to increase 
revenue, enhance customer experience and 
control costs 

A total of 122 branches were modernised during 
2013114 and all branch transformations will be 
complete by the end of 2014 

Customers also have the choice to use new and 
improved self-service facilities at many branches, 
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BRANCH NETWORK CONTINUED 

to post mail, buy stamps and pay for retail 
items, with staff on hand to help when needed 
Growing Financial Services is a key part of 
the Post Office's strategy and many of our 
modernised Crown branches now feature private 
consultation rooms, where customers can talk to 
specialists about our range of financial products 
and services 

Increasing customer service and reducing our 
operating costs is a significant  part of our plans 
to achieve break-ever by 2015 Excellent 
customer service will remain at the forefront, 
however, and future staffing levels will be 
matched to customer needs 

Plans to find retail partners to operate up to 
70 of our Crown branches continued and by 
March 2014, 22 branches had been transferred 
to new stores run by WH Smith and independent 
retailers Reaction from customers and 
colleagues has been extremely positive 

In a small number of locations, we are taking 
the opportunity to relocate branches or 
consolidate services from two branches into 
one location This means we can offer improved 
facilities for customers and reduce property 
costs while ensuring the branches remain 
at the heart of communities 

Industrial action was called by the Communication 
Workers Union (CWU} on a number of occasions 
during 2013/14 in a dispute over pay and the 
future of the Crown network While the Crown 
estate accounts for less than 3% of the Post 
Office network, we regret any inconvenience this 
caused for customers Throughout the dispute, 
many colleagues chose not to go on strike and, 
supported by central staff and managers, the 
vast majority of Crown branches remained open 
as normal The Post Office and CWU agreed to 
intensive talks in December 2013 to find a way 
forward and an agreement was reached in April 
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IT infrastructure 
To meet the evolving needs of our customers 
the Post Office is investing in new capabilities, 
online as well as within branches, and in the 
right skills to support the technology This year 
we have engaged ATOS as our service integrator 
This is a vital part of our modernisation plans, 
to ensure we have the right capabilities, systems 
and processes in place to allow customers to 
access services when and where they want 

Our branch network currently has over 230 
Post & Go machines that allow customers to 
undertake transactions without the need to go 
to a counter During 2014/15 we will roll out 
more than 500 self-service kiosks to some of 
our biggest branches These enable customers 
to access a greater range of services, including 
priority mail services and mobile phone top-ups 

The Post Office has also led the way in payment 
technology and we have installed contactless 
payment terminals across 30,000 counter 
positions This makes the Post Office the biggest 
user of contactless technology in Europe, allowing 
customers to pay for transactions of up to £20 
using contactless cards and smart phones with 
a simple tap of their card or mobile phone 

Over the past year we made further progress 
in making the Post Office a truly integrated 
multichannel business Our digital capability has 
improved significantly and it is now possible to 
make mortgage applications and use financial 
services account management tools online We 
also launched a Post Office Travel Money Card 
mobile app, which was well received, it is the 
first of a number of apps designed to help 
customers navigate our product offerings 
more easily 

The recently launched Post Office mobile website 
has received more than 2 5 million hits, proving 
that our customers are keen to interact with the 
business across a range of channels We have 
also invested in a new e-commerce platform 
that will give us the ability to improve the 
quality and ease of use of our online products 
and services 
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CASE STUDY/CROWN BRANCH 

Belfast City Post Office branch 

What's changed? 

• Open plan counters 
Three private consultation rooms where 
customers can discuss financial services 

• Self-service kiosks, with staff on hand 
to help 

Customer feedback 

r, I've always avoided self-service in shops and 
supermarkets but I tried using the machines 
at the Belfast branch and I was really 
impressed The first time I used them, 
a member of staff was on hand to walk 
me through the process and guided me every 
step of the way I regularly post items abroad 
so this is great for me — it's easy and it saves 
a lot of time Now, if there's a kiosk free, 
I'll use it rather than the counterirr 

Richard Post on the new sell-service kiosks 

CASE STUDY/CROWN BRANCH 

Merthyr Tydfil Post Office branch 

What's changed? 

Private consultation room where 
customers can discuss financial services 
Dedicated travel services counter 
Welcome point where host meets 
and greets customers 

Colleague feedback 

"It's much more welcoming How a Post 
Office looks can really affect a customer's 
experience We really needed a refresh 
and it has already made us more 
proactive as a team We're delighted 
with the transformation +r 
Customer Service Consultant 
Tracy Hagerty 

It It's given us a more positive outlook 
It feels like a 21st century design that is as 
professional as any of the banks we compete 
with Our front office has completely changed 
and the impact was immediate for everyone 
who works here IF 

Customer Service Consultant 
Leanne John 
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Our brand 
Voted one of the 3 
most trusted brands 
in the UK 

90 
Customer //satisfaction 
For branch customers 
that have used Drop & 
Go or Post & Go 

r 

Unique visitors 
To our website in 
2013-14, a year on 
year growth of 17% 

Listening to customers is vital to improving 
the service we offer New ways of doing 
this include 

• A 3,500-strong customer panel, which gives 
us the ability to get the views of customers 
in a matter of days 

• The Voice of the Customer, which allows 
customers to tell us how we did today in 
nearly 3,000 branches The programme has 
already provided more than 130,000 customer 
responses, enabling branches to make 
immediate customer service changes as well 
as identifying themes across the network We 
also received more than 800 'wows' every 
week, a "wow' is where customers take the 
opportunity to praise outstanding service 

Our website now gathers equivalent customer 
feedback Feedback on our call centres will be 
added during 2014115 

We completed extensive research with 
customers, colleagues and other stakeholders 
to form the Post Office public purpose 

• The Post Office Advisory Council, which 
provides regular customer input on the 
future of the Post Office 
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Listening to customers has told us that 
being easier to do business with is the 
most important improvement we can make 
For customers this means 

Extending opening hours 

Making it easier to send parcels 

• Simpler purchase processes 

Being able to do more on self-service 
machines 

These informed our customer priorities in 
2013/14 and continue, in the current year 

Over the past year we made great strides in 
moving towards becoming a truly multichannel 
business Ourwebsite had 399 million unique 
visitors in 2013114, a year-on-year increase of 
17%, over 2 5 million visits have been made to 
our mobile website since its launch in December 
2013, and over six million people contacted the 
Past Office via our telephone contact centres 

We are developing functionality across the 
business that ensures we remain relevant to 
customers' lives For example, it is now possible 
to book appointments online to see a mortgage 
specialist in branch, for SMEs to use Drop & Go 
as a convenient way to post mail and parcels, 
and to use self-service kiosks at a number of 
branches Branch customer satisfaction rises 
to 90% for those that have used Drop & Go or 
Post & Go compared with an overall branch 
satisfaction of 87% 
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Last year we made good progress by reducing • source -voice of the 

waiting times the average time a customer Customer 11 456 responses 

waited in any branch before being served fell by 
in December 

10 seconds to 2 minutes 50 seconds and 82 1% Source -Stamp Shop 

of customers were served within 5 minutes, an evaluailun-215custosnen 

improvement of 1 4 percentage points on the 
previous year, 87% of customers told us the wait 
time was acceptable Moreover, in modernised 
branches average waiting times are just 1 
minute and 33 seconds in local branches and 
1 minute and 39 seconds in main branches 

This focus on the customer's experience was 
particularly important in the busy period leading 
up to Christmas We deployed extra colleagues in 
our busiest branches, introduced longer opening 
hours, launched a Christmas help hub on our 
website and opened eight pop-up Christmas 
Stamp Shops in busy retail locations, which 
allowed customers to buy personalised stamps 

95% of visitors to the pop-up Post Office had 
a positive experience and 81% agreed that the 
Christmas Stamp Shop made buying stamps fun 
and enjoyable" 
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Listening to customers has told us that 
being easier to do business with is the 
improvement that is most important 
to them. 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 20131 14 

9 



POL00026716 
POL00026716 

OUR PEOPLE 

i w I1&.(.) Iii iit r .': 

INTRODUCTION 

Engaging with our people 

Having engaged teams s important to the 
Post Office and is essential to the growth of any 
commercial organisation To meet the aims in our 
strategy we need all of our colleagues to deliver 
on the promises that we make to customers, 
communities, our partners and to Government 
We value the opinions and ideas of our colleagues 
Our annual employee engagement survey helps 
us to gather views, to listen to our people and 
to take action to make improvements It is a key 
lever in supporting the shift that we need to 
make to more mutual ways of working This 
year we have partnered with Hay Group as an 
independent research agency for our annual 
survey We have also introduced an interim Pulse 
survey, recognising the importance of monitoring 
engagement levels and gathering the views of 
our people more regularly 

Our overall engagement increased from 55% 
to 57% Loyalty remains high with 74% of 
employees saying they would like to still be in 
the business in two years time Our people are 
also proud of Post Office products and services 
with over three quarters (78%) willing to 
recommend them to friends and family and 
84% saying they understand what customers 
want from. Post Office 
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While these figures are encouraging, we 
recognise that the significant transformation 
Post Office is going through may have an impact 
on the way people feel We will be working hard 
over the next 12 months to listen to and engage 
with our people to address the key findings 

This year also saw the introduction of the 
Branch User Forum This group is made up of 
subpostmasters and Crown branch colleagues, 
giving them the opportunity to contribute to the 
direction of the business The Forum means we 
are in a better position to get things right first 
time, for our people and our customers 

This year we also conducted an engagement 
survey with subpostmasters We recognise that 
we need to have high levels of engagement 
across the whole organisation for us to deliver 
our long-term strategy and to meet customer 
needs It helped us to understand subpostmaster 
advocacy in relation to the Post Office brand, 
support the business strategy and to get a 
better understanding of engagement, particularly 
in relation to how we could improve the business 
in ways that have a clear commercial benefit 
One of the core measures showed that 
subpostmasters see the Post Office as important 
for the future growth of their wider business 
(85% positive) 

We will be rolling out similar feedback surveys 
with our subpostmasters in 2014/15 

ti 
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Our recent work with the National Federation 
of Subpostmasters in developing our current 
proposals for the network transformation 
programme has been a great example of where 
better engagement has resulted in a better 
outcome Through sharing, trusting and 
recognising that a stakeholder can add real value 
to the business, together we have helped secure 
an approach to developing our network which, 
hacked by additional Government funding, has 
ensured that many more subpostmasters can 
take advantage of investment in the network 

We have also initiated a programme looking 
at the training and support we provide to our 
subpostmasters The purpose of this is to review 
every touch point with our subpostmasters 
and ensure we provide the right tools and 
information ensuring a positive experience for 
our customers We have listened to and taken 
feedback from our people in our agency branch 
network and will continue to do so into next year 
as the programme progresses 

Investing In capability 
We are committed to supporting the 
development of our people right across the 
organisation and have continued to look at 
how we do this in new and innovative ways 
We recognise that to improve the performance 
of our business while changing the way we do 
things, we need to build our leadership capability 
We therefore launched a development programme 
for senior leaders that builds commercial acumen 
and develops a collaborative approach to leading 
the business 

The Crown Leadership Development Programme 
has also been introduced to help our Crown 
managers deliver a strong retail offer and 
enhanced customer experience So far more 
than 300 managers have Joined the scheme 
In addition we have introduced a number of 
workshops for line managers to drive and 
enhance performance in their teams 

We have also designed specific development 
programmes for our Commercial and Financial 
Services teams Our people's ability to develop 
relationships with key clients and ensure we 
comply with our responsibilities 

CASE STUDY 

Ismail Loonat 
Subpostmaster, Batley, Yorkshire, and 
Post Office Advisory Council member 

Ismail has been a subpostrnaster for 20 
years He's been running his Post Office 
branch in Batley for 10 years and Ismail is 
heavily involved in the community, using the 
office for community events Including as a 
classroom for local children at the weekend 

"I've seen many changes over the years and 
always try to adapt and develop a long-term 
strategy for my business I'm working on my 
strategy for 2020 at the moment 

"Batley is a really diverse community, and I try 
to do lots of networking so people know who 
we are and what they can use the Post Office 
for We use the office as a focal point for the 
community, which encourages people to come 
and helps develop the business 

'When I saw the advert for the Post Office 
Advisory Council it sounded like the type of 
thing I already do locally I have a real passion 
for the Post Office and the community, so by 
working with the Advisory Council we have an 
opportunity to share ideas and develop the 
whole of the Post Office 

"This is a really exciting chance to build on the 
experience we have across the whole of the 
business and use customer insight to generate 
new ideas " 
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OUR PEOPLE 

CASE STUDY 

Beverley Meier 
Acting Branch Manager, Horsham, 
West Sussex 

Beverley joined the Post Office 14 years ago, 
working in a small village branch, before 
moving to the Crown network Beverley 
became Horsham's Acting Branch Manager 
and started the Crown Leadership 
Excellence programme last year 

The programme has been really interesting 
I've worked on the counter for a number 
of years but the programme has really 
challenged me to think differently, to think 
like a retailer 

"I've learnt some really practical things 
For example, I now have a much better 
understanding of my profit and loss 
account and how I can personally affect 
the performance of the business It's also 
changed the way I support my team 

'i think the programme is making me a 
better manager and I want to continue to 
progress I also want to use what I've learnt 
to support the development of others " 
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®The programme has really challenged 
me to think differently, to think like 
a retailer. 
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This year saw the introduction of the Mains 
Live conferences, where subpostmasters came 
together to talk about how we can grow the 
business The sessions have focused on providing 
additional support to subpostmasters, the 
development of colleagues in branches and 
driving customer excellence The conferences 
have been well received with plans for further 
roll out in 2014115 

In addition, we have refreshed our Post Office 
behaviours across the business, creating the 
benchmark for the way we will behave with 
our customers and each other Aligning our 
behaviours with the strategic direction of the 
business will playa fundamental part in 
delivering our strategy and demonstrating 
mutual ways of working 

Following on from the success of 2013/14's 
management trainee scheme and pilot 
apprenticeship scheme in the Human Resources 
Service Centre, in 2014/15 we will welcome our 
first graduate intake Seven graduates will join 
the business on two schemes General 
Management and Finance 

Diversity 
The Post Office has an overall strategic 
aim to build an inclusive organisation that is 
representative of, and understands, its diverse 
customer needs 

We aim to be easy to do business with while 
creating an inclusive culture that attracts, 
develops and retains talent from the widest 
available pool 

We are proud of the progress we have made 
in relation to gender equality Currently, 511% 
of our non-managerial roles are female and 
last year we saw a 1 4% increase in female 
representation at fi rst line managerial level 
Our Chairman and Chief Executive are women 
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Last year we signed up as a member to 
Government's Think, Act, Report initiative 
Since then we have 

Established a representative Diversity Forum 

Launched an Unconscious Bias training 
programme that has been completed by 
over 80 managers, including the Executive 
Committee 

Launched a Women in Leadership Programme 
that profiles female role models and provides 
networking opportunities 

Launched a Female Mentoring scheme that 
enabled 40 senior manager role models to 
support other women 

Taking positive action in this way has led to an 
8 1% increase in black, minority and ethnic (BME) 
appointments and a 12 7% increase in female 
appointments at sensor levels This is a great 
start but we recognise there is more we can do 

Of our subpostmasters, 40% are female, whereas 
Just 29% of entrepreneurs in the UK are female 
We are equally proud of our BME representation, 
with 28 6% of subpostmasters from black, minority 
and ethnic backgrounds, against a UK average 
of 1131% 

Helping youth get work experience 
For the second year running we have offered 
paid work experience over the Christmas period, 
with 42 young people under the age of 24 

carrying out eight weeks' work experience in 
Crown branches in London Since then, 10 
individuals have been offered permanent 
employment with the business 

CASE STUDY 

Bethany Hurst 
Apprentice, HR Service Centre, Bolton 

Bethany joined the Post Office in October 
2012 '1 was in college at the time and 
decided university wasn't for me, so I 
started looking for an apprenticeship and 
saw the Post Office advertised The variety 
of moving around in the different teams 
in HR really appealed to me 

"This was my first proper lab, so it was a 
bit scary coming into the Centre, but people 
were really friendly and genuinely interested 
in me and made me feel valued I wasn't just 
taken on and forgotten about" 

Beth has now worked in each product 
team within the HR Service Centre and has 
recently picked up a role in the Pay team 

"I'm really happy working in the Pay team 
and want to stay with the Post Office long 
term I'd like to get my payroll qualification 
next and move into management in 
the future" 

Bethany has been nominated by her 
external NVQ assessor for the National 
Apprentice of the year award 
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"People were really friendly and 
genuinely interested in me and 
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OUR PEOPLE 

CASE STUDY 

Katherine Mearman 
Senior Manager, Commercial 

Katherine works as part of the marketing 
team in London and has previously worked 
for Orange and American Express 

"Being part of the Post Office meant I had 
the opportunity to take a leading role in 
developing and growing a brand It was a real 
chance to shape the future of the business' 

Katherine is part of our Women in 
Leadership programme and was recently 
nominated for a Chartered Institute of 
Marketing 'Women in Marketing' award 

f' ! 
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Safety, health and wellbeing 
The Post Office intends to make healthy and 
safe working a way of life 

We continue to support and encourage 
colleagues and unions to get involved by 
providing free health checks, so far more 
than 3,600 people have had one, or 46% of 
employees The scheme also provides access 
to an online wellbeing zone that allows them to 
track progress on improving health and welfare 
During 2014 we will use anonymous data from 
the health checks to build bespoke support 
for staff 

Last year was the fourth running that workplace 
accidents were reduced, by 11% We also saw a 
significant reduction in the seriousness of those 
accidents, which was reflected in a further 
reduction of accidents that resulted in absence 
(30%), coupled with a reduction in the length 
of absences (5496) There is still more to do, but 
the figures represent a significant improvement 
on 2012/13 

Looking ahead 
Diversity, talent and engagement will continue 
to be a key focus and play an integral part w1 

securing the future of the Post Office Developing 
mutual ways of working, investing in the capability 
of our people and putting the customer first will 
ensure we have a commercially sustainable 
business with a public purpose 
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CASE STUDY 

Rita Patel 
Subpostmaster, Royal Wootton Bassett, 
Wiltshire 

The Community Enterprise Fund was 
introduced to encourage ideas that support 
the community, including mentoring for 
business start-ups, digital access and training 

Rita came up with WithiT, a drop•in class 
(or residents where they are taught how 
to use tablet devices which was backed by 
the Fund 

"I thought it'd be a brilliant idea to bring the 
community together and I know many of my 
customers have been keen to learn how to 
use tablets 

"The launch took place at the local library 
and the turnout was fantastic 39 people 
registered to attend regular classes and many 
more have dropped into the branch since I 
want to create a community hub where they 
can make friends and learn something new 
that they can then share 

"The Community Enterprise Fund is a 
fantastic idea" 

CASE STUDY 

Gary Shorland 
Mortgage Specialist, St Albans, 
Hertfordshire 

Gary joined the Post Office in 2010 
as a Financial Specialist and was one 
of a team of seven who worked on the 
Post Office mortgage trial 

"I'd worked in the banking sector previously so 
when I saw the role in Post Office advertised 
and started to do some research into the 
products and services. I was really surprised 
by the scale of the product offering There 
was obviously a lot of potential to grow 

"I'm really encouraged by the way things are 
going The branch refurbishment will make us 
more modern, exciting and professional and 
will encourage more customers to come in 
A key part for customers is that they can 
come into a branch and speak to you 
face-to-face That's so important when 
making big financial decisions" 
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SUPPORTING COLLEAGUES AND COMMUNITIES 

Accessibility 
The Post Office has long recognised the diverse 
nature of the communities and the customers 
we serve We aim to have one of the most 
accessible branch networks in the country and to 
assist we provide subpostmasters with matched 
funding to help finance branch improvements 

We also make sure all employees are aware of 
their obligations under the Equality Act 2010 
and that they understand the benefits of 
adopting a positive approach towards meeting 
the needs of disabled customers 

The Post Office is also aware that not all 
disabilities are necessarily visible or physical, 
and we train employees to make adjustments 
where needed to assist customers 

And for those occasions when things do not go 
to plan, we have a customer complaint system 
that it is easy to use 

Environment and sustainability 

The Post Office is committed to minimising 
any adverse environmental impact 

Our targets for 2013114 included 

• 3% reduction in building energy use 

• 3% reduction in CO, from vehicle fuel 

• 3% reduction in water use 

• 70% of all waste generated to be recycled 

All these targets were exceeded and we have 
set challenging goals for the current year 

Annual Report and Hnanc>ai Statements 2013! 14 

Buildings 

A large percentage of Post Office buildings now 
have low-energy lighting and low-water usage 
utilities, while all fixtures and fittings are now 
obtained, where possible, from sustainable 
sources or from materials that can easily be 
reused or recycled 

Under the Network and Crown transformation 
programmes, buildings must meet these 
sustainability standards as well as complying 
with accessibility legislation 

Vehicles 
By Spring 2014, 57% of our operational fleet 
of 416 cash-in-transit vehicles met the current 
Euro 5 emissions standard, with 55% of our fleet 
incorporating exhaust gas reduction systems 
Post Office Supply Chain over the past year has 
achieved between 3 B-4 1Kg of CO, per drop 

Waste 

Most of our buildings are now participating 
in the Dry Mixed Recycling scheme where-
everything that can be recycled is segregated 
into separate bins or bags This is a key initiative 
to reduce the dependence of the Post Office on 
sending waste to landfill as it is both expensive 
and environmentally unsustainable 



POL00026716 
POL00026716 

35 

BBC Children in Need 
In 2013/14 the Post Office continued its 
long-running association with BBC Children 
in Need We played a key role, raising over £1 
million and in the process became the charity's 
largest corporate partner Thousands ran a 
number of activities including the BearFaced 
campaign where exclusive paw print tattoos 
were available to buy across the network 

Supporting other charities and appeals 
The Post Office has supported a number 
of appeals during 2013/14, including the 
Philippines Typhoon Appeal and The Prince's 
Countryside Fund in its efforts to support rural 
communities devastated by flooding in the south 
west of England 

In conjunction with our IT service provider, CSC, 
the Post Office donated more than 200 PCs 
and a similar number of mobile phones to the 
Malaika Kids The computers help the chanty 
support a school for orphaned children in 
Tanzania, giving them the opportunity to 
learn in a sate environment 

Your Charity 
The Post Office is proud to encourage the 
support of charitable causes In 2013/14 we 
launched Your Charity, which enables teams 
in Crown branches, central support and cash 
centres to back local causes We also support 
fundraising efforts with A Helping Hand This 
provides matched funding of up to f200 per 
application Your Charity and A Helping Hand 
will be extended to agency branches in 2014/15 

Digital inclusion 

As the world becomes increasingly digital, it is 
important to support the 11 million people in the 
UK who lack basic online skills, many of whom 
are our customers As a founder member of Go 
ON UK the Post Office is committed to tackling 
digital exclusion 

Together with Tinder Foundation and other 
partners, the Post Office launched the national 
database Get Connected in branches in June 
2013 Every branch can now help customers find 
their five nearest learning centres and libraries 
for online training and internet access So far 
this tool has had over 13,200 searches at over 
5,000 Post Office branches 
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SUPPORTING COLLEAGUES AND COMMUNITIES 

The Post Office has also continued to be an 
active partner of Go ON UK and was an integral 
part of the Go ON North East, a six month 
campaign to drive up digital skill levels in the 
north east of England The campaign launch in 
October 2013 saw Post Office branches amplify 
the Get Connected campaign, signposting 
customers to local help A number of branches 
in the region ran free internet taster sessions 
to reach out to those who need support Similar 
campaigns will launch in Northern Ireland and 
the north west of England during 2014/15 

Community Enterprise Fund 

We have always been clear in our aim of 
supporting community initiatives and in 2013114 
the Post Office joined forces with the Department 
for Communities and Local Government to launch 
the Community Enterprise Fund The £200,000 
scheme invited bids from branches with 
innovative ideas to support the local community 
or small businesses in the area Of those that 
applied, 25 received grants of up to £10,000 
each to implement their not-for-profit ideas 

The successful bids included those that sought 
to tackle isolation, improve digital exclusion and 
provide a hub for the local community to use 
The Cabinet Office also supported the Community 
Enterprise Fund by awarding grants tothree 
Post Office branches that were working to 
relieve isolation 

Royal Society of Arts (RSA) report 
In February 2014 the RSA published Making 
the Connection, a report that looked at the 
many ways Post Office branches are becoming 
community enterprise hubs and experimenting 
with new business models to support communities 
and generate income It found that a number of 
subpostmasters, especially those that had won 
grants from the Community Enterprise Fund, 
were already trialling new products and services 
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Business in the Community 
The Post Office has continued its work with 
Business in the Community We have partnered 
with three of the 27 Government-backed Town 
Teams to help regenerate high streets in 
Brighton, Stockton-On-Tees and Sydenharn, 
and are helping them plan for a thriving future 
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British Forces Post Office (BFPO) 

BFPO as part of the Defence Equipment and 
Support organisation of the Ministry of Defence 
(MOD) is responsible for providing an effective and 
efficient postal and courier service, in order to 
sustain the fighting power of members of the UK 
Armed Forces and other entitled users worldwide 

To enable access to these and other relevant 
postal services, cash withdrawals, bill payments 
and other Post Office services for those serving 
abroad, the MOD currently manages a network of 
27 BFPOs across the world, which sell a restricted 
but similar range of products to those available in 
UK Post Office branches averaging 4500 - 5000 
transactions per week across the network 

BFPO trainers attend Post Office training courses 
and in addition they train their own staff as part 
of their employment group upgrading courses 
To assist this process from a continuation aspect 
they also have 13 training sites 

British Postal Museum & Archive (BPMA) 
Caring for the visual, written and physical 
records from almost 400 years of innovation 
and service, The British Postal Museum & 
Archive (BPMA) has worked to increase access 
to the world-class archive and museum 
collections of the former National Postal 
Museum since 2004 

Post Office is committed to the BPMA's vision 
to open a new, national museum for social and 
communications history in Central London in 
2016 The Postal Museum will open up collections 
from King Charles Ito the present day, telling 
the important story of the postal service's vital 
role in shaping our country As well as engaging 
in this fascinating history, visitors to the museum 
will also be able to take a ride on a section of 
the Old Post Office Underground Railway - Mail 
Rail - for the first time in its 100 year history 

In 2013/14 the BPMA achieved 

• Planning permission for Mail Rail 

Match funding for a second round application 
to the Heritage Lottery Fund for £4 Sm 

• Unprecedented media coverage in local, 
national and international press, including BBC 
Breakfast, The Daily Telegraph and Sky News 

Cross-party support through an Adjournment 
Debate in Parliament tabled by Emily Thornberry, 
MP for Islington South and Finsbury, with a 
response from Rt Hon Michael Fallon MP, 
Minister of State for Business 

Support from a number of public figures 
including popular historian and TV presenter 
Dan Snow, television news presenter Nicholas 
Owen and Mayor of London, Boris Johnson 

Along with Royal Mail Group, Post Office has 
confirmed long-term funding arrangements 
with the BPMA, providing 25 years of security 
for its public services 

As a key stakeholder in the BPMA, Post Office 
continues to support the activity of the BPMA 
and its plans for The Postal Museum, and has 
worked closely with the BPMA on a number of 
individual projects over the course of 2013/14 
This has primarily focused on the First World 
War Centenary and includes a touring version 
of the BPMA's successful Last Post Exhibition, 
which looks at the role of the Post Office during 
the conflict The Post Office sponsored version 
of this exhibition, launched in June 2014, will 
be displayed in various Crown Post Offices 
across the country 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

w r s w 

Profit and Loss Summary 

2014 2013 Variance Variance 
fm Em Ern % 

Turnover 979 1,024 (45) (4 4) 

Network Subsidy 
Payment 200 210 (10) (4 8) 

Revenue 1,179 1,234 (55) (4 5) 

People costs (255) (259) 4 1 5 

Other operating 
costs (850) (913) 63 69 

Total costs (1,105) (1,172) 67 5 7 

Share of profit 
from joint 
ventures and 
associates 33 32 1 31 

Operating 
Chris Day profit before 
Chief Financial Officer exceptional 

items 107 94 13 13 8 

SUMMARY RESULTS 
111111111 h iiiii iiiiiiiiII I III IIIIIri1I11111111 IIIIIIIIIIIIII h u h 111111111111 III Ill III IIII IIIIIiI11111h hill iili1111111H111IIIIIiI riIIFIII111111ii Revenue 
The Post Office has faced a challenging year with The Post Office's revenue decreased by £55 

decreases in turnover in each of the core product million (4 5%) to £1,179 million including a 

Despite this and aplanned reduction of £10 
Paymentse 0 million in t the Network Subsidy 

pillars p fromPayment  Government The Post Office 
million in the Network Subsidy Payment, operating segments income into four pillars Mails and 

cost savings have resulted in the operating profit Retail, Financial Services, Government Services, 
and Telecoms The pillars and their performance 

before exceptional items increasing by £13 million aredetailed below 

to £107 million The costs of transformational 2014 2013 Variance Variance 
change in the year were significant as the network  Em Em sm % 

modernisation accelerated Mails&Retail 390 409 (19) (46) 

Financial 

Key Financial Performance Indicators Services 279 281 (2) (0 7) 

Government 
2014 2013 variance variance Services 146 164 (18) (110) 

Em Em Em % 

Turnover 979 1,024 (45) (4 4) Telecoms 124 129 (5) (3 9) 

Operating profit Other income  40 41 (1) (24) 

before exceptional Turnover 979 1,024 (45) (4 4) 
items 107 94 13 13 8 

Network 
Operating loss Subsidy 
before depreciation. Payment 200 210 (10) (4 8) 
amortisation, 
exceptional items Revenue 1,179 1,234 (55) (4 5) 
and Network 
Subsidy Payment (93) (116) 23 198 

Net cashflow (283) 151 (434) 
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Government Services 

Mails and Retail 
The Mails and Retail pillar includes all the 
services provided for Royal Mail and Parcelforce 
It also includes Lottery and retail services such 
as sales of collectibles as well as packaging 
and stationery 

Mails and Retail revenue of £390 million 
decreased by £19 million (2013 £409 million) 
Of this, turnover in relation to Royal Mail 
products decreased by £16 million, driven 
primarily by a reduction in consumer parcel 
volumes and lower stamp sales In addition, 
retail turnover decreased by £2 million due 
to the one-off increase in the prior year for 
collectibles relating to the Diamond Jubilee 
and the Olympics memorabilia Revenue from 
sales of Lottery tickets declined marginally 
by £1 million 

Financial Services 
The Financial Services pillar includes Post Office 
branded personal financial services products, 
ATMs and travel services as well as traditional 
services such as bill payment and over-the-
counter banking transactions 

Across Financial Services in aggregate, revenue 
decreased in 2014 by f2 million to f279 million 
(2013 £281 million) 

Personal Financial Services revenue increased 
by £15 million (15 2%) driven by strong growth 
in savings commissions (particularly Growth 
Bonds, Reward Saver and ISAs), insurance 
and new mortgage products Revenue from 
traditional financial services products, indudrng 
bill payment services, business banking services 
and Postal Orders, declined This was due to 
the increasing shift from paper-based to 
electronically-delivered products and the 
increasing use of alternative payment methods 
In addition, the cessation of the Department of 
work and Pensions contract for cash cheques 
(Green Giros) and the continued migration 
of NS&I products through their own direct 
channel have resulted in revenue decline 

The Government Services pillar covers services 
provided under contract to Government 
departments This includes services in relation 
to the work of the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP), the Driver and Vehicle Licensing 
Agency (DVLA), Her Majesty's Passport Office 
(HMPO) and UK Visas and Immigration (UKVI) 

Government Services revenue of £146 million 
decreased by £18 million (2013 £164 million) 
Revenue from the Passport Check & Send service 
increased by £2 million in line with growth rn 
the overall market Revenue from the DVLA 
decreased by £14 million mainly due to lower 
fees per transaction under the new contract 
effective from t April 2013 Revenue from the 
payment of benefits through the Post Office 
Card Account was £6 million lower, impacted 
by customer attrition 

Telecoms 
The Telecoms pillar includes the Post Office 
HomePhone and Broadband services as well 
as e-top up services and phonecards 

Telecoms revenue of f124 million 12013 E129 
million) decreased by £5 million During the year 
the HomePhone and Broadband service was 
transitioned to a new provider and experienced 
operational issues initially, which both the 
provider and Post Office resolved as quickly 
as possible The revenue from HomePhone and 
Broadband decreased by £4 million, primarily 
due to a reduction in customer numbers driven 
by reduced sales and marketing activity following 
the transition to the new supplier Revenue from 
e-top ups was £1 million below prior year as 
more customers moved away from pre-pay 
and mobile networks reduced their transaction 
fees However, the Post Office continues to be a 
significant provider in the top-up market and its 
share of the retail market has been maintained 
at approximately 5% 

Other income 
Other income is generated primarily from 
the Supply Chain business that manages and 
distributes cash for Post Offices and for third 
parties It also offers warehousing services, 
mainly to Royal Mail Other income decreased 
by £1 million to £40 million (2013 £41 million) 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013114 



POL00026716 
POL00026716 

42 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Network Subsidy Payment 
The Network Subsidy Payment is Government 
Grant revenue put towards the costs of 
maintaining the Post Office network The 
payment decreased by £10 million in the 
year to £200 million, this will continue to 
reduce as set out in the current funding 
agreement with Government 

Costs 
Total costs decreased by £67 million to £1,105 
million (2013 £1,172 million) 

People costs 
P4ople Costs of £255 million (2013 £259 
million) decreased by f4 million reflecting 
efficiency savings, particularly in the Crown 
network driven by the Crown transformation 
programme, and lower performance-related 
bonuses, partly offset by some pay increases 
and higher pension costs 

Other operating costs 
Other operating costs decreased by £63 million 
to £850 million (2013 £913 million), driven 
largely by lower sales volumes resulting in lower 
subpostmasters' costs and cost of sales There 
was also a decrease in investment in new 
products and services which had been 
particularly high during 2012/13 

Joint venture and associate 
Share of operating profit from the joint venture 
(First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited) 
was £33 million (2013 £32 million), £1 million 
higher than in 2013 when the result also included 
the associate, Midasgrange Ltd, until its sale 
on 1 September 2012 First Rate Exchange 
Services Holdings Limited results improved 
mainly through delivering efficiencies in 
operating costs 
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Exceptional items 

2014 2013 
Em fm 

Operating exceptional items 

Restructuring costs 
including subpostmasters' 
compensation (259) (79) 

Impairment of investment, 
property, plant and equipment (115) (66) 

Royal Mail Pension Plan 
amendment 102 - 

Government Grant 317 98 

Subtotal operating exceptional 
items 45 (47) 

Non-operating exceptional 
items 

Profit on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment 3 2 

Loss on sale of associate - (30) 

Net exceptional items 48 (75) 

Restructuring costs 
Restructuring costs include the costs of delivery 
of major change Network transformation 
resulted in costs of £94 million for subpostmasters' 
compensation (2013 £12 million) and £97 
million programme costs (2013 £40 million) 
with the increases in each reflecting the greater 
pace of transformation this year In addition 
programme costs of £9 million (2013 fnll) were 
incurred in relation to Crown transformation 
Costs of £21 million relate to IT transformation 
(2013 £10 million) that will create the appropriate 
IT infrastructure for the future Redundancy 
costs of £23 million were incurred during the 
year and mainly related to the Crown network 
(2013 £11 million) There were further business 
transformation payments charged in the year of 
£5 million (2013 €4 million) In addition, a gain 
of £102 million arose on the change to the terms 
of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (see page 93) 

Government Grant 
In addition to the Network 5ub5idy Payment 
the Post Office receives Government Grant 
funding towards the transformation programme 
Government Grant funding of £215 million was 
received in the year The additional Government 
Grant funding is included within operating 
exceptional items to match the associated costs 
£102 million of the 2012113 grant also remained 
available for use in the year The entire balance 
of £317 million of this Government Grant funding 
has been allocated (2013 £98 million) in 
accordance with the designation letters, dated 
2 April 2012 and 27 March 2013, from the 
Department of Business, Innovation and Skills, 
to cover £94 million capital expenditure (2013 
£66 million), £88 million network transformation 
related subpostmasters' compensation (2013 
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£12 million) and £135 million network and 
IT transformation programme costs (2013 
£20 million) 

Cash Flow and Net Debt 
Post Office Limited operates a Treasury function 
and manages its own financial assets (including 
network cash) and financial liabilities (mainly 
Government loans) 

The Treasury function derives its authority from 
the Board and provides regular reports for 
Board review It has the authority to undertake 
financial transactions relating to the management 
of the underlying business risks, however, it does 
not engage in speculative transactions and does 
not operate as a profit centre The principal 
financial instruments utilised are deposits 
and borrowings 

The cash position of the business remains strong 
with cash and cash equivalents of £68B million 
(2013 £971 million) There was a net cash 
outflow during the year of £283 million (2013 
inflow £151 million) The outflow was driven by 
the repayment of the opening loan balance of 
£291 million Net debt (excluding cash in the 
Post Office network) decreased by £183 million 
year on year as shown in the table below 

2014 2013 
£m rm 

Net cash inflow from operating 
activities 69 257 

Income tax recovered 11 11 

Net cash outflow from investing 
activities (66) (24) 

Net cash inflow before 
financing activities 14 244 

Add/(deduct) movement in 
cash in the network included 
in net cash inflow 171 (121) 

Finance costs paid (2) (4) 

Net decrease in net debt 183 119 

Net debt brought forward 
at the beginning of the year (206) (325) 

Total net debt carried forward 
at the end of the year (23) (206) 

Post Office Limited's borrowing facility from 
Government and the associated Framework 
Agreement imposes constraints an the purposes 

for which the facility can be used and the 
availability of external borrowing Post Office 
Limited's treasury policy is to minimise the 
amount drawn down on the loan in order to 
reduce its interest cost The facility is limited 
to a maximum of £115 billion or the amount 
of security available (mainly network cash), 
whichever is the lower The maximum drawn 
down under the facility during the year was 
£261 million on 19 and 20 December 2013 
but there was no loan drawn down at 30 March 
2014 The facility is available at two days' notice 
and has an end date of 31 March 2018 

Pensions 
Post Office Limited is the employer within the 
Post Office Section of the Royal Mail Pension 
Plan (RMPP) and is a participating employer 
within the Royal Mail Defined Contribution 
Plan (RMDCP) Royal Mail Group Limited is 
the principal employer of the Royal Mail Senior 
Executives' Pension Plan {RMSEPP) and Post 
Office Limited is a participating employer within 
RMSEPP RMPP and RMSEPP are both defined 
benefit plans 

On 1 April 2012 - after the granting of state aid 
by the European Commission on 21 March 2012 
- almost all of the pension liabilities and pension 
assets of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP). 
built up until 31 March 2012, were transferred 
to HM Government On this date, the RMPP was 
also sectionalised, with Royal Mail plc and Post 
Office Limited each responsible for their own 
sections in future This pensions transfer left 
the RMPP fully funded on an actuarial basis in 
respect of historic liabilities at this date During 
2013/14 there was a consultation exercise with 
members of the defined benefit Royal Mail Pension 
Plan on proposed changes to the terms These 
changes were agreed on 15 October 2013 and 
effective from 1 April 2014 The key change 
is to the definition of pensionable pay, which 
broadly will increase in line with RPI (capped 
at 5%) in future regardless of actual pay growth 
The changes resulted in a one-off exceptional 
gain of £102 million 

The balance sheet pension position moved 
from an asset of £97 million at March 2013 
to an asset of £146 million at March 2014 
The improvement in position is primarily due 
to the change in terms noted above offset by 
an actuarial loss mainly arising from lower than 
expected asset values 

Both defined benefit plans closed to new members 
in March 2008, and RMSEPP closed to future 
accrual on 31 December 2012 New employees 
are offered membership of the RMDCP 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Pension cash payments for all plans 

The future funding of ongoing pension 
contributions into RMPP and deficit payments 
into RMSEPP was agreed with the respective 
pension trustees during the year and payments 
were made in accordance with the agreements 

20)4 20i3 
Cm £m 

Regular pension contributions (23) (241 

Funding of the pension deficit -
I4MSEPP (1) (2) 

Payments rela_ing to 
redundancy (1) (2) 

Net cash payments (25) (28) 

The regular future service contributions cash 
rate for RMPP expressed as a percentage of 
pensionable pay remained at 171% (2013 
171%) The regular rate of employee contributions 
for the RMPP remains unchanged at 6% 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013/14 

Events after the reporting period 

In accordance with the funding agreement with 
Government announced on 27 October 2010, 
for which State Aid approval was received on 
28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
E330 million of funding on 1 April 2014 
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BUSINESS RISK 

The information below details the key business risks, their potential impact and how the Post Office manages them 

Key risk Impact Mitigation 

Changes in customer preferences 

There is decline in the traditional Post Office The Post Office might We have introduced new services in growth areas 
income streams as customer preferences change not be able to reduce and continue to refine and develop these product 

New income streams may fail to grow sufficiently its reliance on offerings There is en active programme in place 

to exceed the losses from traditional products Government subsidy to deliver the growth trajectory Progress is 

in decline monitored rigorously and risks to the programme 
are actively managed 

Business transformation programmes 

We are managing a significant number of change Failure to implement There are detailed plans in place to manage the 
programmes to modernise the Post Office and the modernisation transformation and ensure it is delivered within 
enable its processes to operate independently of programme would budget and on time The 2013/14 objectives 
those of Royal Mail These include the network, leave the Post Office have been met Delivery is tracked monthly by 
Crown and IT transformation programmes The with an unsustainable a Transformation Board made up of Executive 
success of the Post Office strategic plan depends cost base and a Committee members which provides direction 
on the successful realisation of benefits from continued reliance and oversight over the programmes' delivery 
these programmes on significant 

Government subsidy 

Engagement risk 

The support of our staffand subpostmasters and Lack of support from We maintain a fluid and comprehensive engagement 
engagement with them during this significant time our staff and programme with unions, staffand subpostmasters 
of change is key to the successful delivery of our subpostmasters would These include regular meetings with the National 
strategy Withdrawal or lack of support from our jeopardise our ability Federation of Subpostmasters, the Communication 
staff or subpostmasters, whether driven by to meet our strategic Workers Union and Unite, senior management 
concerns over existing programmes and initiatives goals of growth, briefings to staffand subpostmasters, and events 
or historic cases, could cause delays in the Post profitability and to engage our people in our wsion and strategy 
Office transformation programmes and limit our reduced reliance on We have a people plan aimed at addressing 
ability to meet business objectives Government subsidy staff motivation and skill needs This includes 

development of new leadership and reward 
frameworks and increased focus on recruitment 
and training We have created a Branch User 
Forum and a branch support programme and 
plan further initiatives 

Regulatory & compliance 

There is a risk of non-compliance with the Failure to comply with Our legal and compliance team works closely with 
changing regulatory environment regulation could result the relevant business owners in identifying new 

The Post Office operates under an extensive in fines, adverse requirements and monitoring compliance 

regulatory environment, including areas such outcomes for our Regular compliance tests are conducted across 
as financial and postal services, procurement, customers and the entire branch network, covering a broad 
competition lawand data security significant damage to range of regulatory requirements The results 

the Post Office brand are closely monitored and corrective action taken 
where required 

Business continuity 

The Post Office has particular operational risks Breakdowns in the The Post Office brings together a wide range 
relating to disruption of its services This includes network would reduce of business continuity arrangements under 
adverse weather conditions, industrial action, quality of service, one central policy and governance framework 
systems breakdown and the failure of a increase costs and to ensure that the business is capable of 
critical supplier damage the Post withstanding any significant threat to its ongoing 

Office's reputation operations This includes contingency planning 
and training in the event of disruption, such as 
industrial action or IT failure The ability of key 
suppliers to meet the Post Office's requirements 
is closely monitored 

Chris Day 
(trier Financial Officer 
Post Office limned 
25 June 2014 
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Board responsibilities 
The responsibilities of the Board include setting 
the business strategic alms, putting in place 
the leadership to deliver them, supervising the 
management of the business and reporting to 
the Shareholder There are a number of Board 
committees which deal with specific topics 
requiring independent oversight, including audit, 

risk and compliance, nominations of the Board, 
pensions and senior remuneration 

Each committee is chaired by a Non-Executive 
Director and operates within its own agreed, 
documented Terms of Reference 

HiIiliII I IIInIIIl7III IIIHII 1111111111111111 ILIIIIIIi III 1111111111111n11111l 111111113111 trill 1111111111111111111111It I IIIIIIiri l I I I IIII II I II kIIIoilIn11il 111111111$111111[$It$I1111111111111111111111111111II111111111111iiiiii1Jill IIII I1111IIIIII 

Alice Perkins CB, Chairman 

Joined the Board in July 2011 
Chairman of the Nominations Committee and 
Member of the Remuneration Committee 

Alice had a wide-ranging career in the civil service, which included policy 
and operational roles in health, social security and public spending in the 
Treasury Alice was also the Civil Service's Group HR Director in Cabinet 
Office between 2001 and 2005 Before joining Post Office Limited as 
Chairman, she served as Non-Executive Director on the boards of 
Littlewoods, BAA and INS, where she also chaired the Remuneration 
Committee Alice is an external member of the Oxford University Council, 
a business coach at the JCA Group, and a member of the faculty at Meyler 
Campbell where she teaches senior executives how to coach Alice was 
appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the BBC Executive Roard on 
t April 2014 
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Neil McCausland, Senior Independent Director 

Joined the Board In September 2011 

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a Member of the Audit, 
Risk and Compliance Committee and the Nominations Committee, 
Member of the Post Office Advisory Council 

Neil has had a portfolio of non-executive roles over the last 10 years He is 
currently Chairman of four companies Snow and Rock, a retail chain selling 
skiing and outdoor brands, bikes and running gear, Joules, an outdoor 
lifestyle brand, Create Fertility, a chain of IVF clinics and Skin, a chain of 
skin treatment clinics specialising in laser hair removal Until recently he 
was Chairman of footwear company Kurt Geiger, and a Governor of Nuffield 
Health, which operates hospitals and health clubs Neil began his career 
at Marks & Spencer, before becoming Managing Director of C&A and Chief 
Executive of NAAFI (an MOD agency) 

i i l nuutl 11111111111113111111 I In iill iiin iii l iii l 1111111111llllltll lllllll l l ll iiiri iniiun I I emu iiI in ill 
uliiil 
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Paula Vennells, Chief Executive 

Joined the Board in October 2010 

Paula has worked for Post Office Limited since 2007 in a number of senior 
roles including Managing Director She became Chief Executive on 1 April 
2012 Previously Paula spent five years with Whitbread plc, latterly as 
Group Commercial Director She began her career with Unilever and 
L'Oreal and held directorships in sales and marketing with a number of 
major retailers including Dixons Stores Group and Argos She is currently a 
Non-Executive Director and Trustee for Hymns Ancient and Modern Group, 
a Trustee of Go ON UK and a member of the Future High Street Forum 

tell 111111111111111111111111111111I1I11u11i11111111111111111Iin1111111lllltlllill Flll III[11111I11111IPni111111n IIllrliltl In Ili1111It111ill III 1P91111in1111[ill n1i11111911 IIIit11 IIIIIIIIIIliiit11111th IIIII111r IIi1111111IF11 IIImIIIIIII III 

Chris Day, Chief Financial Officer 

Joined the Board in September 2011 

Member of the Financial Services Committee and Pensions Committee 

Chris joined Post Office Ltd in August 2011 from the BBC where he had 
been Group Financial Controller since 2005 Prior to that, Chris spent 14 
years at Grand iMetropolitan/Diageo in a succession of Treasury/Corporate 
Finance roles in the UK, and as Finance Director in the Netherlands 
and then Germany Previously Chris worked in investment banking at 
Manufacturers Hanover Trust/Chemical Bank and as a financial management 
consultant at KPMG, having started his career with Beecham Group 
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Richard Callard, Mon-Executive Director 

Joined the Board in March 2014 

Richard Callard is the representative of the Department for Business, 
Innovation and Skills on the Post Office Limited Board, and is an Executive 
Director at the Shareholder Executive in BIS Richard is a Chartered 
Accountant by background and joined ShEx from Deloitte corporate finance 
in 2007, where he advised the public and private sector on public private 
partnerships and other infrastructure and project finance deals In addition 
to his role on the Board of Post Office Limited, Richard leads the Post Office 
and Green Investment Bank shareholder teams at BIS 

II II IIItill 11111111111111 nllll®Il II111111111 ni IIIlillilil IIIIIItl1111111,111111111 I11IIII IIRat IIIIIIIIIIli111111111111111111111111111111131111111111111111111fIIIIII III tillHIIIIIIItilltillIII111111n11 I Illtllllill1111111illII II 111111 Inn I IIfII 

Tim Franklin, Non-Executive Director 

Joined the Board in September 2012 

Member of the Audit. Risk and Compliance Committee and Financial 
Services Committee, Chairman of the Post Office Advisory Council 

Tim Franklin joined the Board of Post Office Limited as a Non-Executive 
Director on 19 September 2012 Tim's executive career spans both 
building societies and banking Prior to his board roles in the mutual 
sector, he was Director of Customer Programmes and Loyalty and 
Managing Director of Savings at Barclays Tim's experience extends across 
the private and public sectors too He is a Non-Executive Director of HM 
Land Registry where he chairs the Audit Committee and was previously 
on the Boards of Reclaim Fund Limited, Mutual Plus Limited and the Link 
Cash Machines Network 

I I III Lill Ili I I till IfIIiiiiiiiiiIn11 I tillIII III IIILI 11111111111111111111111111111111111III IliH1111i11IliIliIIII11131111111 IfIIIIfIIIIII11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111ni11nIli 111111111111111il III I III In 11111111111111111 

Virginia Holmes, Non-Executive Director 

Joined the Board in April 2012 

Chairman of the Pensions Committee and the Financial Services Committee 

Virginia brings to the Board extensive knowledge of the financial services 
industry including both investment management and banking Her 
experience includes serving as Chief Executive of AXA Investment 
Managers UK and more than a decade with the Barclays Bank Group 
where she ultimately served as Managing Director of Barclays Bank 
Trust Company Virginia currently serves on the Board and Chairs the 
Investment Committee of the Alberta Investment Management Corporation 
in Canada During the year, Virginia became the Chair of USS Investment 
Management Limited, having formerly served as a trustee of the Universities 
Superannuation Scheme and Chair of Its Investment Committee She also 
serves on the boards of Standard Life Investment Holdings Ltd 
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Alasdair Marnoch, Non-Executive Director 

Joined the Board in May 2012 

Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 

Alasdair Marnoch joined the Board of Post Office Limited as a Non -
Executive director or 23 May 2012 A Chartered Accountant, he chairs 
the Board's Audit, Risk and Compliance Sub-Committee which reviews the 
statutory accounts and financial controls Alasdair has had wide experience 
as Finance Director of a number of FMCG and service businesses, including 
listed companies He was appointed as Chief Financial Officer at CPA Global, 
the world's leading provider of intellectual property management software 
and services, in January 2014 Previously Alasdair served as CFO of the 
Equiniti Group, a leading provider of complex administration and processing 
services to the public and private sectors 

1111111 III I IIIIIII VIII 11111111141111It1i111 tilllllilllil till 111111111ii111111111111t113 11111 1 11111itIII1111i 1111 it I InItin 11171111111i!IlirillI III IIII111611ItIII III till IItilI It Ili ItIIri Iiij IIIII IIi ILII1111111311i11111911111111111111111111r1IIitI 

Alwen Lyons, Company Secretary 

Appointed in July 2011 

Alwen Lyons joined the Post Office Limited in 1984 as a graduate entrant 
and has worked at a senior level in several directorates including network, 
finance and marketing She became the Company Secretary in July 2011, 
after leading the project to separate Post Office Limited from Royal Mail 
Group Alwen served as a trustee on the Royal Mail Pension Plan Board 
for 8 years and was Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee for 7 years 
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CORPORATE COVER NANCE 

Corporate Governance Statement 
The Post Office is committed to conducting the 
Group's business ethically and in accordance with 
high standards of corporate governance 

As the Post Office is not a company with shares 
listed and traded on a public exchange, it is not 
formally required to report on its compliance 
with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the 
Code) Nonetheless, the Board of the Post Office 
believes this is an appropriate benchmark for 
reporting on corporate governance 

The Post Office's corporate governance structure 
follows the spirit of the provisions of the Code in 
so far as they can apply to a Government-owned 

Annual Repor, and Flnanciai Statements 2013 114 

entity, which has no private or institutional 
external shareholders 

Legal Ownership Structure 

The Post Office is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Postal Services Holding Company Limited (formerly 
named Royal Mail Holdings plc) The Secretary of 
State for Business. Innovation and Skills (BIS) holds 
a special share in Post Office Limited The Special 
Shareholder's nghts are set out in the Post Office 
Limited Articles of Association 

A strong link remains between the Post Office 
and Royal Mail, underpinned by a contractual 
agreement to continue to supply Royal Mail 
products and services through the Post Office 
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Neither Postal Services Holding Company Limited 
nor B1S, through its Shareholder Executive 
(Sh£x), have any day-to-day involvement in the 
operations of the Post Office or the management 
of its branch network and staff, although Richard 
Callard, (Executive Director, Post Office Limited 
and Green Investment Bank, Shareholder 
Executive) sits on the Board of Post Office 
Limited as the shareholder representative 

The Board 
The Board is comprised of the Chairman, the 
Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and 
five Non-Executive Directors 

The Board is responsible for setting the Post 
Office's strategic arms, providing the leadership to 
put them into effect, supervising the management 
of the business and reporting to the shareholder 

Short biographies of all rnembers of the Board 
appear on pages 48-51 of this Annual Report 

The Executive Directors contracts provide for six 
months' notice of termination to be given by the 
Director and 12 months' notice to be given by the 
Post Office 

Non-Executive Directors are not employees of the 
Post Office but provide services under the terms 
of an individual Letter of Appointment, signed 
at the commencement of their directorship Tim 
Franklin, Virginia Holmes, Alasdair Marnoch and 
Neil McCausland all met during the year, and 
continue to meet, the criteria for independence as 
set out in the Code, and are therefore considered 
by the Board to be independent 

Board Meetings 
The Board meets at least eight times a year and 
has a formal Schedule of Matters Reserved to it 

During the year to 30 March 2014 the Board 
has focused on the Strategy, Financial 
Performance, Network and Crown Transformation, 
and the capability of the business 

To assist in the execution of its corporate 
governance responsibilities, the Board has Audit 
Risk & Compliance, Nominations, Pensions and 
Remuneration Sub-Committees in place During 

Non-Executive Directors' Terms of Office 

the year under the review, the Board established 
a Financial Services Sub-Committee to provide 
guidance, oversight and authorisation to the 
development of the Post Office's financial 
services programmes and activities Also during 
the year, the Mutualisation Sub-Committee was 
taken back into the Board 

The Schedule of Matters reserved for the 
Board and the full Terms of Reference for the 
Board Sub-Committees can be found on the 
Post Office website 

The table overleaf shows the attendance of 
the Directors at meetings of the Board and 
its principal Sub-Committees during the year 

Additional Board meetings and ad hoc extra 
meetings were held by teleconference for specific 
time-critical issues only 

The Non-Executive Directors also meet at least 
twice a year without the Executive Directors 

Board Sub-Committees 

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
(ARC) is chaired by Alasdair Marnoch The other 
members are Tim Franklin and Neil McCausland, 
all are independent Non-Executive Directors 
The Board considers that the Committee's 
members have broad commercial knowledge 
and extensive business leadership experience, 
and that this constitutes a broad and suitable 
mix of business and financial experience 

The ARC considers the Post Office's financial 
reporting, including accounting policies and 
internal financial controls It looks at the levels 
of risk which exist within the Post Office and 
the steps taken to mitigate those risks 

During the year, the Post Office has been further 
developing its risk management, internal control 
and internal audit procedures 

One of the ARC's primary responsibilities during 
the period was to review both the half year 
trading statement and the full year accounts, 
to assess the validity of assumptions made and 
the accounting policies used and to consider the 

Director Date of appointment Term of ofirce 
Dneap,red mrm at 

30 March 2014 Committee memberships 

Alice Perkins 21 July 2011 Rolling 12 n/a Nominations (Chair), 
month contract Remuneration 

Richard Callard 26 March 2014 Until removal n/a n/a 

Tim Franklin 19 September 2012 4 years 2 years, 173 days ARC, Financial Services 

Virginia Holmes 4 April 2012 3 years 1 year, 5 days Financial Services (Chair), 
Pensions (Chair), 

Nominations, Remuneration 

Alasdair Marnoch 23 May 2012 3 years 1 year, 49 days ARC (Chair) 

Neil McCausland 22 September 2011 4 years 1 year, 176 days Remuneration (Chair), 
ARC, Nominations 
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Directors' attendance of meetings 

Director 
Main 

Board 

Additional 
Board 

meetings ARC 

Financial 
Services 

Committee 
Nominations 

Committee 
Pensions 

Committee 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Alice Perkins 8/9 7(7 3/61 6/6 5/5 

Richard Callard 1/1" 

Chris Day 8/9 6/7 516* 2/2 9/9 

Tim Franklin 9/9 4/7 6/6 2/2 

Virginia Holmes 8/9 4/7 2/2 6/6 9/9 5/5 

Alasdair Marnoch 8/9 6/7 6/6 

Neil McCausland 819 5/7 6/6 616 5/5 

Paula Vennells 9/9 617 4/6 2/21 5/61 1/5t 

Susannah Storey` 819 4/7 5/9 

'from date of appointment tin attendance by invitation a Susannah Storey left the Board on 2rd03J2o14 

ways in which the Past Office should present 
its financial performance 

A second major responsibility has been to 
promote the development of a risk management 
framework suited to the complex nature of the 
Post Office business This is under way, supported 
by an agreed strategy The development of risk 
management and control procedures and the 
establishment of a full internal audit programme 
remain areas of high priority 

A small internal audit function is now established 
supported by co-sourcing arrangements with a 
major firm The Royal Mail Internal Audit function 
provided an internal audit service until the 
summer of 2013 The Post Office Internal Audit 
function focuses on higher-level risk areas 
providing independent assurance to the ARC, 
particularly on strategic and major change/rr 
risks The Head of Internal Audit now reports to 
the General Counsel on an administrative basis 
and the ARC Chairman on a functional basis, 
in line with corporate governance best practice 
The Head of Internal Audit attends the ARC and 
meets with the ARC Chairman with or without 
management through the year 

The ARC works with both the internal audit 
team and Ernst & Young, the external auditor 

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee is a formal 
committee of the Board and has powers 
delegated to it under the Articles of Association 
Its remit is set out in the Terms of Reference 
formally adopted by the Board, which were last 
reviewed in February 2014 The Remuneration 
Committee is chaired by Neil McCausland, the 
Senior Independent Director The other members 
are Alice Perkins and Virginia Holmes They are 
all independent Non-Executive Directors 

The Committee is responsible for making 
recommendations to ShEx on the remuneration 
of the Executive Directors in accordance with the 
Articles of Association In doing so, it reviews the 
remuneration policy and packages of the most 
senior leadership team, being the roles which 
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report directly to the Chief Executive It also 
obtains information on salary levels across the 
business and within external organisations of 
comparable size in order to set remuneration 
levels within an appropriate context 

The Chief Executive may attend meetings, at the 
invitation of the Chairman, to discuss matters 
relating to the remuneration of the Chief 
Financial Officer and members of the Executive 
Committee but the Committee upholds the 
principle that no individual may be involved in 
discussions concerning their own remuneration 

The Committee is able to consult on remuneration 
matters with the Group People Director, other 
members of the Human Resources team and with 
external consultants In the year under review, 
advice was primarily obtained from New Bridge 
Street Consultants on market practice and 
benchmark development New Bridge Street 
Consultants have no other links with the Post 
Office that could compromise their independence 

No material changes can be made to Directors' 
base salaries, benefits or incentives without 
Special Shareholder consent Further details of 
the schemes now in place, and a table setting 
out the remuneration paid to all Directors in 
the year to 30 March 2014, are provided in the 
Directors' Remuneration Report on page 56 
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Nominations Committee 
The Nominations Committee is chaired by Alice 
Perkins The other members are Virginia Holmes 
and Neil McCausland They are all independent 
Non-Executive Directors 

The primary role of this Committee is to 
recommend to the Board any changes in Board 
membership and to manage the process for 
recruiting and replacing Directors This excludes 
the Non-Executive Director nominated by the 
Shareholder as their representative The 
Committee will keep under review the balance 
of skills, experience and diversity available 
within the Board and each of the Board Sub-
Committees The Nominations Committee also 
oversees the process for Board and Sub-
Committee performance evaluation 

During the year the Committee has continued 
to focus on building the overall capability of 
the organisation through the consideration and 
approval of Executive appointments, ensuring 
effective performance and development of 
the Senior Leadership, and overseeing the 
diversity agenda 

Pensions Committee 
The Pensions Committee is chaired by Virginia 
Holmes The other member is Chris Day, Chief 
Financial Officer Susannah Storey resigned from 
the Pensions Committee on 26 March 2014 

The purpose of the Pensions Committee is to 
make recommendations to the Board in respect 
of pensions and pre-retirement risk benefits 
provision within the Post Office and to put into 
effect appropriate investment strategies for the 
Post Office section of the Royal Mail Pension 
Plan IRMPP) on behalf of the Board and in 
line with the Board's investment beliefs 

The Pensions Committee, with the assistance of 
AON Hewitt, oversaw the investment of RMPP 
assets in line with the investment strategy 
previously agreed with the Trustee of the RMPP 
The transition is ongoing and is due to be 
completed in 2014 

2013 saw the agreement to the implementation 
of a cap on pensionable pay at RPI (to a maximum 
of 5%) each year, therefore reducing the salary 
risk to the RMPP These changes were effective 
from 1 April 2014 and allowed the Post Office 
to manage the costs associated with the RMPP 
and ensured the security of the RMPP for the 
foreseeable future 

The Committee also recommended to the Board 
a proposed change to the Royal Mail Defined 
Contribution Plan {RMDCP) This proposal would 
change the structure of the plan by increasing 
the Post Office's contribution to the RMDCP as 
laid out in the table below 

The plan members were consulted on the 
changes This consultation ended on 23 May 
2014, with the changes taking effect from 
t June 2014 

A summary of the changes are below 

Current Proposed 

Employee Employer Employee Employer 
Rate Rate Rate Rate 

3% 5% Removed Removed 

4% 6% 4% 7% 

5% 7% 5% B% 

6% 9% 

The proposed change was agreed by the Board 
in March 2014 

Financial Services Committee 
During the year a new Committee was formed 
to provide guidance on, oversight of and 
authorisation for the development of the Post 
Office's financial services The Committee first 
met in January and its remit from the Post 
Office Board includes the activities of First Rate 
Exchange Services Limited {'FREE"), a 50% Joint 
venture with the Bank of Ireland The Committee 
has the delegated authority of the Post Office 
Board for Financial Services matters 

The Committee is chaired by Virginia Holmes 
The other members are Tim Franklin, 
Non-Executive Director, and Chris Day, 
Chref Financial Officer 

Performance Evaluation 
A board effectiveness review was carried out in 
July 2013 in the form of an informal assessment 
by the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors 
An appraisal of the personal effectiveness of the 
Chairman was carried out by Neil McCausland. 
Senior Independent Director 
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The Executive Committee 

Below main Board level, the Executive Committee 
(ExCo) is the most senior management body and 
is made up of the Chief Executive and each of her 
direct reports, supported by some business unit 
heads who report to members of the Executive 
Committee ExCo works within the delegated 
authorities established by the Board 

The ExCo implements the strategy agreed by 
the Board and monitors business performance 
and development at a day-to-day level It meets 
formally at least once a month to discuss 
proposals for new business development, receive 
financial and other performance reports, and 
address urgent issues, which have arisen within 
the business requiring senior level resolution 
Twice yearly it reviews the results of personal 
performance assessments undertaken 
throughout the organisation 

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and 
the Company Secretary attend both Board and 
ExCo meetings, which facilitates and strengthens 
the communication channels between the senior 
leadership team and the Board and its 
Committees 

The Terms of Reference of the ExCo were 
reviewed in May 2014 and are available for 
download from the Post Office website The 
ExCo is supported by four Sub-Committees 
responsible for Transformation. Risk and 
Compliance, Commercial and Financial issues 

Risk Management 

The Post Office has adopted the requirements 
of the FRC Guide to Corporate Governance and 
established an approach to the management of 
risk, tailored to support the Post Office strategy 
and the ambitious plans for expansion in its 
chosen markets 

Oversight of risk management is carried out 
by the ARC on behalf of the Post Office Board 
With a reporting line to the ARC, the Risk and 
Compliance Committee is responsible on behalf 
of the ExCo for 

• The review and challenge of risk management 
• The approval and endorsement of policies 

to mitigate risk 

• The development of the risk management 
framework 

This Committee is chaired by the General 
Counsel and reports to the ExCo The Committee 
comprises members of the ExCo, including the 
Chief Executive 

The Business also governs financial and related 
regulatory risk with its partner, the Bank of 
Ireland, through established joint regulatory 
risk committees 
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Risk Management Framework 

The components of risk management in the risk 
framework were set out in the 2012/13 Annual 
Report and Accounts and are available on the 
Post Office website 

The risk framework is supported by the Risk and 
Compliance Team, with dedicated professional 
resource in place to support and advise line 
management and assist the risk committees 
in their management of risk 

Progress 

The ExCo has identified and refined the top 
risks in the organisation, focusing on those that 
affect the 2020 strategy These risks, with their 
response plans, are regularly reviewed at the 
Risk and Compliance Committee and the ARC 
to assure the robustness of risk assessment 
and management 

Risk Appetite 

The Post Office is developing its risk appetite 
statement with a view to establishing where 
additional risk may be taken to generate new 
opportunities and/or where further treatment 
of existing risks is required 

Business Continuity 

As part of the Post Office approach to risk 
management, the Post Office brings together a 
wide range of business continuity arrangements 
throughout the Group under one central policy 
and governance framework to ensure that 
the business is capable of withstanding any 
significant threat to its ongoing operations 
The Post Office is committed to ensuring its 
business has adequate resilience and planning 
that protects its customers, clients, brand and 
reputation from business continuity threats, 
risks and incidents 
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DIRECTORS REPORT 

The Directors present the Group Annual Report 
and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 
March 2014 

Expected future developments 
Expected future developments are detailed in 
pages 12 to 16 

Results and dividends 

The profit after taxation for the year was £170 
million (2013 149 million) The Directors do not 
recommend the payment of a dividend (2013 
£nil dividend) 

Political contributions 
No political contributions were made in the year 
(2013 £nil) 

Research and development 
There was no research and development 
expenditure during the year (2013 frul) 

Directors and their interests 
The following served as Directors during the 
year 

R J Callard (appointed 26 March 2014) 
C M Day 
TA Franklin 
VA Holmes 
A Marnoch 
NW McCausland 
A Perkins CB 
S J Storey (resigned 26 March 2014) 
P A Vennells 

No Director has a beneficial interest in the share 
capital of Post Office Limited The emoluments 
of Directors are set out in the Directors' 
Remuneration Report which appears on pages 
58 to 66 

People 
Our goal is to ensure that all employees are 
engaged and involved in the business and are 
aligned and equipped to meet business objectives 
As part of our commitment to drive better 
service for customers we continue to focus 
on improving the quality of our leadership, 
professionahsing key roles and achieving greater 
employee involvement in decision making 

Training and development programmes have 
been put in place to support our ambition to 
create a high performance customer-oriented 
sales culture This ambition is further supported 
by a range of bonus schemes that are based 
on the achievement of business targets 

Underpinning all of this is a need for dignity at 
work, where everybody feels valued, is treated 
fairly and equally, and where everyone plays 
a full part in helping the business to achieve 
its goals 

Regular employee opinion surveys are conducted 
to allow employees to express their views and 

opinions on important issues This two-way 
communication encourages all employees 
to contribute towards making business 
improvements 

Corporate Responsibility 

The Post Office is committed to carrying out 
its activities in a socially responsible manner 
in respect of the environment, employees, 
customers and local communities Further 
information can be found on page 34 

Disabled employees 

The Post Office's policy is to give full 
consideration to applications for employment 
from disabled persons Employees who become 
disabled while employed receive full support 
through the provision of training and special 
equipment to facilitate continued employment 
where practicable The Post Office provides 
training, career development and promotion 
to disabled employees wherever appropriate 

Post balance sheet events 
In accordance with the funding agreement with 
Government announced on 27 October 2010, 
for which state aid approval was received on 
28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
£330 million of funding on 1 April 2014 

Going Concern 

After analysis of the financial resources available 
and cash flow projections for the Post Office, the 
Directors have concluded that it is appropriate that 
the financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis Further details are provided 
in accordance with the fundamental accounting 
concept in note Ito the financial statements 

Audit information 
The Directors confirm that, so far as they are 
aware, there is no relevant audit information 
of which the auditor is unaware and that each 
Director has taken all reasonable steps to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the auditor 
is aware of that information 

Auditor 
The auditor, Ernst & Young LIP, is deemed 
to be reappointed under section 487(2) of 
the Companies Act 2006 

By Order of the Board 

GRO 
Alwen Lyons 
Secretary 
Post Office Limited 
(company number 2154540) 
148 Old Street, London ECIV 9HQ 
25 June 2014 
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Neil McCausland Statement by the Chair of the 
Chair, Committee Remuneration Committee 

I welcome the opportunity to outline our progress 
on Executive Remuneration during our second 
year as an independent business This year has 
been tough although significant progress has 
been made towards our strategic objectives We 
continue to operate in a challenging environment 
and our remuneration framework reflects 
these conditiors 

The Post Office has set a clear strategy for the 
remainder of this decade to create a thriving 
business with a strong purpose The strategy 
will reduce our reliance on the taxpayer, thus 
leading the business to fi nancial sustainability 
and a network used and accessed by all sectors 
of the population 

When setting the performance criteria for the 
2013/14 incentive schemes, the targets were 
deliberately made significantly more stretching 
than previously and asa result, bonuses paid 
this year are less than the preceding year 
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The remuneration framework for 2014/15 
maintains the broad principles set in 2012/13 of 
stretching measures and targets The measures 
in the short-term incentive plan have been 
reviewed and slightly adjusted to align with our 
business objectives The performance measures 
in the long-term incentive plan remain the same 
to ensure continuity and focus on achieving the 
long-term business strategy 

The Executive Directors have not received 
an increase to base pay for three years An 
extensive benchmarking exercise was carried 
out during 2012/13 which showed that the 
levels of the Executive Directors fixed 
remuneration is below the lower quartile of 
the market median We recognise that this 
means a growing gap between the business 
and the market median may become difficult 
in the future 

We have throughout the year reviewed policies 
and have, with the advice of our remuneration 
consultants, reviewed the clawback clause in 
relation to both the short-term and long-term 
incentive schemes to align with market and 
best practice 

The Post Office isowned by Government 
and we have regular dialogue with our Special 
Shareholder on all matters related to the 
remuneration of our Executive Directors 

The Remuneration Committee is comfortable 
that the current policy provides the strong link 
between reward and performance to continue 
the transformational journey I commend this 
report to our stakeholders 

The Remuneration Report 

This report has been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008, as amended in 2013, 
to the extent that they are applicable for Post 
Office in its capacity as an unlisted company 

In line  with the recent changes to Government 
legislation for reporting pay, the remuneration 
report has been split into two sections The 
Remuneration Policy Report sets out the 
Committees policy for remuneration and its 
link to the business strategy The Annual Report 
on Remuneration sets out howthis policy was 
applied during the year under review, the 
remuneration received by directors in theyear 
under review and how the Committee intends to 
implement the policy in the current financial year 

Both sections of the report (pages 58 to 66) have 
been approved by the Remuneration Committee 

- 
and the Board

GRO 
Chair, Remuneration Committee 
Post Office Limited 
25 June 2014 
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Remuneration Policy report 

The Committee is responsible for setting 
the remuneration packages for the Chief 
Executive and Chief Financial Officer and 
determining the overall remuneration 
policy for the senior team reporting into 
the Chief Executive 

The Committee's intention is that the 
remuneration policy should align with the 
business strategy and risk profile 

so 

that 
individuals are motivated to deliver the 
Post Office's objectives and protect its value 
The Post Office remuneration strategy is 
based on the following 

• Attracting and retaining the right people 
within an agreed policy to lead and deliver 
the strategic plan 

• Using incentives appropriately to reward 
the achievement of the turnaround strategy 
and promote the long-term viability of 
the organisation 

Reinforcing an emerging culture of mutual 
ways of working and partnership 

Providing a transparent approach to the 
disclosure of pay 

Remuneration policy summary 

The table [overleaf] describes the current 
remuneration and the breakdown of the 
packages for the Executive Directors, which 
comprise fixed pay (base salary, benefits and 
cash in lieu of pension contributions) and pay 
at risk (STIP and LTIP) 

The remuneration framework for the Executive 
Directors requires consent from the Special 
Shareholder each year During 2013114, the 
only material change made to the structure 
of remuneration was that the Chief Financial 
Officer's STIP structure was amended in order 
to align it with the Chief Executive's (albeit with 
a lower overall percentage of salary available) 

Annual Report and financial Statements 2013/14 
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Remuneration policy table 

Link to strategy 

Base salary 

Determined by reference to the skills 
and responsibilities of the individual 

When determining base salary increases, 
consideration is given to (i) pay and 
employment conditions elsewhere in 
the Post Office and (ii) market data 
on comparable roles 

Benefits 

Participation in life and health assurance 
schemes, company car and private 
medical schemes are part of Post 
Office-wide benefit programmes 

Pension 

Pension provision is provided by the 
Post Office and is available to all 
employees to help them meet their 
retirement needs and provide a 
competitive remuneration package 
Executive Directors receive a salary 
supplement in lieu of pension 
scheme membership 

ShOrt-tRTM Incentive Plan 
(STIP) 

The STIP drives and rewards 
performance over a single financial 
year, against a set of key financial and 
operational targets taken from the 
balanced scorecard, set each year 
according to the current priorities 
for the business 

STIP awards are also linked to the 
achievement of persona I performance 
objectives 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2513/14 

Operation 

Directors' salaries are reviewed annually 
in July of each year The external pay 
benchmarking group is a basket of 
comparators, selected and agreed 
with the Special Shareholder 

There has been no increase to base 
salary since 2011 

The value of the benefits package 
is monitored by the Committee and 
benchmarked against comparator 
organisations 

A salary contribution in lieu of 
pension is paid as a cash supplement 
to the Chief Executive and Chief 
Financial Officer 

The metrics and target ranges are 
agreed annually with the Board and 
the Special Shareholder as part of 
the annual business and budget 
planning cycle 

80% of the STIP award is based on a 
balanced scorecard and 20% is based on 
individual performance objectives whirl) 
are agreed with the Board and require 
approval by the Spccal Shareholder 

The balanced scorecard is set annually 
to include a mix of financial and 
non-financial measures (including 
customer, modernisation and employee 
engagement measures) The precise 
metrics and their weightings are 
determined at the start of each 
financial year 

STIP awards may be subject to clawback 
as described in more detail on page 63 

Maximum values 

There is no a formal cap set on salaries 
However, when reviewing salaries, the 
Committee also pays close attention to 
the level of salary increases across the 
rest of the workforce 

The value of the core benefit is 
reasonable and in proportion with 
the market 

25% of salary 

The maximum STIP opportunity for the 
Chief Executive is 80% of salary (with 
48% of salary being payable for on-target 
performance) The maximum STIP 
opportunity for the CFO 567%, with 
40% payable for on-target performance 
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Link to strategy 

Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(LTIP) 

The LTIP is designed to reward and retain 
key executives and senior managers and 
to incentivise the achievement of longer 
term performance goals 

The payout of the award is based on 
the achievement of strategic targets 
linked to the longer term development 
growth of a sustainable business 

Non-Executive Directors' fees 

To attract and retain a high calibre 
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors 

Notes to the policy table 

-Operation 

Performance measures for the LTIP 
are drawn from the Post Office 
Strategic Plan agreed with the 
Special Shareholder 

LTIP awards are made annually The 
performance targets are agreed with 
the Special Shareholder in advance of 
each grantand will be described 
annually in the Report on Remuneration 

LTIP awards may be subject to clawback 
as described in more detail on page 63 

The fees for the Chairman are reviewed 
by the Committee and approved by the 
Special Shareholder The fees of the 
Non-Executive Directors are reviewed 
by the Executive Directors and 
submitted to the Special Shareholder 

The Chairman is paid a single fee to 
coverall her duties The Non-Executive 
Directors are paid a basic fee together 
with additional fees for chairing Board 
Sub Committees or the role of Senior 
Independent Director No fees to the 
Chairman or Non-Executive Directors 
are pensionable 

The fees have not been reviewed 
since appointment 

The framework is approved by the Special Shareholder 

Differences n remuneration policy for the Executive 
Directors and employees generally 

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors 
inevitably takes account of their level of responsibility 
and their influence over the Company's performance 
Accordingly, a higher proportion of their total remuneration 
package is at risk and subject to performance (under the 
STIP and LTIP), with the incidence and potential amounts 
payable under such incentives across the workforce being 
determined by role and grade within the organisation 

Maximum values 

Up to 98% of salary for the Chief 
Executive and up to 49% of salary for 
the Chief Financial Officer is payable at 
maximum performance 

There is no prescribed maximum annual 
increase The Committee is guided by 
the general increase for employees and 
the FxecuUve Directors 

The Chairman currently receives a single 
fee of £100,000 The non-executive 
directors receive a base fee of £35,000 
- £40,000 together with additional fees 
of £5,000 - £10,000 for chairing Board 
Sub Committees and for the role of 
Senior independent Director 

Choice of performance measures and approach to target 
setting under the STIP and LTIP 

Under the STIP, performance is based on achievement 
against a balanced scorecard and personal performance 
The balanced scorecard measures achievement of the 
Company's key operational objectives and includes 
metrics for financial performance, customer, people and 
modernisation The Committee reviews the components 
of the scorecard each year and varies them as appropriate 
to reflect the priorities for the business in the year ahead 

• Under the balanced scorecard, a sliding scale of targets is 
set for each metric to encourage continuous improvement 
and challenge the delivery of stretch performance 

• Under the LTIP, a minimum level of operating profit 
must always be met in order for any payment to be 
made The metrics were carefully chosen to align with 
the Company's long-term strategic plan, as agreed with 
the Special Shareholder 

Awoeal Report and financial Staz menu 2013114 
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Performance scenarios 2014/2015 
The chart below shows the quantum and 
composition of the current remuneration 
policy for the Executive Directors under three 
performance scenarios These are scenarios 
showing potential remuneration assuming there 
is no STIP or LTIP payout, (fixed pay only), 
on-target performance (STIP and L11P paying 
out at a target level) and maximum performance 
(full payout of STIP and LTIP) 

Approach to recruitment remuneration 
The remuneration package for a new Executive 
Director would normally be set in accordance 
with the terms of the Company's remuneration 
policy in force at the time of appointment 

The salary for a new Executive Director may 
be set below the normal market rate, with 
phased increases over the first few years as 
the Executive Director gains experience in 
their new role 

Sometimes, to facilitate en external recruitment, 
it may be necessary to consider reasonable 
compensation for remuneration relinquished at 
a former employer (buyout award) Should this 
be the case, the terms of any buyout award 
would reflect (as far as is reasonably possible) 
the nature, performance conditions and time 
horizons attaching to the remuneration foregone 
with the overall package tailored to the individual 
Any such award would require approval by the 
Special Shareholder 

For an internal appointment, any variable pay 
element awarded in respect of their previous 
role will be allowed to pay out according to its 
terms, adjusted as relevant to take into account 
their appointment 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 201311® 

Statement of pay considerations 
elsewhere in the Post Office 
The Committee takes into account the pay and 
employment conditions of employees elsewhere 
in the Post Office when setting the remuneration 
policy for the Executive Directors The balanced 
scorecard used for the STIP for Executive 
Directors is also used to assess performance 
in the annual bonus for Post Office managers, 
providing alignment between performance 
and reward for all employees at manager 
level and above 

Contracts and loss of office 
payment policy 
Each of the Executive Directors has a signed 
contract with the Post Office 

Service contracts normally continue until the 
Executive Director's agreed retirement date or 
such other date as the parties agree The service 
contracts contain provisions for early termination 

In summary, the contractual provisions are 
as follows 

Notice period Other than for certain events 
such as gross misconduct 
(in which no notice must be 
provided by the Company), 
twelve months to be given by 
the Post Office and six months 
by the director 

Remuneration- Payments in lieu of notice of 
related salary and benefits including 
provisions health cover, a company car or 

car allowance, life and health 
insurance and cash allowance 
in lieu of pension equivalent 
to 25% of base salary 
Payments in lieu of notice 
are not pensionable 

Change of There are no enhanced 
control provisions on a change 

of control 

In some circumstances, the Committee may also, 
at its discretion, pay a bonus to the Executive 
Director equivalent to the amount that they would 
have been entitled to and earned under the STIP 
and LTIP, pro-rated over the portion of the year 
that they were in service The Committee will take 
into account the reason for the Executive Director 
leaving the company and the contribution made 
to the performance conditions 
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Under the LTIP, the default treatment is that any 
outstanding awards will lapse on termination of 
employment However, in certain prescribed 
good leaver circumstances, the awards remain 
subject to performance conditions measured to 
the end of the performance penod, and reduced 
by reference to the portion of the period they 
were employed The definition of good leaver 
status is set out in the rules 

Clawback provision 
Executive Directors have clawback clauses in 
their contracts, as well as the STIP and LTIP 
rules, which provide for the return of any 
over-payments in the event of misstatement of 
the accounts, error or gross misconduct on the 
part of an Executive Director These provisions 
are structured in line with market best practice 

Non-Executive Directors 
Non-Executive Directors' Letters of Appointment 
are described in the Corporate Governance 
statement (see page 52) 

Statement of consideration 
of shareholder's views 
The Chairman of the Committee communicates 
regularly with the Shareholder Executive on 
behalf of the Special Shareholder on all matters 
concerning executive remuneration and the 
Special Shareholder approves all aspects of the 
framework for Executive Director Remuneration 

Annual Report and Finanaar Statements 2013 114 
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Annual Report on Remuneration 

Remuneration for each director for the Financial Year 2013/2014 (audited) 
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Annualised Actual 

lieu of 

salary/fees 

salary/(ees 

Benefits pension 

STIP 

LTIP Total 

Total 

Flame 

2013/2014 2033/2014 2013/2014 2013/2014 201312014 

2013/2014 2013/2014 2012/2013 

Non - Executive Directors 

Tim Franklin ul

£40,000 

£37,097 - - - - £37,097 

£18,667 f1

Virginia Holmes

°

£40,000 

£37,097 - - - - £37,097 £34,708' 4)

Alasdair Marnoch 

£45,000 

£45,000 - • - - £45,000 

£38,589' 4)

Nell McCausland £50,000 £50,000 - - - - 

£50,000 £50,000 

Alice Perkins £100,000 £100,000 - - - - £100,000 £100,000 

Susannah 

Storey' tl

£0 £0 - - - 

- 

£0 

£0 

Richard Callard i" £0 £0 - - - 

- 

£0 £0 

Executive 

Directors

ial

Paula Vennells £250,000 £250,000 

£9,494 £62,500 £75,608 £145,250 

£543,852 

£697,723 

Chris 

Day £215,000 £215,000 £9,494 £53,750 

£54,042 

£41,639 £373,925 

£407,582 

Total 

2013/2014 

£740,000 

£734,194 

£18,988 

£116,250 £130,650 £186,889 £t186,971 £1,347,269 

Susannah 

Storey 

was an employee 

of 

the Shareholder Executive of the Department far Business, Innovation and Skills 

in 

March 2013 she moved to the Department of 

Energy and 

Climate Change 

She receives no 

deertlar s 

fee and resigned from 

the 

Board an 

26 

March 7014 

UI 

Richard Callard is an employee a' the Shareholder Executive of the Department for 

Business, Innovation 

and Skills 

and Joined 

the Board 

on 

26 

March 2014 

He receives no 

directors 

fee 

ni 

The salaries for Paula Vennells and Chris Day remain unchanged There is no planned Increase for the 

review in July 2014 

ei 

Tim Franklin 

joined the Board 19 

September 2012 Virginia Holmesfoined the Board 

4 

April2012 and Alasdair Marnoch 

Domed the Board 23 May 2012 and all received a pro rated payment far 2012£2013 

ul 

Tim Franklin and Virginia Holmes received £5000 as a result 

of 

taking 

on the Chairmanship of additional committees 

Benefits comprise a company car for cash 

equivalent), 

participation in life and 

health 

assurance schemes 

and 

private 

medical provision 

Pay at risk paid to Executive Directors in 2013-14 (audited) 

a) Short Term Incentive Plan 2013-14 but due to cost control the operating profit target 
Performance 

metrics 

of f102 million was exceeded Our 

modernisation 

The STIP payable to both the Executive 

programme 

continues as the Post Office proceeds 

Directors is based on the 2013114 Post Office 

on it journey to transformation 

Our 

customers 

balanced scorecard 

(80%) 

and personal 

and 

our 

people are 

critically 

important and 

performance (20%) Six measures in the 

stretching 

targets were set to indicate this 

Overall 

scorecard were identified 

for 

use in the 

STIP 

performance was 

satisfactory 

but not 

all targets 

These relate to 

fi nancial 

performance 

(45%), 

were 

achieved 

customer experience (20%), our people (10%) b) Long-Term Incentive Plan awards 
and achievement 

of specific objectives related 

2011-2014 

to the 

modernisation 

programme 

(25%) 

The LTIP award to pay out this year is based

Financial performance was assessed through 

the performance

dvaluswere

per a sd ended 30 o

the use of 

stretching 

net revenue and 

operating 

2014

t0 e-yea a r 

March The award values  

as follows 

profit targets The 

net revenue target was not met 
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Maximum 

value 

of 

Basis of award 

award stall  

performance Vesting determined 

Exeeuilve Type of award 

granted Value of award targets are met by performance over 

70% 

of 

salary 

Three fi

nancial 

years 

Paula 

Vennells 

Cash 

target award 

£145,250 

£245,000 

to 30 

March 2014 

35% of salary Three fi nancial 

years 

Chris Day 

Cash target award 

£41,639 e  

£70,234 e  to 

30 

March 2014 

° 2011/12 

tTlPaward pro rated as Chris 

Daycommenced employment 

I 

August2011 

Annual 

Report 

and Financial 

statements 2013 / 

14 
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The primary performance condition for the 2011 The STIP and LTIP awarded to the Chief 
award was operating profit (sliding scales of Executive and Chief Financial Officer expressed 
targets) based on the strategy plan as a percentage of salary is shown below 

Operating profit before exceptional items for the 
year-ended 30 March 2014 (1107 million) was 
between the target and stretch level 
1,x41 plan!I,ndlpnlnnginnl[gvnqnIdnq[I eInt.neIm nn I[[ea]ineaennnin[uaignvnana[aaiianIaannnIuuIunIennIunua aa6ennnnivnt[[[ianon[dndnaeaua[rims..[[ngn][[InnnItvn[I[iI]ap!nuInvIteaa[[nv inunu,nI[[[n[R 

STIP LTIP 

n[R vaniab,dganddwuuI 

2012/2013 Payment 201312014 Payment 201212013 Payment 2013/2014 Payment 
as % of salary is % of salary as % of salary as 96 of Salary 

Chief Executive 63% 31% 87% 58% 

Chief Financial Officer 60% 2596 N/A 19% 

Outstanding interests in Long-Term Incentive Plan 
Under the remuneration policy, LTIP awards Chief Financial Officer have the following 
are granted annually The Chief Executive and outstanding awards 
Illdllllltlllllllllllllllllllllt[Illlllltltllllllllllllli111 W It111gI1111111tl I111111gII1t1111111111111tlI1n1111111111Y11111111111111111111111R1111111'Illllllltllllllllllll IIIIIIII IW llltllllllllll IllIt IIII1111n1111111IIIIIIIIIII11111111111111111Rllllllllllfllllllllllllllltl111RIl 

Target award Stretch award 

ItIIII11111Allllilllllllll1111111 

Performance period 

Paula Vennells - Chief Executive 

2012 LTIP £175,000 £245,000 Three years to 29 March 2015 

2013 LTIP £175,000 £245,000 Three years to 27 March 20f6 

Chris Day - Chief Financial Officer 

2012 LTIP £75,250 £105,350 Three years to 29 March 2015 

2013 LTIP £75,250 £105,350 Three years to 27 March 2016 

Both the 2012 and 2013 LTIP awards are (an HMRC approved defined benefit occupational 
subject to challenging financial and strategic pension scheme) until 5 April 2012 when she 
performance conditions based on business left the scheme As a result she retains past 
profitability and the maintenance of the network pensionable service up until the date she left, 
in line with the Special Shareholder's objectives any increases in the deferred pension amount 

is due to revaluation not new accrual 
Total pension entitlements (audited) 
Paula Vennells and Chris Day each receive a Relative importance of the spend on 
cash supplement of 25% base pay in lieu of pay (audited) 
pension scheme membership The figure below shows the change in employee 

Paula Vennells was previously an active member costs between 2013 and 2014 relative to total 

of the Royal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plan revenues 

1[L~[n"n[,.q[Il,lgll111ndlnq,llnnllllltln[.dtdl'Indn,Ilnalln,In,tn,llnllglnngl'nnnlRlllnlrill]n,dllx,IIRIIIII,IIIq[,Illn,Illtln,d,Inlll„nntlgnlnlllnln„nanlntll„[Illlndllgll„d„Iddll„ntlgnnl[nilntlllltllltlllln,>,In'lltlnglln[Id[[nlldnn 
2014 2013 %difference 

Total People Costs (£255m) (£259m) 1 5% 

Of which related to Directors pay (fl 19m) (fl 35m) 119% 

Total revenue excluding Network Subsidy Payment f979m £1,024m -44% 

Remuneration of the Chief Executive over time 

The table below shows the total remuneration of together with her STIP and LTIP payouts 
the Chief Executive over three financial years. In that year 

201201 2013 2014 

Total remuneration £462,505 £697,723 £543,852 

STIP (% of maximum) 86% 79% 38% 

LTIP vesting (%of maximum) No LTIP vested 89% 59% 

I'iThe Post Off]ce became independent [ruin the Royal Mad an 1 April20i2 Hence, the Cmnnnttee has dlosen to set oul the 
Chief Executives pay data since this date 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013114 
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How the Committee intends to 
implement the remuneration policy 
in 2014/15 

Salaries 
Salaries for the Executive Directors for 2014f15 
are unchanged from last year, at £250,000 for 
Paula Vennells and £215,000 for Chris Day 

The next salary review will take place in 
July 2015 

The Chief Executive has not been awarded any 
increase in pay since April 2011 There was no 
increase in pay in April 2012, when the company 
began operating independently from the Royal 
Mail Group and the role of the Chief Executive 
significantly increased The remuneration of the 
Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer has 
been benchmarked and analysis shows both 
Executive Directors are below the lower quartile 
of the market median 

Performance targets for the STIP and 
LTIP awards to be granted in 2014 
and beyond 
For 2014, the STIP will continue to he based on 
performance against a balanced scorecard (80%) 
and personal performance (20%) 

The LTIP targets will continue to operate with 
a performance target which is predominantly 
linked to the Company's operating profit 
performance 

The Committee has chosen not to disclose, in 
advance, the actual targets applying, as these 
are deemed to be commercially sensitive 

Statement of Consideration of 
Shareholders Views 
When setting the Remuneration Policy for 
the Executive Directors the Remuneration 
Committee take :nto consideration the views 
of the Special Shareholder The policy for pay 
at risk concentrates on ensuring remuneration 
is performance lead with targets aligned with 
those of the Shareholder 

The current economic and pol.tical climate 
is taken into account in terms of restraint on 
pay to reflect the current practice in the public 
sector All remuneration for the Executive 
Directors requires Special Shareholder approval 
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Fees for the Chairman and 
Non Executive Directors 
No annual increase is proposed to the fees 
to the Chairman and the other Non-Executive 
Directors An increase in fees has been made to 
two Non-Executive Directors who have taken on 
additional roles chairing Board Sub Committees 
Their fees are set out in the policy report 

Membership of the Committee 
The members of the Committee are listed 
in the table below All of these are independent 
Non-Executive Directors In total the Committee 
met five times and all committee members 
attended each meeting 

Committee members 
Neil McCausland 
Alice Perkins 
Virginia Holmes 

The Chief Executive attends the meeting by 
invitation of the Chairman and assists the 
Committee in its deliberations, except in matters 
relating to her own remuneration No directors 
are involved in deciding their own remuneration 
The Committee also receives advice from the 
Group People Director, with other members 
of the Human Resources team and with 
external consultants 

External Advisors 
In the year under review, advice on matters 
related to executive remuneration was primarily 
obtained from New Bridge Street (NBS), an Aon 
Hewitt company The total fees paid to NBS in 
respect of its services to the Committee during 
the year were £27K Fees are generally agreed 
in advance for each piece of work carried out 
by NBS 

NBS is a signatory to the Remuneration 
Consultants Code of Conduct The Committee 
has reviewed the operating processes in place 
at NBS and is satisfied that the advice that it 
receives is objective and independent 

Outside directorships 
Subject to Board approval, the Executive 
Directors are permitted to take on Non-
Executive positions with other companies 
Paula Vennells is a Director of Hymns Ancient 
and Modern and received a fee of £6,350 in 
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic 
report, Directors report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company 
and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group 
and of the Company For that period Under that law the 
Directors have elected to prepare the Group consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union 
and have elected to prepare the Company financial statements 
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
and applicable law) including Financial Reporting Standard 
101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' In preparing those 
financial statements, the Directors are required to 

• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them 
consistently, 

• Present information, including accounting policies, in 
a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable 
and understandable information, 

• Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the 
Specific requirements in IFRS as adopted by the European 
Union is insufficient to enable users to understand the 
impact of particular transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Group's financial position and 
financial performance, 

• State that applicable accounting standards have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial statements, 

• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern 
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Company will continue in business. 

Anni ae Report and Financial Statements 2013/14 

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting 
records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, 
the financial position of the Group and of the Company to 
enable them to ensure that the Group consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 
4 of the IAS Regulation and the Company financial statements 
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities 

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge 

The Group consolidated financial statements, prepared 
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial 
position and profit of the Group, 

• The Company financial statements prepared in accordance 
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 
'Reduced Disclosure Framework, give a true and fair view 
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the 
Company, and 

• The management report contained in this report includes 
a fair view of the development and performance of the 
business and the position of the Group as a whole and of 
the Company, together with a description of the principal 
risks and uncertainties they face 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF POST OFFICE LIMITED 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
Post Office Limited for the 52-week penod ended 30 March 
2014 which comprise the Consolidated income statement, 
the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
Consolidated statement of cash flows, the Consolidated 
balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and the related notes 1 to 24 The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 

This report is made solely to the company's members, 
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the company's members those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and 
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the company and the company's members as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities 
Statement set out on page 70, the directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the group financial statements and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the group 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements In addition, we iead all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited fi nancial statements and to 
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, knowledge acquired 
by us in the course of performing the audit If we become 
aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report 

Opinion on fi nancial statements 
In our opinion the group fi nancial statements 

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's affairs 
as at 30 March 2014 and of its profit for the 52-week 
period then ended, 
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs 
as adopted by the European Union, and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2006 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report 
and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the 
group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
group fi nancial statements 

Matters on which we are required to report 
by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters 
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 
If, in our opinion 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by 
law are not made, or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations 
we require for our audit 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the parent company financial 
statements of Post Office Limited for the 52-week period 
ended 30 March 2014 

Angus Grant (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 
London 
25 June 2014 
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 MARCH 2014 AND THE 53 WEEKS ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 
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2014 2013 
Notes Em Em 

Continuing operations 

Turnover 979 1,024 

Network Subsidy Payment 200 210 

Revenue 1,179 1234 

People costs excluding restructuring costs 3 (255) (259) 

Other operating costs (850) 1913) 

Share of post tax profit from joint ventures and associates 11 33 32 

Operating profit before exceptional items 4 107 94 

Operating exceptional items 5 45 (47) 

Operating profit 152 47 

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 2 

Loss on sale of associate 11 - (30) 

Profit before financing and taxation 155 19 

Finance costs 7 (3) (4) 

Finance income 7 1 1 

Net financing income relating to pensions 18 5 2 

Profit before taxation 158 18 

Taxation credit 8 12 31 

Profit for the financial year from continuing operations 170 49 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 MARCH 2014 AND THE 53 WEEKS ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 
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2014 2013 

Notes

Profit for the financial year from continuing operations 170 49 

Other comprehensive income 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 18 (52) 14 

Income tax effect 8 (2) 121) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 116 42 

There are no other comprehensive income items that will be reclassified to the profit and loss in subsequent periods 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 MARCH 2014 AND THE 53 WEEKS ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 
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2014 2013 
Note% {m fm 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Operating profit before exceptional items 107 94 

Adjustment for 

Depreciation and amortisation 4 - - 

Share of profit from joint ventures and associates 11 (33) (32) 

Pension operating costs 27 25 

Working capital movements (20) 63 

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 45 (138) 

(:Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (67) 199 

Decrease/(increase) in inventories 2 (2) 

Increase in non-exceptional provisions - 4 

Pension operating costs paid (24) (26) 

Cash receipts in respect of operating exceptional items 12 133 

Government Grant 215 200 

Restructuring costs (170) (52) 

Other (33) (15) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Income tax recovered 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Investment in associate 

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 

Finance income received 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from disposal of associate 

Purchase of noncurrent assets 

69 257 

11 11 

- (11) 

I1 32 40 

1 1 

3 2 
2 

(102) (58) 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (66) (24) 

Net cash inflow before financing activities 14 244 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance costs paid (2) (3) 

Payments to finance lease creditors (4) (3) 

Repayment of borrowings from 8I5 (291) (86) 

Net cash outflow from financing activities (297) (92) 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (263) 152 

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents - (1) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13 971 820 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 688 971 

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consists of £738 million included 
in note 13, net of a bank overdraft of E50 million which is disclosed in note 14 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AT 30 MARCH 2014 AND 31 MARCH 2013 
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2014 

mn: aennnune i 
2013 

Notes Em Em 

Non-current assets 

Intangible assets 9 - -

Property, plantand equipment 10 10 11 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 11 61 60 

Retirement benefit surplus 18 148 97 

Trade and other receivables 12 15 10 

Total non-current assets 234 178 

Current assets 

Inventories 6 8 

Trade and other receivables 12 302 352 

Cash and cash equivalents 13 738 971 

Financial assets — derivatives 17 - 1 

Total current assets 1,046 1,332 

Total assets 1,260 1,510 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 14 (767) (874) 

Financial liabilities - interest bearing loans and borrowings 15 - (291) 

- obligations under finance leases 21 (3) (3) 

Provisions 16 (70) (19) 

Total current liabilities (840) (1,187) 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities — obligations under finance leases 21 - (4) 

Other payables 14 (28) (24) 

Provisions 16 (8) (7) 

Total non-current liabilities (36) (35) 

Net assets 404 288 

Equity 

Share capital 19 - - 

Share premium 465 465 

Retained earnings (63) (179) 

Other Reserves 2 2 

Total equity 404 288 

The financial statements on pages 72 to 100 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and signed on its 
behalf by - -.------- --- - --- - -----

GRO GRO 
CM Day

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer 

Annual Re mr[ and Firancel Statements 20131 t4 ',,



POL00026716 
POL00026716 

76 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE S2 WEEKS ENDED 30 MARCH 2014 AND THE S3 WEEKS ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 
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Share Retained Other Total 

premium earnings reserves equity 

Notes fm Em fm Em 

At 1 April 2013 465 (179) 2 288 

Profit for the year - 170 - 170 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 18 (52) - (52) 

Income tax effect 8 - (2) - (2) 

At 30 March 2014 465 (63) 2 404 

Other reserves of f2 million relate to First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited, the joint venture entity 

un:nnlnnwllnunnnnnuuunuuuuuunnlnnnmpuu1n111nu1uuuuluminuuurnnuulmauunnurptnnnuulnumnlmunnnlnluuulnnnunuluuulutnunuulunnnnupuuneneulurunllunnumpnulnnnpuununuunmm~uamleulunnulnn 

Share Retained Other Total 
premlam earnings reservns equity

Notes £m £m fm £m 

At 26 March 2012 465 (552) 47 (40) 

Profit for the year - 49 - 49 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 18 - 14 - 14 

Transfer of pension deficit to Government 18 - 286 - 286 

Sale of interest in associate - 45 (45) - 

Income tax effect 8 - (21) - (21) 

At 31 March 2013 465 (179) 2 288 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 Accounting Policies 

Financial year 
The fi nancial year ends on the last Sunday in March and for 
this reason these financial statements are made up to the 
52 weeks ended 30 March 2014 12013 - 53 weeks ended 
31 March 2013) 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements on pages 72 to 100 have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and 
with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to 
companies reporting under IFRS Unless otherwise stated in 
the accounting policies below, the financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost accounting convention 

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United 
Kingdom The Group consolidated financial statements are 
presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the 
nearest fm except where otherwise indicated 

Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertaking 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, 
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and 
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control 
ceases The financial statements of the subsidiaries are 
prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, 
using consistent accounting policies All intra-group balances, 
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full 

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 
The Group applies, for the fi rst time, IAS 19 (Revised 2011) 
Employee Benefits This has not required restatements of 
previous financial statements as the effect of the application 
of IAS 19R is not material in the opinion of the Directors IAS 
19R includes a number of amendments to the accounting for 
defined benefit plans, including actuarial gains and losses that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and 
permanently excluded from profit and 'loss which is consistent 
with the existing policy of the Group, expected returns on 
plan assets that are no longer recognised in profit or loss, 
instead, there is a requirement to recognise interest on the 
net defined benefit asset in profit or loss, calculated using the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit surplus 
Other amendments include new disclosures, such as, 
quantitative sensitivity disclosures 

In the case of the Group, the transition to IAS 1911 and the 
difference in accounting for interest on plan assets and 
unvested past service costs has not had a material impact 
on the net defined benefit plan surplus The Group has 
not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or 
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective 

Accounting standards issued but not yet applied 
The following new and revised accounting standards are 
relevant to the Group and are in issue but were not effective 
(and in some instances have not yet been adopted by the EU) 
at the balance sheet date 

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement 
• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities 
• IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
- Amendments to IAS 32 

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the 
standards listed above will have a material impact on 
the financial statements of the Group in future periods 

Fundamental accounting concept - going concern 

After careful consideration of the plans for the coming years, 
the Directors continue to believe that Post Office Limited 
will be able to meet its liabilities as they ail due for the 
foreseeable future Accordingly, on that basis, the Directors 
consider that it is appropriate that these fi nancial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis 

The Group has net assets at 30 March 2014 and has 
operated at a profit before exceptional items during 
2013-14 for the sixth year running A funding agreement 
with Government was announced on 27 October 2010 
which provided for 

• Funding of £410 million for 2012-13 
Funding of £415 million for 2013-14 
Funding of £330 million for 2014-15 
Extension of the existing working capital facility with the 
Department for Business, Innovation & Skills IBIS) of £1 15 
billion up to 31 March 2016 

State Aid approval for the funding for 2012-13 to 2014-15 
was received on 28 March 2012 and it was also recognised 
that the working capital facility was no longer deemed State 
Aid £410 million was received on 2 April 2012 and f415 
million was received on 2 April 2013 

An additional funding agreement with Government was 
announced on 27 November 2013 which provided for 

• Funding of £280 million for 2015-16 
• Funding of £220 million for 2016-17 

• Funding of £140 million for 2017-18 
• Extension of the existing working capital facility with the 

Department for Business, Innovation & Skills IBIS) amended 
with a limit of £950 million from 31 March 2015 up to 
31 March 2018 

State Aid approval for the funding for 2015-16 to 2017-18 
has not yet been received 

This investment takes the form of a Government Grant and 
enables the Group to modernise the branch network and the 
continuation of the Network Subsidy Payment recognises the 
major social value that Post Offices provide to communities 
New main and local branches are currently being rolled out 
across the United Kingdom Customers are beginning to 
benefit from a much better retail experience including 
extended opening hours This programme is designed to 
make the Post Office network more self-sustaining and, 
over time, less dependent on direct subsidy This will not 
involve a branch closure programme 

The Directors are satisfied with the continued progress made 
towards modernisation during 2013-14 and that the plans in 
place and the substantial investment secured will enable the 
Group to continue to modernise and to secure its future 
However, they note that the scale of change required remains 
significant so not without risk 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
in applying accounting policies 
The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding 
the future Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated 
based on historical experience and other factors In the future, 
actual experience may differ from these estimates and 
assumptions In addition the Group has to make judgements 
in applying its accounting policies which affect the amounts 
recognised in the accounts The most significant areas where 
judgements and estimates are made are discussed below 

Pension assumptions 

The costs, assets and liabilities of the pensions operated by 
the Group are determined using methods relying on actuarial 
estimates and assumptions These pension figures are 
particularly sensitive to changes in assumptions for discount 
rates, mortality and inflation rates The Group exercises its 
judgement in determining the assumptions to be adopted, 
after discussion with its Actuary Details of the key 
assumptions are set out in note 18 

Pension liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent 
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond 
of equivalent currency and term Judgernent has been applied 
in determining that for these purposes a high quality corporate 
bond constitutes AA rated or equivalent status bonds 

The prior year pension deficit transfer to HM Government 
on 1 April 2012 was taken directly through equity, as in 
management's judgement this transaction was undertaken 
with HM Government in its capacity as the owner of Royal 
Mail Holdings plc, the Company's former parent company, 
rather than in its capacity as Government 

Provisions 

The Group has recognised provisions where a present legal 
or constructive obligation exists as a result of a past event, 
where it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of 
the amount can be made Provisions are detailed in note 16 
Due to the nature of provisions the future amount settled 
may be different from the amount that has been provided 

Impairment of non-current assets 

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of 
impairment for all non-currents assets at each reporting 
date Due to ongoing operational losses (excluding the 
Network Subsidy Payment) the carrying value of intangible 
assets and all property plant and equipment other than 
freehold and long leasehold property has been impaired 
to the recoverable amount 

Revenue 
Turnover from Government, financial, mails and telephony 
services comprises the value of services provided Turnover 
from all other products comprises the commission received 
excluding VAT, from the Group's principal activities in providing 
access to a wide range of financial and retail services through 
its network of Post Office branches across the UK and other 
channels Turnover relating to line rental for telephony 
services is recognised evenly over the period to which the 
charges relate and revenue from calls is recognised at the 
time the call is made Turnover from all other transactions 
is recognised when the transaction is completed All turnover 
is derived wholly from within the United Kingdom 
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The Network Subsidy Payment is Government Grant revenue 
recognised to match the related costs of making available the 
network of public Post Offices that the Secretary of State for 
Business, innovation and Skills considers appropriate 

Net revenue 
Net revenue is calculated using revenue less the directly 
attributable costs of delivering the service or product 

Operating exceptional items 
Operating exceptional items are items of income and 
expenditure arising from the operations of the business which, 
due to the nature of the events giving rise to them, require 
separate presentation on the face of the income statement 
to allow a better understanding of financial performance in 
the year, in comparison to prior years 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately or generated internally 
are initially recognised at cost and are reviewed for impairment 
An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for 
the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net 
realisable value and its value in use 

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives is charged 
annually to the income statement on a straight-line basis 
as follows 

Software 1 to 6 years 

Where intangible assets are impaired to their recoverable 
amount on acquisition the above range of asset lives is 
not applied 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is recognised at cost, including 
attributable costs in bringing the asset into working condition 
for its intended use 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is provided on a straight-line 
basis by reference to cost and to the remaining useful economic 
lives of assets and their estimated residual values The lives 
assigned to major categories of tangible fixed assets are 
Ii IIiI1N111UYY111Y1191an9nrnil...... mnll9,i111119aII~I111111YIlYIN11Y1l II..YINlll,uaalln..Vaal1111lilallllll ll.. a....... 

Range of asset lives 

Land and buildings 

Freehold land Not depreciated 

Freehold buildings Up to 50 years 

Leasehold buildings The shorter of the period of 
the lease, 50 years or the 

estimated remaining useful life 

Plant and machinery 3 - 15 years 

Motor vehicles and trailers 2 - 12 years 

Fixtures and equipment 2 - 15 years 

Where property, plant and equipment is impaired to its 
recoverable amount on acquisition the above ranges of 
asset lives are not applied This is currently the case for 
plant and machinery, motor vehicles and trailers and fixtures 
and equipment 

Impairment reviews 
Unless otherwise disclosed in these accounting policies, 
assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
such indications exist Where appropriate, an impairment 
loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount 
by which the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating 
unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 
an asset's net realisable value and its value in use 

Leases 
Finance leases, where substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased item have passed to 
the Group are capitalised at the inception of the lease with 
a corresponding liability recognised far the fair value of the 
leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between 
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so 
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor, are 
classified as operating leases and rentals are charged to the 
income statement over the lease term The aggregate benefit 
of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 

Investments in joint ventures and associates within the 
Group's financial statements are accounted for under the 
equity method of accounting Under this method the 
investment is carried in the balance sheet at cost plus 
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net 
assets of the joint venture/associates less any impairment 
in value The income statement reflects the Group's share 
of post tax profits from the joint venture/associates The 
financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for 
the same reporting period as the Group 

Inventories 
Inventories include printing and stationery, retail and lottery 
products, are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value after adjusting for obsolete or slow-moving stock 

Taxation 
The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the 
year as adjusted for items which are not taxed or are disallowed 
It is calculated using tax rates in legislation that has been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for 
all taxable and deductible temporary differences and unused 
tax assets and losses except 

• initial recognition of goodwill 
• the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 

that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit and loss 

• taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint ventures, 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future, and 

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
they can be utilised 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the tax 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
that have been substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date Deferred tax balances are not discounted 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income 
statements, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to 
equity In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively 
Further details on deferred tax can be found in note 8 to 
the financial statements 

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 
People working for the Company were employed by Royal Mail 
Group Limited and seconded to the Company until 31 March 
2012 On 1 April 2012 they were transferred to be directly 
employed by the Company Membership of occupational 
pension schemes is open to most permanent UK employees 
of the Company All members of defined benefit schemes are 
contracted out of the earnings-related part of the State 
pension scheme 

The pension assets of the defined benefit schemes are 
measured at fair value Liabilities are measured on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and 
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return 
on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and 
term The resulting defined benefit asset or liability is 
presented separately on the face of the balance sheet Full 
actuarial funding valuations are carried out at intervals not 
normally exceeding three years as determined by the Trustees 
and, actuarial valuations are carried out at each balance sheet 
date and form the basis of the surplus or deficit disclosed 

For defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged to operating 
profit, as part of staff costs, are the current service costs and 
any gains and losses arising from settlements, curtailments 
and past service costs The net difference between the 
interest costs and the expected return on plan assets is 
recognised as net pensions interest in the income statement 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the 
statement of comprehensive income 
Any deferred tax movement associated with the actuarial 
gains and losses is also recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income 

For defined contribution schemes, the Group's contributions 
are charged to operating profit, as part of staff costs, in the 
period to which the contributions relate 

Foreign currencies 
The functional and presentational currency of the Group is 
sterling (f) 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the spot 
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the functional rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date Currently hedge accounting is not applied 
to any monetary assets and liabilities All differences are 
therefore taken to the income statement 
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Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original 
invoice amount less an allowance for any non-collectable 
amounts An estimate for doubtful debts is made when 
collection of the full amount is no longer probable Bad 
debts are written off when identified 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs in relation to the working capital loan facility 
are recognised as an expense when incurred unless they are 
directly attributable to the construction or development of a 
qualifying asset, in which case they are capitalised using the 
weighted average cost of borrowing for the period of 
construction/development 

Government Grants 
Government Grants are shown separately in the income 
statement to match the expenditure to which they relate 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows at an appropriate pre-tax rate 

Financial Instruments 
The classification of financial instruments included on the 
balance sheet is set out below 

Financial assets 
Financial assets are classified into the following categories 
at fair value through the income statement, loans and 
receivables, and available for sale as appropriate based on the 
purpose for which they were required Financial liabilities are 
classified as either Fair value through the income statement 
or as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities — interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 
All loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities — obligations under 
finance leases 
All obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 
are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage 
its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates Such 
derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value 
Hedge accounting has not been claimed for foreign exchange 
derivative instruments 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
The fair value of quoted investments is determined by 
reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance 
sheet date 

Where there is no active market, fair value is determined 
using valuation techniques These include using recent arm's 
length market transactions, reference to the current market 
value of another instrument which is substantially the same, 
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and discounted cash flow analysis and pricing models 
Specifically, in the absence of quoted market prices, derivatives 
are valued by using quoted forward prices for the underlying 
currency and discounted using quoted interest rates Hence 
derivative assets and liabilities are within Level 2 of the fair 
value hierarchy as defined within Ill 7 

For the purposes of disclosing the fair value of investments 
held at amortised cost in the balance sheet, in the absence of 
quoted market prices, fair values are calculated by discounting 
the future cash flows of the financial instrument using quoted 
equivalent interest rates as at close of business on the 
balance sheet date 

Derecognitlon of financial Instruments 
A financial asset or liability is derecognised when the contract 
that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash 
at bank and in hand and short-term deposits (cash 
equivalents) with an original maturity date of three months 
or less In addition the Group uses Money Market funds as 
a readily available source of cash, and these funds are also 
categorised as cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined 
above, net of bank overdrafts Cash equivalents are classified 
as loans and receivables financial instruments 

2 Segmental reporting 

In accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating segments, an operating 
segment is defined as a business activity whose operating 
results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker 
('CODM') and for which discrete information is available 
The Group's CODM is the Executive Committee as defined 
in the Corporate Governance section on page 56 

The CODM has determined the operating segments based 
in the information reviewed by them for the purposes of 
allocating resources and assessing performance Operating 
segments have not been aggregated in order to present 
reportable segments All segmental activities are located 
wholly within the United Kingdom 

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating 
segments based on net revenue This is calculated using 
segmental revenue less the directly attributable costs of 
delivering the service or product The net revenue measure 
excludes the effect of indirect costs and the effects of 
non-recurring expenditure such as redundancy costs and 
asset impairment Interest income and expenditure is not 
allocated to segments as this type of activity is driven by 
the central treasury function 

Assets and liabilities as recognised on the Group balance 
sheet are not considered to be segmental assets or liabilities 
but rather are managed by the Group's central functions The 
information reviewed by the CORM does not include assets 
or liabilities split by segment A description of the activities 
of the business segments is included from page 18 of the 
Business review 

Revenue from a major customer represents approximately 
30% of the Group's total revenue in 2014 This revenue was 
reported within the Mails & Retail segment 
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unn quit Winn il IlliliililIlllIl1lllhlillJliXIiiLiiIiliPiIiiilliil iitllliiilii till.am[nnn..IIInn..gIIIPn:nIiiIIi111111mIIIIIIIlapepnn.nnmrnr11.unnmiI iiIiIIIl 

2014 

' ." Directly 
attributable Net 

Revenue costs revenue 
Em fm fm 

Mails & Retarl 390 (4) 386 

Financial Services 279 (1) 278 

Government Services 146 (30) 116 

Telecoms 124 (78) 46 

Other 40 - 40 

Sub total 979 (113 866 

Network. Subsidy Payment 200 - 200 

Total 1,179 (113) 1,066 

I Imnrmunnnmmmm~mnmllmnmm~nnunlarmnnmmmnmmmmmnmmmmmwlmnmm~nlnmm~nrommmm~mlmmnnmm~nmm~nmmnm.ulunmm~lmmmmnlmnnnmannnnmminnrmnnnnumm~mnwmmtmnnnlmnm 

2013 

Directly 

attobutable Net 
Revenue costs revenue 

£m £m fm 

Mails & Retail 409 (5) 404 

Financial Services 281 (1) 280 

Government Services 164 (30) 134 

Telecoms 129 (85) 44 

Other 41 - 41 

Sub-total 1,024 (121) 903 

Network Subsidy Payment 210 - 210 

Total 1,234 (121) 1,113 

A reconciliation between underlying segment net revenue and profit before taxation 15 provided below 
b.Il.luntttllllrm....."llu llibr....nl.irinrnnmr......lnn ..lO.................lm...illaeb......n......nm....lnn.11l.111111.......11llnin......nllbnli,lenllntn..............lnllllt111111 nrtelllnl Inlrll illll.11l. IlM1.lwsln III.Inn.11alllllln...............b.......... 

2014 2013 
£n fm 

Underlying segment net revenue 1,066 1,113 

Indirect costs (992) (1,051) 

Share of post tax profit from joint ventures and associates 33 32 

Operating profit before exceptional items 107 94 

Operating exceptional items 45 (47) 

Operating profit 152 47 

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 2 

Loss on sale of associate - (30) 

Profit before financing and taxation 155 19 

Finance costs (3) (4) 

Finance income 1 1 

Net pensions interest 5 2 

Profit before taxation 158 18 
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3 Staff costs and numbers 
Employment and related costs were as follows 
IIIIIIIIIIIIItlAl1111111111111111111111111111Y1VI1U11111[:IIIIIIIIIIIUIp IIII111111111111111111111111111111YtlluupnlnlYpipaunnnnnnunnnnpNpnnpgrylaulnnllll1111n NPIII1111IIillu.Nu11111Nllllllllnlrllllllllllllllllllll.It111l ............................,I WIII111 IiiIiilllitltllalll 

2014 2013 

People costs excluding restructuring costs Cr,, fm 

Wages and salaries 208 215 

Social security costs 20 19 

Pension costs (note 18) 27 25 

Total 255 259 

umuunninenmuIneneerieannurll lnnnnnnnunnnnmminNlmmnulmnnmumm~amYl:unnonu1unnllneeriemn.NuwunnulnnniaarimeaYlunuwI Yluutntllnullnnnnnurineulmnnnnnnmm~lnnnmiauuonumitltlnnmm~a11n 

Period end employees Average employees 

2014 2013 2014 2013 

Total employees 7,787 7,886 7,950 7,842 

Total employee numbers can be categorised as follows 
,I,uinuiillilulii1u11n11t11111111111111NI11111111111 uI I lllll1[11[1[01I111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111tl111ll ieNa II I IIIIIII I II II II11111111111111111111Y11111111111 II I I II I I II II II III I I ulu l lul IIIII I I I II II I IIIII II I I I II I I I II II I11i11......IIi111111111............111111II I II mini ul 

2011 

l II11li a 1111111 I ICII 

2013 

Administration 1,691 1,345 

Crown Offices 3,946 4,511 

Supply Chain 1,553 1,585 

Network and Crown transformation programmes 597 445 

Total 7,787 7,886 

4 Operating profit from continuing operations before exceptional items 

Operating profit from continuing operations before exceptional items is stated after charging 

[11111 N II III III I I II II I VII tl I Ill In Iitli lil llli l I II I II I I I I I II II I[I It144 N 11 4 111 11 1111iN I lil lllila I I II 1111111 l I11111111I II 101111 I 1111111111 111e1111I[I I1111N IN I I IIFIO t1111111II I I I11111II Al l nnl1l II II IIIFi II I111111111I I Ilmllll 11111111 nl ottY1 Ntl 111tl11 II I IIYI l Ill Illltll I I I IIIINI I I I Iltllll I I I I IIYY 11111IIIII II I I III 

2014 2013 
Sm Sm 

Subpostmasters' fees 448 478 

Bureau de Change foreign currency exchange losses/(gams) 2 (1) 

Depreciation - - 

Operating lease charges — Land and buildings 19 20 

— Vehicles and equipment 42 62 

Fees payable to the group's auditors for audit and other services £000 £000 

— parent company and group audit 314 331 

— audit related assurance services 40 

— other non-audit services 103 103 
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5 Operating exceptional items 
IIInii111N1uiN1lll0ihiI11111,Iip81v II IIIPIY,arrllrlil l II IIIiht1I Inr111111Ii VIII I IIil111llil III mill I I Iuiililrlrl Ilillru Ilhlllll IINI Illtlililllly Illiipl IIII IIIIIIAIIiililllll III Ilill:i III I11111111i11 RNllill l li IruiNnt11I PI IIIII II pl Iinill lull IIRIIY II NIIniI11II Ipll III II II IIRIPI lirlrlrl [III nil VIII 

2014 2013 
Em Lm 

Government Grant 317 98 

Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment 102 -

Restructurmg 

Business transformation (5) (4) 

Network transformation including subpostmasters compensation (191) (52) 

Crown transformation (9) -

Restructuring - severance (23) (11) 

- other (31) (12) 

Other 

Impairment of intangible assets (note 9) (42) (25) 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 10) (73) (41) 

Total operating exceptional items 45 (47) 

For further information in relation to the Royal Mail Pension page 42 Due to ongoing operational losses (excluding 
Plan amendment refer to note 18 Restructuring costs are Network Subsidy Payment) the carrying value of intangible 
those incurred in order to implement the major transformation assets and all property plant and equipment other than 
programmes primarily the Crown and Network programmes freehold and long leasehold property has been impaired 
which are discussed further in the Financial Review on to the recoverable amount 

6 Directors' emoluments 

The Directors received the following emoluments 
Itt.t.ldttda..tttt..at.tit,ttttttd.tddtddltttl.............dt.tit................1.9...............eill„.......tit,ilia.teat.................tali.tail.lt.tt.tt[til.....Raid,ItdPllnt,I.......all..lnPI1111PI ............. 

t.,td•zaia ItIPItY.....ln...... 2013 
E000 £000 

Emoluments, excluding pension contributions and Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIP) 1,000 11129 

Contributions to pension schemes - 1 

Amounts receivable under LTIP 187 2` 8 

'Figure, include any cash supplements received in Sec of pension 

Directors accruing pension entitlements during the period under 
1[I I I I Ip I I I II I .IIIII lPI I I I I II I I I Il d I l l tl I I I I I II I l I l l IIIII It l itlt l l l I I I I I I II I I I PYtl I II II II I I ItN t ll 1 1 III I [I YI I I I I I II 11191111 t11111I I III I I ql I III I I I I I I I I IIII 1/111111 i l l l l l I I.'l l l[p 1 1 1 1 1 1 tl 111 l I d l Iill I I I I b I II 111111111 i l p I I I II III II I I I I I I I I11111111 H.III ll p l 11111 I II I I I I I II I I II 11111111111Ip Y I II I I II I t p I I II I I 

2014 

I I I I I I ll I IYY l tl I 

2013 

Number Number 

Defined benefit schemes - -

Defined contribution schemes - - 

The highest paid Director received the following emoluments 
IPiIpnY1PPI.P1114..YIN111P911PPI.I.IIIvmtIlnl W91iii111m9gII11P9Y.1111 Wl.rtpl W Pillttllpll4Y.......1.idmget[II.PW...UI.YIRIIn949P11Nu11.m111.IIglp.ptivnllPlidll[dPN.1141119.1P{.Mldlllv11 4 11 9 1111{II[IIIPI.IIpPlidlllltit@P... .................. 

2014 

2013 

£000 

£000 

Emoluments and LTIP, excluding pension contributions but including cash supplements 
received in lieu of pensions 544 698 

Company contributions to pension schemes - 1 
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7 Net finance costs 
[It111111[XI[IIIIIIIXIII.Iv[vIIIII[WIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII [I,EuIIIr nv[II,.tI,llII WN111lIIYIIIIIIIIY1111111111YIIIIIIIIIIXIIIIIIIIU111 WfIf11111WlllnlllptlllllnlltlllllllUY111111tp11111111P11111111111X1![1111W1f111PNI11p111nIIIt1tI1NIYIlllllllllllnlltll11111111111111]IIn111111NN11[tIP1 

2014 2013 
fm £m 

Interest receivable 1 1 

Interest charge, unwinding discount on provisions (1) (1) 

Interest payable on loans (2) (3) 

Total (2) (3) 

8 Taxation 

(a) Taxation gains recognised In the year 
W n1NYnunununuuuuuulmnuumluununlnnnummnnnn[nnuunllnmmuunYlllumtlnnmlNXUllnnnuullnnnuunmrzunnnnnmunuunnnu::ununuunnnlunuulluWnulnnuenumuuuluunuunneluluuuunnuumuunumumllwNl 

2014 2013 
Sin Sri 

Corporation tax credit for year (9) (10) 

Tax under provided in previous years (1) - 

Current tax (10) (10) 

Deferred tax credit relating to the origin and reversal of temporary differences (5) (21) 

Effect of change in tax rate 3 - 

Income tax credit reported in the consolidated income statement (12) (31) 

Deferred income tax of £2 million (2013 £21 million) has been charged to equity relating to actuarial movements in the 
retirement benefit surplus This offsets the deferred tax credit of f2 million (2013 f21 million) that has been reported in 
the consolidated income statement 

(b) Factors affecting current tax credit on profit on ordinary activities 
The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23% (2013 2496) The differences 
are explained below 
11111111111IYI[III........III..........1111II IIIIU11111111111II1111111IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIlllllltlInlp IIIII1111111l Illltltl IIIIIIIIIIIIlNIllIDhI 111111III 111111III 1X[11111 VIIIIII 1111111IIIIIIYIIIIII1[Illp III 111111(IIIIVIIIIIWIIn111.IIVIIIIIII!Ihhhhll III1111111lllIInitNil IIPIII IIIIIIPIII VIIIIII IIII 

2014 2013 
Em £m 

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 158 18 

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax 
in the UK of 23%(201324%) 36 4 

Net decrease in tax charge resulting from recognition of deferred tax assets (41) (35) 

Expenditure disallowable for tax 1 1 

Adjustment in respect of prior period (1) - 

Losses from disposals ineligible for relief - 7 

Effect of group relief surrenders to other companies 1 - 

Associates/joint venture profit after tax included in Group pre-tax profit (8) (8) 

Total current tax (see above) (12) (31) 

(c) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax assets relate to the following 
IIIIIIIIti11tl11I1111111Y11111[1111111111111111t1111Xtlilll'.YNIII IIYIIIIIIIIIIYIIII11111111111111XYIIIIIIIUII[IIRpX1111111pIi11111 W IIYIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIl I[1IIIINIIl1IIlU1n1111n1............I......IIYIIIIIIIIU.........IIII11X.IIlIt11Y11IIIIIIIIIIXIIIIIIIIYIpINXlllllllllllllllllllllnlll[IIIIIIIIIIIII 

BalanCe Sheet Income Statement 

2014 2013 2014 2013 
£m tin Em Lm 

Pensions temporary differences (21) (21) - - 

Losses available for offset against future taxable income 21 21 2 21 

Total deferred tax asset - - 

Income statement 2 21 
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(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges been rolled be sold at their residual value, as it is anticipated 

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of £144 that a capital loss would arise 

million (2013 £190 million), comprising £94 million ,2013 Finance Act 2013 reduced the main rate of corporation tax 
£133 million) relating mainly to fixed asset timing differences, to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and to 20% with effect 
£5 million (2013 £0 million) relating to timing differences from 1 April 2015 Following these changes the deferred 
on provisions and £45 million (2013 £57 million) relating to tax balances were reduced from 23% to 20% The impact 
tax losses that are available to offset against future taxable of this change on deferred tax balances is included in these 
profits The Group has rolled over capital gains of £3 million financial statements 
(2013 £3 million), no tax liability would be expected to 
crystallise should the assets into which the gains have 

9 Intangible assets 
IIAII1111l IIIIIBItlllYlll11111111lltlllllllilllgllitltllgllqllllllltlif Ill1tll111fdlMllitlflgll111glllllqflllllllllltltltlYnlfttllllftllllltl1111111flIIIBIIItltlllHllllllllllllllltliiu1 1111111 1 1 8 111C11111111111111.IIINlltlllttiillllllllitllllllll..11lillltlltltlllllllfllll,Iltllllttllpllllltllltl11111111Y11111 

2014 2013 
Em Em 

Cost 

At 1 April 2013, 26 March 2012 208 183 

Additions 42 25 

Disposals (7) - 

At 30 March 2014,31 March 2013 243 208 

Amortisation and impairment 

At 1 April 2013, 26 March 2012 208 183 

Disposals (7) -

Impairment (see note 5) 42 25 

At 30 March 2014, 31 March 2013 243 208 

Net book value 

At 30 March 2014 31 March 2013 - - 

The above intangible assets relate to software 
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10 Property, plant and equipment 
IIIN,,I,Hl4UIe11i14111[nvRIIR, If1411tIfIlI44In41114tl'IIi I,rIni[4lpIririIIIMIItltillRnt11111RI8511114191141141414[II 4lifl1111111rlr Ii IIVl141t141911FI111.t119III9111191tII941111111...IIIIII11111,91t91 tII lll911114f1191f4[41111194aO44f114,J,,,, 

Land and buildings 
44 IIIIIII9 11 11 1 111tl111111414411I 

Plant Future[ 
Long Short Motor and and 

Freehold leasehold leasehold vehicles machinery equipment Total 
fm fm Em Em Lm Lrn fm 

Cost 

At 1 April 2013 87 18 114 42 1 719 981 

Reclassification (5) - 3 - 2 - 

Additions 20 - 4 7 - 41 72 

Disposals (2) (1) (8) (5) - (23) 139) 

At 30 March 2014 100 17 113 44 1 

— — 

739 1,014 

Depreciation - -- 

At 1 April 2013 77 17 114 42 1 719 970 

Impairment (see note 5) 16 - 7 7 - 43 73 

Disposals (2) (1) (8) (5) - (23) (39) 

At 30 March 2014 91 16 113 44 1 739 1,004 

Net book value 

At 30 March 2014 9 1 - - - - 10 

At 31 March 2013 10 1 - - - - 11 

Depreciation rates are disclosed within accounting policies (note 1) No depreciation is provided on freehold land, which 
represents £3 million (2013 £3 million) of the total cost of properties 
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11 Investments in joint ventures and associates 

The following entities have been included in the consolidated Associates 
financial statements using the equity method During 2012-13, the Group's only associate investment was a 

Joint ventures 
4999% interest (4,999 £001 ordinary A shares) in Midasgrange 
Limited, whose principal activity is the provision of personal 

During 2013-14 and 2012-13, the Group's only joint venture financial products This investment was disposed of during 
investment was a 50% interest (1,000 El ordinary A shares) the year ended 31 March 2013 
in First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited, whose 
principal activity Is the provision of Bureau de Change 
First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited is a company 
registered in the United Kingdom 

nIIIIIIr1111111n1111Y111]rIIIIIIIlY111111111YlllliillW IIIIIIIIYIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIglillllllllllllllitllllllllll111111t1111111111111YIIIIIlllllllllllllllitlllrllll111U.........11ltll11:1ItIIIIII11111111111111111Y1111!l IIIIIIIIIIIIII11111111NIIIIIIIII III11111l II[IIY01111111111111111111111111111111111111tlllllllllll 

Join; 
venture Associate Total 

Em fm Em 

Share of net assets 

Total net investment at 1 April 2013 60 - 60 

Share of post tax pre dividend profit 33 - 33 

Dividend (32) - (32) 

Total net investment at 30 March 2014 61 - 61 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIItIII111111111111YIIIIIFI U:Illlrlllllllllllllllllllllll :IIIiIIIIIIIIII11111Pltltlllnli1111YlllllllllllYlltlYlll1111{IlllltlllllllllllllllillllllllillllilllUlllllllllllllllltlllllllllllllllllllllllll Yll[IYIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIFIi1l~llllllllllllllllllllYllltllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll I IIIIIIIIII Illltl 

Joint venture Associate Total 
tin Em Em 

Share of net assets 

Total net investment at 26 March 2012 67 22 89 

Share of post tax pre dividend profit/(lass) 33 (1) 32 

Investment in associate - 11 11 

Disposal (32) (32) 

Dividend (40) - (40) 

Total net investment at 31 March 2013 60 - 60 

yrlllll.. 1.11111...... ,I[YIII...IMllllllllpllllltllrlllllll111illillllllllllllllllllllllllpl......1111nI1Wi>tlillllln......11llll......11llllllllllllllillli1111III...II1111111111..............iii ..................11lilllllif ......IIIIIIIYIII...IIIIIIIII......IIIItlIII:Illitr1II IIIIIi....III1111......H.......... 

204 2013 

Joint Joint 

venture venture 

Em Em 

Share of assets and liabilities 

Current assets 175 184 

Non-current assets 5 3 

Share of gross assets 180 187 

Current liabilities (119) (127) 

Share of net assets 61 60 

Share of revenue and profit 

Revenue 77 75 

Profit after tax 33 33 
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12 Trade and other receivables 
f 111..InIwll pl111uuunanutuuoallu....-...en:nn..elenitnaetnitaulnmultPllWnnnlln...I11JII Wtm11111tNYYplll[w.IllllllFdllx.tYltftllltllt111Wtltlmtlmtllalmllmmifalalilp YEIIIInItmllllwYmYltltl1Y111I.WYtlYWOLwllmtltlYY1111w11a11f11111tIAIIal11 

2014 2013 
fm Em 

Current 

Trade receivables 54 32 

Prepayments and accrued income 82 71 

Client receivables 158 240 

Other receivables 8 9 

Total 302 352 

Non-current 

Prepayments and accrued income 15 10 

The Group receives and disburses cash on behalf of for During the year £2 million (2013 £2 million) of the 
Government agencies and other clients to customers through provision has been utilised and an additional £3 million 
its branch network Amounts owed from/to Government (2013 f4 million) has been provided for Trade and other 
agencies and other clients are disclosed separately as client receivables of £18 million (2013 £8 million) were past due 
receivables (as above) and client payables (see note 14) but not impaired The aging analysis of the past due amounts 

As at 30 March 2014 trade and other receivables of £17 are as follows 

million (2013 £16 million) were impaired and fully provided 
Ilaaa II Iltllll IIIIIIIp11111 1MIN IIIIIIIIII IlwllalmMa,uul I unlawnIIII1alalllllglllllttlwiYlIllnnla IIIIIIItl1111mnI1nlpnYnlIgmOtl IlllpulhaatlY111atlaI11111Yp111I11a11llltlllllnlllllplallll IIIilalIIIIn111n11p1agmltlml Ia1W1aatl1111111IlminI:nutIInII 

2014 2013 
Em Em 

Provided for or not yet overdue 36 24 

Past due not more than one month 10 7 

Past due more than one month and not more than two months 2 1 

Past due more than two months 6 

total 54 32 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is not materially different from the carrying value 

13 Cash and cash equivalents 
IlVlmlllllltlllalallllllllm,IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIYIf111hm11P111111IIIIIII111IIIIIIIIIIIII[111111 nlllllllllf..tllllllllafllll..I II.II I I. I n IlanI Ill llnlllnlna II inn a n I....I1..... IIl1a... I I II I Il11tII IIII.III1.1111IIIIa1I I I II 1111111 I11imf-.,.111111II IIIIIklll1111111111111111111111111m111111111 

2014 2013 

Em Em 

Cash in the Post Office Limited network 708 879 

Short-term bank deposits 30 6 

Money market fund investments - 86 

Total cash and cash equivalents 738 971 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts held physically Where Interest is earned it is at a floating or short-term 
in cash, cash deposits available on demand or forthree months fixed rate The fair value of cash and cash equivalents Is 
or less For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash not materially different from the carrying value 
flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of £738 million 
defined above, net of a bank overdraft of £50 million which 
is disclosed in note 14 
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14 Trade and other payables 

2014 2013 
Cm Lm 

Current 

Bank overdraft 50 - 

Trade payables 55 49 

Accruals and deferred income 133 110 

Advance customer payments 37 50 

Social security 14 10 

Client payables 437 528 

Capital payables 31 18 

Business transformation 10 7 

Government Grant deferred income - 102 

Total 767 874 

Non-current 

Other payables 28 24 

Of the £215 million (2013 £200 million) Government Grant £102 million) has been deferred into the balance sheet as 
received, £215 million (2013 £98 million) has been allocated disclosed above The fair value of trade and other payables 
against income statement expenditure in accordance with the is not materially different from the carrying value 
terms and conditions of the Grant The rernaming f nil (2013 

15 Financial liabilities - interest bearing loans and borrowings 
icon,onunn.uu.lee[mnevenvuunn............Inc.......... nae........lin...4......... 11nli ....................................nl......n..Ov.i................1911.nn...........A.....i............1aaa...............ii.........L.1ItlBln... ....Ne.ee...n........ u.uo 

2014 2013 
fm £m

Department of Business, Innovation & Skills loans drawn down - 291 

The loans under the facility are short dated on a programme 
of liquidity management and mature on average 1 day after 
the year end (2013 1 day) The fair value of borrowings is 
not materially different from the carrying value On maturity 
it is expected that further loans will be drawn down under 
this facility, which expires in 2018 The undrawn committed 
facility, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been 
met at the balance sheet date is £1,150 million (2013 £859 
million) The average interest rate on the drawn dawn loans 
is 10% (2013 1 0%) 

The facility is currently restricted to funding the cash and 
near cash items held within the Post Office Limited network 

The facility (including drawn down loans) is secured by a 
floating charge over all assets of Post Office Limited and a 
negative pledge over cash and near cash items The negative 
pledge is an agreement not to grant security over the assets 
or to set up a vehicle that has the same effect 
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16 Provisions 
Illplllllllallllltltrlllllp911111111tIIIppa111111nI1111111R1111111pllllllllp111!lllllalllllllipllelllpll D IIIIII....... all....... 

Crown Conversions 
project Network transformation Other Total 

Em Em Em Em 

At 1 April 2013 7 10 9 26 

Charged in operating exceptional 
items (2) 93 27 118 

Charged in operating costs - - 6 6 

Utilisation (3) (52) (17) (72) 

At 30 March 2014 2 51 25 715 

Disclosed as 

Current 2 48 20 70 

Non-current - 3 5 8 

2 51 25 78 

The Crown Conversions project relates to past franchising Other provisions of £25 million (2013 £9 million) include 
of Crown offices and onerous property lease provisions are property contracts, onerous lease obligations and personal 
expected to be utilised within four years injury claims 

The Network Transformation provision relates to the major 
transformation programme which is discussed further in the 
Financial Review on page 42 

17 Financial assets and liabilities 

The Group's financial assets and liabilities are shown in the table below 
paIIIIInINalllllllplllllllllnllllllppYlltnarll IIIna IIYYlllllllllllllltlllnit........ elpllllllilllilltlllplI ltlllll nllllliplllllllp nlalpallllllllalll.11llllllllllllpllllllallllllllllllllllinitllnlitppllllllYllpYIIIIIIIaatnnatlllllll11111YIlYbI111111111111YlYlllllaltlllllllplllllll 

2014 2013 

Non Non 
Current current Total Current current Total 

Em Em Em fm Em Em 

Cash and cash equivalents 738 - 738 971 - 971 

Derivative assets - - - 1 - 1 

Bank overdraft (50) - (50) - - -

BIS loan - - - (291) - (291) 

Finance leases obligations (3) - (3) (3) (4) (7) 

Total financial assets/liabilities) 685 - 685 678 (41 674 

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise Interest rate risk 
cash, money market liquidity investments, loans and finance The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest 
leases The Group has various other financial instruments rates relates to the Group's debt obligations and interest 
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise bearing financial assets The BIS loans to Post Office Limited 
directly from operations are disclosed further in notes 12 of End (2013 £291 million) are at short-dated fixed interest 
and 14 rates — average maturity I day (2013 average 1 day) On 

The Group enters into derivative transactions, which create maturity it is expected that further loans will be drawn down 

derivative assets and liabilities, principally forward currency under this facility which expires in 2018 The total interest 

contracts The purpose is to manage the currency risks bearing financial liabilities of the Group of £20 million (2013 

arising from the Group's operations assets of £92 million) are at short-dated fixed or variable 
interest rates 

The main risks arising from the Group's financial assets 
and liabilities are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign The table below sets out the carrying amount by maturity of 

currency risk and credit risk The Board reviews and agrees the Group's financial instruments that are exposed to interest 

policies for managing each of these risks and they are rate risk 

summarised opposite 
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Financial year ended 30 March 2014 
Ia IIIallilnllllnlll lr11191lill lillnlill... ...............mill............ n Illy......... nllli111111nrY1111lpli.lIp..In........nl.........................Ipllltlllpli-I........11lnrinitltllnlllllpllnlll{fIMll~tlnllllllnllnlllnl....I...........pillllll11Ilnlin11111..... it... 

Average within 12 2-5 More than 
effective t year years years 5 years Total 

Interest rate fm fm fm in fm 

Fixed rate 

Short-term bark deposdst(overdrafts) 05 (20) - - - (20) 

BIS loan 10 - - - - - 

Obligations under finance leases 115 (3) - - - (3) 

Total (23) - - - (23) 

Floating rate 

Money market fund investments 04 - - - - - 

Non-interest bearing 

Cash in Post Office network - 708 - - 708 

Net total financial assets 685 - - - 685 

Financial year ended 31 March 2013 
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIInIIIIIIpp111111111nlllllllllllilll[IrrrlPllll plllllllitlllllllllllllllllllnl11 4 1 1 1 111nlllllllalllllpinninllnnlllll[finllllllllYllllllllllalhllihlllplllllilllf 1111.plltilllllllllllllllllip]IIIIIIIIInallpliptlplllllplhllllll1IIiinIi......nl.....Ill l pnp...mu,Ylrlrl lllll 

Average 
effe[nve Within 1 2 5-5 More than 

Interest rate 1 year years years 5 years Total 
% fm fm in fm fm 

Fixed rate

Short-term bank deposits 05 6 - - 6 

BiS loan 10 (291) - - - (291) 

Obligations under finance leases 100 (3) (4) - - (7) 

Total (288) (4) - - (292) 

Floating rate 

Money market fund Investments 05 86 - - - 86 

Non-interest bearing 

Cash in Post Office network - 879 - - - 879 

Derivative assets - 1 - - - 1 

Total 880 - - 880 

Net total financial assets/Urabilities) 678 (4) - - 674 

Foreign currency risk The Group aims to minimise its financial credit risk through 
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk resulting from the application of risk management policies approved by the 
balances held to operate Bureau de Change services The Board Counterparties are limited to major banks and financial 
Group's foreign currency risk management objective is to institutions The policy restricts the exposure to any one 
minimise the impact on the Income Statement of fluctuations counterparty by setting appropriate credit limits 
in the exchange rates The Group arms to hedge 90% of Business credit risk is monitored centrally The individual 
significant forecast future currency balances (principally but relationshipsand the contracts attached to them are managed 
not restricted to US dollar and Euro) to match the anticipated by dedicated teams and procedures are in place to monitor any 
holding period of the currency The Group hedges its foreign concentrations of credit risk The level of bad debt incurred for 
currency risk principally through external forward foreign the Group is less than 2% (2013 less than 1%) of turnover 
currency contracts with a number of providers including 
First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited Capital management 

The Group's objectives when managing capital (defined as 
Credit risk the net of borrowings and amounts due underfinance leases 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default and cash and cash equivalents excluding cash in the Post 
on Its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Office Network) are to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
the Group Financial credit risk arises from cash balances going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure 
(including bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) held in order to support the business and maximise stakeholder 
by the Group and business credit risk arises from exposures value In managing the Group's capital levels the Board and 
to customers Business risk includes commissions receivable the Executive Committee regularly monitor the level of debt 
and client related settlements for amounts paid out of the in the Group, the working capital requirements and the 
Post Office network on their behalf forecast cash flows The Board and Executive Committee 

plan accordingly following this review process in order to 
meet the Group's capital management objectives 
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Liquidity risk 
The Group's primary objective is to ensure that the Group 
has sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due This is achieved by aligning short-term 
investments and borrowing facilities with forecast cash flows 
Typical short-term investments include short-term bank 
deposits with approved counterparties Borrowing facilities 
are regularly reviewed to ensure continuity of funding The 
unused facility for the Group of £1,150 million (2013 £859 
million) expires in 2018 
II I I:I II loll ~ i 11 l l:ll fl l I llii l l ll.I 1111I I Ill l lltl ltlll l lnlllbll tlnllm1311pamli llmm ll llllllplll:1111111 1 11 1 9 111 1 1 n 1plln l l llnlbl llllp 

Sensitivity 
As a result of the mix of fixed and variable rate financial 
instruments and the currency hedge programmes in place, 
the Group has no material exposure to risk from interest 
rate or exchange rate prices 

The tables below set out the gross (undiscounted) contractual 
cash flows of the Group's financial liabilities For loans and 
finance leases, these cash flows represent the undiscounted 
total amounts payable including interest 

nu u n n m ul xauu l I unn l uu I nn: n u: un I n n m ~ n ~ u n n n l n m bun I I tl n l n u u rim n lum n n 1r m m ~ nu m 1 n n b n l n o uue n l u m n u n m 

Finance 
BPS loan lease Total 

fm fm fm 

Amounts falling due in 

One year orless - (3) (3) 

More than 1 year but not more than 2 years - - - 

More than 2 years but not more than 5 years - - -

More than 5 years - - -

Total (3) (3) 

IbmI1I1111I1111I I I111111111I I IIII1111111.I011111111nl l l nllll ll............11llll 1 1 11 lll......l lib ......... .......... 11 l lllllll411I IIll............ p.................. l...11m ..... 1 m11111111tl1l l 11 l Illll l lrl............11111111111..,I I I,Il.tlbl11111111111I I Ilillll l l l.m1u 111ntl nI1tlII1 tII1111 11i11111 

2013 

Finance 
815 loan lease Total 

£m fm fm 

Amounts falling due in 

One year or less 291 4 295 

More than 1 year but not more than 2 years - 4 4 

More than 2 years but not more than 5 years - - - 

More than 5 years .~,...w,....,~... .~ - - - 

Total 291 8 299 
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18 Penstons 

The disclosures in this note relating to the year ended 
30 March 2014 and the comparatives for the year ended 
31 March 2013 reflect the Post Office Limited sectionalised 
RMPP scheme which is independently operated by the Group 
and the approximate 7% share of the RMSEPP scheme Royal 
Mail Group Limited is the principal employer in Royal Mail 
Senior Executive Pension Plan (RMSEPPI and Post Office 
Limited became a participating employer with effect from 
1 April 2012 

During the year there was a consultation exercise with 
members of the defined benefit Royal Mail Pension Plan on 
proposed changes to the terms These changes were agreed 
15 October 2013 and effective from I April 2014 The key 
change was to the definition of pensionable pay which broadly 

will increase in line with RPI (capped at 5%) in future 
regardless of actual pay growth The changes have resulted 
in a one-off exceptional gain of 1102 million 

AS 19R has been applied retrospectively from 26 March 
2012 Expected returns on plan assets of defined benefit 
plans are not recognised in profit or loss Interest on net 
defined benefit surplus is recognised in profit or loss, 
calculated using the discount rate used to measure the 
net pension surplus The impact of transition to IAS 19R 
retrospectively is not material to the Group, and therefore 
no restatement has been required 

The disclosures in this note show how the value of the assets 
and liabilities have been calculated at the balance sheet date 

The Group participates in pension schernes as detailed below 

nn..n.1" 1""uen..n[....e.e....n..m..qnnune.nm..nl....mmmunv,.emnoo............m.m...e.......,n.eeln..iunn.eun............... nnP.l4...............un.meee[ap..........uu.wm nnnmmlu..... 

Name Eligibility 

Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) UK employees Defined benefit 

Royal Mail Senior Executive Pension Plan (RMSEPP; 

Royal Mail Defined Contribution Plan (RMDCP) 

Defined Contribution 

The charge in the income statement for the defined 
contribution schemes and the Group contributions to these 
schemes was £2 million (2013 11 million) during the year 
A new defined contribution plan (RMDC°) was launched in 
April 2009 New recruits joining from 31 March 2008 are 
able to begin paying contributions to the new plan after 
they have worked for the Group for a year 

Defined Benefit 
Both RMPP and RMSEPP are funded by the payment of 
contributions to separate trustee administered funds The 
latest full actuarial funding valuation of RMPP was carried 
out as at 1 April 2012 using the projected unit method For 
RMPP this valuation was concluded at £135 million surplus 
The latest full actuarial funding valuation of RMSEPP was 
carried out as at 31 March 2012 using the projected unit 
method For 1051% of the RMSEPP plan, the valuation was 
concluded at f83 million deficit RMPP includes sections 
A, B and C each with different terms and conditions 

• Section A is for members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined before 1 December 1971, 
Section B is fcr members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined after 1 December 1971 and before 1 April 
1987 or to members of Section A who chose to receive 
Section B benefits, 

• Section C is for members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined after 1 April 1987 and before 1 April 2008 

A series of changes to RMPP and RMSEPP began to take 
effect on 1 April 2008 The changes encompassed 

• the Plans closed to new members from 31 March 2006, 
• all pensions and benefits earned before 1 April 2008 

are still linked to final salary at the time of retirement, 
• from 1 April 2008, defined benefits building up for 

employee members of the Plan are earned on a career 
salary basis, 

UK senior executives Defined benefit 

UK employees Defined contribution 

• employees can continue to take their pension on reaching 
60 but the normal retirement age increased to 65 for 
benefits earned from 1 April 2010, 
from 1 April 2010 it is possible to draw pension earned 
before the change to normal retirement age at 55, and 
continue working while still contributing to the Pension Plan 
until the maximum level of benefits has been reached, and 

• RMSEPP was closed to future accruals on 31 December 2012 

Payment of £21 million (2013 £23 million) was made by the 
Group during the year in respect of regular future service 
contributions, nearly all relating to RMPP The regular future 
service contributions for RMPP, expressec as a percentage 
of pensionable pay, has remained at 171% (2013 171%), 
effective from April 2010 This rate is not expected to change 
materially during 2014-15 For RMSEPP, these contributions 
have remained at 35 9% (2013 35 9%) until its closure 

The Group pays 7% of the total deficit payment required 
to fund the deficit in RMSEPP and a payment of £1 million 
(2013 £2 million) was made by the Group during the year 
No RMPP deficit payments were made during 2012-13 or 
2013-14 For RMSEPP, deficit recovery payments will be £1 
million per annum, from 1 April 2010 to 31 January 2024 

A current liability of fnrl (2013 £nil) has been recognised 
for payments to the pension schemes relating to redundancy 
During the year, payments of fl million (2013 £2 million) 
relating to redundancy were made 

The weighted average duration of the RMPP fund is 28 years, 
and for the RMSEPP fund is 20 years Over the next fi nancial 
reporting period to 29 March 2015 it is expected that employer 
contributions to the plans will be £21 million and £1 million 
for RMPP and RMSEPP respectively 

The following disclosures relate to the gains/losses and 
surplus/deficit in the scheme recognised for RMPP and 
RMSEPP defined benefit plans in the fi nancial statements 
of the Group 
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a) Major long-term assumptions the assumptions adopted Small changes in these assumptions 

The size of the RMPP pension surplus, which is large in the \ could have a significant impact on the surplus and overall 

context of the Group and its fi nances, is materially sensitive to income statement charge The major long-term assumptions 
in relation to both RMPP and RMSEPP were 

41 30 At 31 
March 2014 March 2013 

%pa %pa 

Rate of increase in salaries 3 2 4 3 

Rate of pension increases - RMPP sections A/B 2 3 2 3 

Rate of pension increases - RMPP section C 32 32 

Rate of pensions increases - RMSEPP members transferred from Section A or B of RMPP 24 33 

Rate of pension increases - RMSEPP all other members 3 3 3 2 

Rate of increase for deferred pensions - RMSEPP members transferred from Section A or B of RMPP 24 33 

Rate of nrrease for deferred pensions 23 2 3 

Discount rate 45 48 

Inflation assumption (RPI) - RMPP 33 3 3 

Inflation assumption (CP1) - RMPP 23 2 3 

Inflation assumption (RPI) - RMSEPP 34 33 

Inflation assumption ((PI) - RMSEPP 24 2 3 

In June 2010, Government announced that it was intending 
to change the inflation measure used to determine statutory 
minimum indexation in deferment and in payment from RPI 
to CPI from April 2011 Where relevant, the inflation 
assumption has changed from RPI to CPI 

The ultimate cost of the RMPP plan to the company will 
depend upon future events rather than the assumptions 
made The assumptions made may not be borne out in 
practice and as such the cost of the plan may be higher 
(or lower) than disclosed 

In common with other defined benefit schemes, the main 
risk in relation to the arrangements is the value of the 
assets does not keep pace with the increase in the value 
of the liabilities This can arise for many reasons, but the 
most significant risks are as follows 

Investment risk 
If the assets of the arrangements fall short of expectations, 
this will lead to a decrease in the funded status 

Asset volati lity 
The arrangements hold return seeking assets (including 
equities and property) which are expected to outperform 
corporate bonds in the long term but give exposure to 
volatility and risk in the short term RMPP does, however, 
invest in liability driven investment (LDI) assets which 
mitigates the impact of interest rate and inflation volatility 
on the funded status 
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Inflation risk 
Higher inflation rates than expected will act to increase the 
plan liabilities as benefits will increase to a higher level than 
assumed The arrangements have a maximum pension 
increase (generally .5% per annum) written into the rules 
which limits the increase for many benefits, so limiting the 
impact of high inflation This includes pensionable pay in 
RMPP, which was amended with effect from 1 April 2014 
In addition, the arrangement holds assets that increase in 
value as price inflation expectations rise, so mitigating the 
impact of rising inflation expectations These assets include 
LDI assets in respect of RMPP 

Changes in bond yields 
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the plan 
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase 
to the value of the bond holdings and, to some extent, the 
LDI assets 

Pensioner longevity 
If members live longer than expected. the liabilities would 
increase because pensions would be paid for a longer time 

Liabilities accrued in the Royal Mail Pension Plan to 31 March 
2012 were transferred to the Royal Mail Statutory Pension 
Scheme These liabilities are no longer an obligation of the 
company and consequently the transfer resulted in a 
significant removal of pension risk from the company 
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The following table shows the potential impact on the RMPP assets and pension surplus of changes in key assumptions 
I pil.11t118.It111111.9i1181 q.11I%pB188tlI4.eppp1.118111Nplliltl1111818®Itgipllgl,Iell....Alipp.pllplld[>fllAltpnlitl[I[p111[IIIIIIIIp111111119Bplllpllipppllif[IIIIIIIIbAll9tllilitltpl pllAlltllgpol GlntIIB1911tltl Glal[IlUddl[1,hh11[dll p111Bltillltllltltptll[Blltpptlp[I[ll[ithli 

2014 2013 
Em fm 

Changes in RN and CPI inflation of+01%pa (3) (4) 

Changes in discount rate of +01% pa 3 4 

Changes in real salary growth of +01% pa (1) i6) 

Changes in CPI assumptions of +01% pa (1) (1) 

An additional 1 year life expectancy (3) ti4) 

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared using projected Mortality 
benefit cash flows as at the latest full actuarial valuation of The mortality assumptions for the RMPP sectionalised 
the plan The same method was applied as at the previous scheme are based on the latest self administered pension 
reporting date The accuracy of this method is limited by scheme (SAPS) mortality tables with appropriate scaling 
the extent to which the profiles of the plan cash flows have factors (106% for male pensioners and 101% for female 
changed since those valuations although any change is pensioners) For future Improvements the assumptions 
not expected to be material in the context of the above allow for 'medium cohort projections with a 1 25% floor 
sensitivity analysis These are detailed below 
Idllvauu.11dmtbnutlIII,levnunuulnunnvurtnpneunwupntn Gptpl101alllllllltll Gll Blll[p IIIIGdi1IIGGllpltll.Iipollalt111111.111IIIIllllliillu11111tlelllamf namtepuuumeuu11111vumuuwnaunuunnnul111nnmunwa IIpd11,1Iumu.luunpnNlgi 

2014 2013 

Average expected life expectancy from age 60 

For a current 60-year-old male RMPP member 26 years 26 years 

For a current 60-year-old female RMPP member 29 years 29 years 

For a current 40-year-old male RMPP member 29 years 29 years 

For a current 40-year-old female RMPP member 32 years 32 years 

b) Plans' assets 

The assets in the plans for the Group were 

1 8 11 11 11111 111 11 GIIpI lliplil ll piq tl ll1i1111111.111{IIIIIII I IIII111111 pI11t11 6 1 11111 1111111 11t1 1 1111 1 1 0[til91tII1.I11i1111111 {I II1111111111111 II IFII I III I p IIIlpIll13I11.1111I pllillf 111llA111111111 m 1111111 %11111 I I.ISi11111t11n 1441111111111111111011lllidl111111.11.1l11.1411lilll.ltlll llill111l l llil 11811 

Market value Market value 
2014 2013 

im Em 

Sectionalised RMPP 

UK equities 1 2 

Overseas equities 18 27 

Government bonds - 2 

Corporate bonds 118 134 

Property 5 -

Cash and cash equivalents 38 69 

Other assets* 80 9 

Fair value of RMPP assets 260 243 

Present value of RMPP liabilities (90) (144) 

Surplus in plan before asset ceiling adjustment 170 99 

Less effect of asset ceiling (23) (3) 

Surplus in plan after asset ceiling adjustment 147 96 

'Other assets include a diverse range of managed funds which include investment in real estate, worldwide equities and emerging deb; 
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Market value Market value 
2014 2013 

Em fm 

Share of RMSEPP 

UK equities 1 4 

Overseas equities 9 6 

Government bonds - - 

Corporate bonds 13 12 

Property 2 1 

Other assets 1 2 

Fair value of share in plan assets for RMSEPP 26 25 

Present value of share in plan liabilities for RMSEPP (24) (24) 

Surplus in plan fur the share of RMSEPP before asset ceiling adjustment 2 1 

Less effect of asset ceiling (1) - 

Surplus in plan for share of RMSEPP after asset ceiling adjustment 1 1 

A retirement benefit surplus of £148 million is disclosed on the There is no element of the above present value of liabilities 
balance sheet, representing the surplus in plans of £170 million that arises from plans that are wholly unfunded 
and £2 million for RMPP and RMSEPP respectively, and net The major categories of RMPP plan assets as a percentage 
of tax of £24 million at a rate of 35% on the element of the of total plan assets are as follows 
surplus which is recoverable through a refund from the plans 

tlllllllllf[unvvpinlf ptlllllllluunpllllutlllitlll[IItpRI11111AIpIP11111114111PI1111111Y1111Piluluupilll1111111111p111111u I111111up1uplpRllnlitlulAl111ttlItl1Y11AInippAlltlltlitll11111utIII11111ein II111111111111tItl111111111UI1YI1111111111nIluII111111p111YIIII1111111111Y111[IIH 

2014 2013 
96 96

Securities with quoted price in an active market 

UK equities - 1 

Overseas equities 7 11 

Government bonds - 1 

Corporate bonds 45 55 

Property 2 -

Cash and cash equivalents 15 28 

Other assets 31 4 

Total quoted securities 100 100 

c) Movement in plans' assets and liabilities 
Changes in the fair value of the plans' assets are analysed as follows 
IIIAlllllllllilllllllilit IliBllllllllllllllllllllllltl11811plllllllllll1111 1 1 6 11111tl11111111111innRIIIi11811A1911IIIIIIIIiIllllllilllllltlllipllpllllllllt:111 11 8 111It1611111111IllllllllllllllplllllllYtlllllllllllllllll1111n1111111lIIIIIIIIIt1lYllllllll11111[AB[itlllltllllll1111nI1Y11tIip1A118111111111111111 

5edlonahsed IiMPP 2014 
Em 

Sectlonallsed iMPP 2013 
Em 

Assets 

Assets in sectionalised RMPP at beginning of period 243 2,108 

Transfer of pension assets to Government - (1,953) 

Contributions paid 22 25 

Employee contributions paid 8 8 

Finance income 12 11 

Actuarial (Bosses)/gains (24) 46 

Benefits paid to members (1) (2) 

Assets in sectionalised RMPP at end of period 260 243 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

IIIII}I1lnlillllllliltlllllglllf InlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIItatlII11111111111111gtlIII111111111Ultiltlllal11l11tII>mlillitlllll1111111111111:Unultaninllllllllill[:In1111IIi1IUlUUlnnnlllllllnnlullliglll,InlulllU,....®1......1111111.11lellUlUUII,IIIIUIinIllUlf,lallUrttlrrlllllllllll,III11 

Share of RMSEPP 2014 
Ilnnl 

Share of RMSEPP 2013 
Em Em 

Assets 

Share of assets in RMSEPP at beginning of period 25 21 

Contributions paid 1 2 

Movement in contributions accrued - - 

Employee contributions paid _ _ 

Finance income 1 1 

Actuarial gains - 1 

Benefits paid to members (1) - 

Share of assets in RMSEPP at end of period 26 25 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are analysed as follows 
1UIU11, IUnIni11u111111ptIilUniUl111iFu1Unilp1, lln111U111U1ti1UII,111......q1, 1111111111......,11111......tpMIIIIIIIIIIIIU ..................a.........IIIIIUIIIgllll. ..........111111,.III111..... iR111UIIl11N111111................I........p......l...11llnUll 

Section ah sed RMPP 2014 
I,II111111Un1111UUU1I11,1p Ilia 

Sectionalised RMPP 2013 
fm £m 

Liabilities 

Liabilities in sectionalised RMPP at beginning of period (144) (2,313) 

Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment 102 - 

Transfer of pension liabilities to Government - 2,239 

Current service cost (25) (24) 

Curtailment costs- (1) (2) 

Finance cost (7) (9) 

Employee contributions (8) (B) 

Actuarial loss (8) (29) 

Benefits paid 1 2 

Liabilities in sectionalised RMPP at end of period (90) (144) 

e 11111,1111F1IlrllllllllllUIUII IltIIIIIIIIIipll,ll IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII,IIPiUIIIIIIIIII PillIIIIIIIIp1111IIIIIIIflIi11111UIIIIU,IUIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIYIIr.IIIIIIn VIIIitIIIIIIt Ifl1111111IIIIIIIIIIIIIIrlIINllplllllllllllltlUllh IIIIIIIIIIIIII UII:111it illllpppllliill11111111n111111IIIIIIIIIII111111111,1IIIOlailill 

Share of RMSEPP 2014 Share of RMSEPP 2013 
fin £m 

liabilities 

Share of liabilities in RMSEPP plans at beginning of period (24) (22) 

Current service cost - - 

Curtailment costs" -

Finance cost (1) (1) 

Employee contributions -

Actuarial gain/(loss) (1) 

Benefits paid 1 - 

Share of liabilities in RMSEPP at end of period (24) (24) 

`the curtailment costs in the income statement are recognised on a consistent basis with the associated compensation costs Estimates of both are included 
Inc enampie In any redundancy provrslons raised The curtallrnent costs above represent the costs associated with those people paid compensation in respect 
of redundancy during the accounting period Such payments may occur In an accounting period subsequent to the recognition of costs in the income statement 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

d) Recognised charges 
An analysis of the separate components of the amounts recognised in the performance statements of the Group is as follows 

nnnan mx.nnmxm nmm~mmunonnxnmxmnaaarn x um x,muuuxmnrmm~ n m xn mx a®nnnxunriixmuuwmm imumnm nuunnnanwm nuunuxr.nx r, rmn mnunnuwnuumuuurrixnuunwwmummn 

sectionalised RMPF 2014 

uux n n maimanuauannraxnr 

Sectionalised RMPP 2013 
Em Em 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the income statement 

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit before exceptional items 

Current service cost 25 24 

Total charge to operating profit before exceptional items 

Analysis of amounts (credited)/charged to operating exceptional items 

Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment (102) -

Loss due to curtailments 1 2 

Total (credit)/charge to operating profit (76) 26 

Analysis of amounts charged/(credited} to net pensions interest 

Interest or plan liabilities 7 9 

Interest income on plan assets (12) (11) 

Net pensions credit to financing (5) (2) 

Net (creditllcharge to the income statement before deduction for tax (81) 24 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of changes in equity 

Transfer of pension liabilities to Government - 2,239 

Transfer of pension assets to Government - (1,953) 

Gain on transfer to Government - 286 

Total gains recognised in the statement of changes in equity - 286 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 

Actual return on plan assets (12) 57 

Less expected interest income on plan assets (12) (11) 

Less taxation on surplus recoverable through plan refunds (20) (3) 

Actuarial (losses)/gains on assets (all experience adjustments) (44) 43 

Experience adjustments on liabilities - (20) 

Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions on liabilities (8) (9) 

Actuarial losses on liabilities (8) (29) 

Total actuarial (losses)/gams recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income (52) 14 

19 Called up share capital 

2014 2013 
£ E 

Authorised 

Ordinary shares of £1 each 51,000 51,000 

Total 51,000 51,000 

Allotted and issued 

Ordinary shares of £1 each 50,003 50,003 

Total 50,003 50,003 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

20 Commitments 

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided in the The Group is committed to the following minimum lease 
financial statements amount to £68 million (2013 £48 million) 
IHIIIUII1PP11181P4RBIfPSIna{IIa111tptlItlSIPlI4PIPPttl1111tPIJI111111Pllllll[tll.a116Pitllttt111MIPl[IntlltllllPlPlhllliSYltltPltltldltlllltlPP11111tl8H4tl111PlItllftlMlallbl111lP 

payments under non-cancellable operating leases 
WPHIY IIPIta 1-th1111111a11t"11tl11eI 11114411111 k11111PYtltlP}tP]ItlItP11111tllilllrltlbl 

Land and huddmgs IT equipment 

2014 2013 2014 2013 
On In, Lm Lm 

Within one year 20 16 15 

Between one and five years 45 42 - 

Beyond five years 31 38 - - 

Total 96 96 - 15 

21 Finance lease liabilities 
I I I t4I Hkl 1 1 1 1 1511 l:l 1 1 ll i[111 1 1 1 8 111 1 11YI111114111[I 1 1 1 1 1 1 YI I I I I It Il i l n 1 8 111 1 1 11:1111 4 111 111 . P I I I I I I I I III I I I II I I4 [I b I I I I IIa111111111111111111 all {YI I I I I I f I I 11111111111111111111 111111111111111111111111111111 n Ii inl l l l l i f 111111 p I I P I I I I P11 Pi 111 tI1111111111111P1 l l l l l l l u l {tl i t f11111111111111111111111111111111111111 

2014 

2013 

Present Present 
value value 

of minimum of minimum 
Minimum lease Minimum lease 
payments payments payments payments 

Em fm Em Lm 

Within one year 3 3 4 3 

Between one and five years - - 4 4 

Total minimum lease payments 3 3 8 7 

Less amounts representing finance charges - - (1) -

Present value of minimum lease payments 3 3 7 7 

Of which 

Current 3 3 3 3 

Noncurrent - - 4 4 

The aggregate fi nance charges allocated for the period in The Group has fi nance lease contracts for equipment 
respect of finance leases was £470,680 (2013 £738,859) The leases have no terms for renewal, purchase options or 
The fair value of finance lease liabilities is not materially escalation clauses and there are no restrictions concerning 
different from the carrying value dividends, borrowings or additional leases The leases have 

an average term of six years 

22 

Related party disclosures 

Joint venture 

The following company is a joint venture of the Group 
1tln HInIIRltIItillle1... mall............. [t1[11a1111101P[nenln1111111111[IHP11[In1I4IlIn11111.1111.Ip1!1411141!1411141111tItI4ln.Hennfllmlb111[41141t.If111Ht111111aIIIIlP.....IItttlIIP...!1111[IPIIISI:I.........tt........114 ..............ItfImilutIl1141.........tu Ia II 

Company Country of incorporation 95 Holding Principal activities 

First Rate Exchange Services 
Holdings Limited United Kingdom 50 Bureau de Change 

Associates 

The following company was an associate of Post Office Limited during the prior year The Group's interest was disposed of in 
September 2012 
ntnertetatnuanalve[u4tenetepavetIPp1alau4a1[IannuPnpI4auetnanaInvepeuePuanvinitlp1111paPIttIS SlllnnPnmaane1tv1aminustbitp 

Company Country of incorporation 
ne1pnpnu11ntuanxaeaptenenin11PIniSPinv{e4tepI1illePaunpie1I>taennnepppvvu 1..[tttntttttatetnt[IvI[pnetttaIIn aatt 

%Holding Principal activities 

Midasgrange Limited United Kingdom 50 Financial services 

All shareholdings are equity shares 
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Related party transactions 
During the year the Group entered into transactions with and the balances outstanding at the financial year end were 
the following related parties The transactions were in the as follows 
ordinary course of business The transactions entered into 
IIIgtYIII III.IIII11111r.IIIlqlql..IIVIIIIIIII.YIIII11YI11IIIVIII.....111111111IIIYI.IY111VIIIII..r...IIIIIYIIII...II.Iq.IIIIYYIIlIIIII{.I11111YYIIYIIYIYIlIIIY 11111110 u.nt11fYllII11YY1{Wg111111I111111I11111I IIfq.1111..t111illr IIIII1,11YIg11I111.,IaII 

Amounts owed from 
I1111111111111IIIIIltlll11111 

Amounts owed to 
Sales/recharges to Purchases/recharges related party Including related party including 

related party from related party outstanding loans ovtstandrng loans 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 
Lie £m £m Em £m Em £m Em 

Royal Mail plc 356 371 40 37 29 -- 50 4 

Romeo Limited - 10 8 - - 8 2 

Midasgrange Limited - 35 - 1 - - - - 

First Rate Exchange Services 
Holdings Limited 27 27 125 125 5 7 6 11 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made Separately 
at normal market prices Balances outstanding at the year the Group has certain loan facilities with Government 
end are unsecured, interest free and settlement is made (note 15), 
by cash Royal Mail plc is an associate of Postal Services . the Group has received a Government Grant of £215 
Holding Company Limited Midasgrange Limited was an million, £215 million of which was recognised through 
associate of the Group until September 2012 and First Rate the income statement, and 
Exchange Services Holdings Limited is a joint venture of . the Group has received the Network Subsidy Payment 
the Group from Government (note 1) 
The Group trades with numerous Government bodies on an Key management comprises Executive and Non-Executive 
arm's length basis Transactions with these entities are not Directors of the Post Office Limited Board and the members 
disclosed owing to the significant volume of transactions that of the Executive Committee at 30 March 2014 The aggregate 
are conducted remuneration of the key management personnel of the Post 

Office Group is set out below 
Ili iiUIIIIYtl111111111111111111111111111YIIIC 11114YIq I1CI 1YIIIIIIII1111111111111YI1IY111111..11111.1.1111111...11.1lI IIl11YYY1111.1ilq III11111111111111YIIItIIIIYIIIlllh1111111111111111111 WIIIIIIIYItl11111g1YilllllllYl11111111111111IIIg1.II1r I1g111111111111p IIg111111111YIIIIlI,lYY1111Nllllllll111 

2014 2013 
£000 £000 

Short-term employee benefits 3,582 3,568 

Post-employment benefits 59 119 

Other long-term benefits 439 651 

Total 4,080 4,338 

23 Post balance sheet events 
In accordance with the funding agreement with Government 
announced on 27 October 2010, for which State Aid approval 

24 Immediate and ultimate parent company 
At 30 March 2014, the Directors regarded Postal Services 
Holding Company Limited as the immediate and ultimate 
parent company The largest group to consolidate the results 
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was received on 28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
£330 million offunding on 1 April 2014 

of the company is Postal Services Holding Company Limited, 
a company registered in the United Kingdom 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT f0 THE MEMBERS OF POST OFFICE LIMITED 

We have audited the parent company financial statements 
of Post Office Ltd for the 52-week period ended 30 March 
2014 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes €n Equity, Balance Sheet and 
the related notes 1 to 22 The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial 
Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' 

This report is made solely to the company's members, as 
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2005 Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the company's members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's 
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the company and the company's 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinions we have formed 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities 
Statement set out on page 70, the directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the parent company financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the parent 
company fi nancial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the parent company's circumstances 
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 
identify any information that it apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the parent company financial statements 

give a true and fair view of the state of the company's 
affairs as at 30 March 2014, 
have been properly prepared in accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and 
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2006 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report 
and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
parent company financial statements 

Matters on which we are required to report 
by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters 
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 
f, in our opinion 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the 
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have 
not been received from branches not visited by us, or 
the parent company financial statements are not in 
agreement with the accounting records and returns. or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified 
by law are not made, or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations 
we require for our audit 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the group financial 
statements of Post Office Ltd for the 52-week period 
ended 30 March 2014 

Angus Grant (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LIP, Statutory Auditor 
London 
25 June 2014 
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Company statement of comprehensive income at 30 March 2014 
IIItR [W II11111RIt0111 YY11011111101111tl011111 Rl Rililltl R 11181iI Ili1lYtRl 1011 RII0011 Btl110BB1Iti11801ttN0Bi011111111 tY11YB18 RYIIII Q0111®tl I1111YIY 8191101111181tpltl Ielt1111110111'llttlRilY1110111Q11 R091tlQitttiRlYilllil tt10R R0181111ROIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIQII 1611111111111 

2014 2013 
Notes LT frn 

Profit for the financial year 169 74 

Other comprehensive income 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 13 (52) 14 

Income tax effect (2) (21) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 115 67 

There are no other comprehensive income items that will be reclassified to the profit and loss in subsequent periods 
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Company balance sheet at 30 March 2014 
I 11111IIIIIIYIIIYltl4l4A1i1614114:p1e14146AI181YI4YIIIIlYu114tii1414181BeIlYYltett1111Yllitlll uu661611YUIlAl YY111p I1111Yhalltlllillllilll!IIIIgItIli111111NY1KG1111111111:4itt1118Y1eo18C1Y140®tI41:I W ..................... ....... ..ItA1Bl1[I14i4111:t11t111...... 

2014 
IIff..... 

2013 

............ 
2012 

ISnies £m Or Em 

Intangible assets 2 - - -

Tangible assets 3 10 11 11 

Investment in subsidiaries 4 -

Investments in joint ventures and associates 5 1 1 5 

Retirement benefit surplus 13 148 97 

Total non-current assets 159 109 16 

Current assets 

Stocks 6 8 6 

Debtors - receivable within one year 6 302 352 226 

Debtors - receivable in more than one year 6 15 10 - 

Financial assets - investments 7 30 92 62 

Financial assets - derivatives - 1 - 

Cash at bank and in hand 8 708 879 758 

1,061 1,342 1,052 

Current liabilities 

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 9 (770) (877) (587) 

Financial liabilities - interest beanng loans and borrowings 10 - (291) (377) 

f4et current assets 291 174 88 

Total assets less current liabilities 450 283 104 

Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 11 (28) (28) (8) 

Provisions for liabilities 12 (78) (26) (14) 

Retirement benefit obligation 13 - - (206) 

Net assets/(liabilities) 344 229 (124) 

Capital and reserves 

Called up share capital 14 - - - 

Share premium 465 465 465 

Profit and loss account (121) (236) (589) 

Shareholder's surplus/(deficit) 344 229 (124) 

The financial statements on 103 to 119 ere approved by the pages w Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and signed on its 
behalf by GRO GRO 
P A Vennells  

r C M flay ,.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-._.-.-.--.-._._.-., 

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer 
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Company statement of changes in equity at 30 March 2014 
Y W il[Iea11Al wna.e.Plla tiPB Ill peIIIAtWMI..........lnnl.....Anwl. WIi1111Pe...Pa..19nUIPiinBP PI Pi'..PP.....1@WIi..... W.1 WI II PI.NI9[W.wiW lla P.a...........w Pli P NaWN W.I1aHAl[IIY N PnW n n...10Ie Wit. IIY........In.YY P II IlWitllAl e[PP II IlP t 

Share Retained Total 
premium earnings equity 

Notes Em fm fm 

At I April 2013 465 (236) 229 

Profit for the year - 169 169 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 13 - (52) (52) 

Income tax effect - (2) (2) 

At 30 March 2014 465 (121) 344 

na.vaan nouatnaIPnun.enntueuannnnnmua.nnnuwua.awnanaw..nn.a.a.nn..Puna..PPa.nPIannmonaann.nu.Pm..mm~nmmP.nammnNlPanaaa.e..411niWIPnl1eev.P.na.inu.uuaaaauaauaeeuaawmn.91uuaueWnauucut.nam.unuau 

Share Retained Total 
premium earnings equity 

Notes Lm Em Lm 

At 26 March 2012 465 (589) (124) 

Profit for the year - 74 74 

Remeasurements on defined benefit surplus 13 14 14 

Transfer of pension deficit to Government 286 286 

Income tax effect - (21) (21) 

At 31 March 2013 465 (236) 229 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies which follow set out those which apply 
in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 
March 2014 

Financial year 
The financial year ends on the last Sunday in March and 
accordingly, these financial statements are made up to the 
52 weeks ended 30 March 2014 (2013 53 weeks ended 
31 March 2013) 

Authorisation of financial statements and 
statement of compliance with FRS 101 
The parent company financial statements of Post Office Limited 
(the 'Company') for the year ended 30 March 2014 were 
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 
2014 and the balance sheet was signed on the Board's behalf 
by PA Vennells and C M Day Post Office Limited is a limited 
company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales 

These financial statements were prepared in accordance 
with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure 
Framework (FRS 101) and in accordance with the applicable 
accounting standards These financial statements are prepared 
under the historical cost convention 

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 
Post Office Limited has not presented its own profit and loss 
account The result dealt with in the accounts of the company 
amounted to £169 million profit (2013 £74 million profit) 

The results of Post Office Limited are included in the 
consolidated financial statements of Postal Services 
Holding Company Group which will be available from 
Companies House 

Basis of preparation 
The Company has transitioned to FRS 101 from previously 
extant UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for all 
periods presented The Company has adopted FRS 101 early 
which is permitted under the Standard Transition tables 
showing all material adjustments are disclosed in note 22 
The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure 
exemptions under FRS 101 

(a) the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 
Disclosures 

(b) the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair 
Value Measurement 

(c} the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 'Presentation of 
Financial Statements' to present comparative information 
in respect of 
i paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
ii paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets 

(d} the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 39(c) and 
134-136 of AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' 

(e) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 

(f) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 "Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' 

(g) the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 'Related 
Party Disclosures' 

(h) the requirements of IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' to 
disclose related party transactions entered into between 
two or more members of a group, provided that any 
subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly 
owned by such a member 
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In making an assessment of the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, the Directors have considered the going 
concern assessments made in relation to the Group (see note 
1 on page 77) and are of the view that it is appropriate that 
these financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
in applying accounting policies 
The Company makes certain estimates and assumptions 
regarding the future Estimates and assumptions are 
continually evaluated based on historical experience and other 
factors In the future, actual experience may differ from these 
estimates and assumptions In addition the Company has to 
make judgements in applying its accounting policies which 
affect the amounts recognised in the accounts The most 
significant areas where judgements and estimates are made 
are discussed below 

Pension assumptions 
The costs, assets and liabilities of the pensions operated 
by the Company are determined using methods relying on 
actuarial estimates and assumptions These pension figures 
are particularly sensitive to changes in assumptions for 
discount rates, mortality and inflation rates The Group 
exercises its judgement in determining the assumptions 
to be adopted, after discussion with its Actuary Details 
of the key assumptions are set out in note 13 of the 
Company financial statements 

Pension liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using 
the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate 
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality 
corporate bond of equivalent currency and term Judgement 
has been applied in determining that for these purposes a 
high quality corporate bond constitutes AA rated or equivalent 
status bonds 

The prior year pension deficit transfer to HM Government 
on 1 April 2012 was taken directly through equity, as in 
management's judgement this transaction was undertaken 
with HM Government in its capacity as the owner of Royal 
Mail Holdings plc, the Company's former parent company, 
rather than in its capacity as Government 

Provisions 
The Company has recognised provisions where a present legal 
or constructive obligation exists as a result of a past event, 
where it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 
amount can be made Provisions are detailed in note 12 Due 
to the nature of provisions the future amount settled may be 
different from the amount that has been provided 

Impairment of non-current assets 

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of 
impairment for all non-currents assets at each reporting date 
Due to ongoing operational losses (excluding the Network Subsidy 
Payment) the carrying value of intangible assets and all property 
plant and equipment other than freehold and long leasehold 
property has been impaired to the recoverable amount 

Intangible fixed assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately or generated internally 
are initially recognised at cost and are reviewed for 
impairment An impairment loss is recognised in the profit 
and loss account for the amount by which the carrying value 
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of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the 
higher of an asset's net realisable value and its value in use 

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives is charged 
annually to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis 
as follows 

Software 1 to6years 

Where intangible fixed assets are impaired to their 
recoverable amount on acquisition the above range of asset 
lives is not applied 

Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are recognised at cost, including 
attributable costs in bringing the asset intoworking condition 
for its intended use 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is provided on a straight-
line basis by reference to net book value and to the remaining 
useful economic lives of assets and their estimated residual 
values The lives assigned to major categories of tangible fixed 
assets are 
I[11BgIIRllllllllpn111111,11alpinnllellilnpinnnl llflm.... lllllnlltltltlpl(11111[Itllitlltltllpllll:IIIIIIIIIIIIIVp11111IIllllliltlppel[1111 

Range of asset Ives 

Land and buildings 

Freehold land Not depreciated 

Freehold buildings Up to 50 years 

Leasehold buildings The shorter of the period of 
the lease, 50 years or the 

estimated remaining useful life 

Plant and machinery 3 - 15 years 

Motor vehicles and trailers 2 - 12 years 

Fixtures and equipment 2 - 15 years 

Where tangible fixed assets are impaired to their recoverable 
amounts on acquisition the above ranges of asset lives are 
not applied This is currently the case for plant and machinery, 
motor vehicles and trailers and fixtures and equipment 

Impairment reviews 
Unless otherwise disclosed in these accounting policies, fixed 
assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether such 
indications exist Where appropriate, an impairment loss is 
recognised in the profit and loss account for the amount by 
which the carrying value of the asset for cash generating unit) 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an 
asset's net realisable value and its value in use 

Leases 
Finance leases, where substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased item have passed to the 
Company are capitalised at the inception of the lease with 
a corresponding liability recognised for the fair value of the 
leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between 
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so 
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor, are 
classified as operating leases and rentals are charged to the 
profit and loss account over the tease term The aggregate 
benefit of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental 
expenses over the lease term on a straight-line basis 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 

Investments in joint ventures and associates within the 
Company's fi nancial statements are stated at cost less 
any accumulated impairment lasses 

Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries within the Company's financial 
statements are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses The carrying value relates solely to the Company's 
investment in Post Office Management Services Limited, 
a 100% subsidiary of the Company and is less than Elm 

Stocks 
Stocks, which include printing and stationery, retail and lottery 
products, are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value after adjusting for obsolete or slow-moving stock 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is generally provided in full on timing differences 
at the balance sheet date, at rates expected to apply when 
the tax liability (or asset) crystallises based on substantively 
enacted tax rates and law Timing differences arise from the 
inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation 
computations in periods different from those in which they 
are included in the financial statements 

Deferred tax is not recognised in the following instances 

on gains on disposal of fixed assets where, on the basis of 
available evidence, it is more likely than not that the taxable 
gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged 
to tax only when there is a commitment to dispose of those 
replacement assets, 

• on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries and associates 
where there is no commitment to remit those earnings, and 

• deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
the Directors consider that it is more likely than not that 
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future 
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted 
Deferred tax is charged or credited directly to reserves 
if it relates to items that are credited or charged directly 
to reserves Otherwise it is recognised in the profit and 
loss account 

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 
People working for the Company were employed by Royal Mail 
Group Limited and seconded to the Company until 31 March 
2012 On 1 April 2012 they were transferred to be directly 
employed by the Company Membership of occupational 
pension schemes is open to most permanent UK employees 
of the Company All members of defined benefit schemes 
are contracted out of the earnings-related part of the State 
pension scheme 

The pension plans' assets of the defined benefit schemes 
are measured at fair value Liabilities are measured on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and 
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return 
on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and 
term The resulting defined benefit asset or liability is presented 
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separately on the face of the balance sheet, net of any 
associated deferred tax balance Full actuarial valuations are 
carried out at intervals not normally exceeding three years 
as determined by the Trustees and, with appropriate updates 
and accounting adjustments at each balance sheet date, form 
the basis of the deficit disclosed 

For defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged to 
operating profit, as part of staff costs, are the current service 
costs and any gains and losses arising from settlements, 
curtailments and past service costs 

The net difference between the interest costs and the 
expected return on plan assets is recognised as net pensions 
interest in the profit and loss account Actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised immediately in the statement of 
comprehensive income Any deferred tax movement 
associated with the actuarial gains and losses is also 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 

For defined contribution schemes, the Company's contributions 
are charged to operating profit, as part of staff costs, in the 
period to which the contributions relate 

Foreign currencies 
The functional and presentational currency of the Company 
is sterling (£) 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction (or at the contracted rate 
if the transaction is covered by a forward foreign currency 
contract) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date (or the appropriate forward contract rate) 
All differences are taken to the profit and loss account 

Debtors 
Debtors are recognised and carried at original invoice amount 
less an allowance for any non-collectable amounts An estimate 
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount 
is no longer probable Bad debts are written off when identified 

Financial assets - investments (current assets) 
Financial assets - investments in the balance sheet comprise 
short-term deposits and money market funds All financial 
assets - investments are classified as loans and receivables 
and are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method Gains and losses are recognised in the 
profit and loss account when the investments are derecognised 
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process 
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Financial liabilities — interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 
All loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost Borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense when incurred 

Financial liabilities — obligations under finance 
lease and hire purchase contracts 
All obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 
are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred 
unless they are directly attributable to the construction or 
development of a qualifying asset, in which case they are 
capitalised using the weighted average cost of borrowing 
for the period of construction/development 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
The fair value of quoted investments is determined by 
reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance 
sheet date where there is no active market, fair value is 
determined using valuation techniques These include using 
recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the 
current market value of another instrument which is 
substantially the same, and discounted cash flow analysis 
and pricing models 

For the purposes of disclosing the fair value of investments 
held at amortised cost in the balance sheet, in the absence of 
quoted market prices, fair values are calculated by discounting 
the future cash flows of the financial instrument using quoted 
equivalent interest rates as at close of business on the 
balance sheet date 

Derecognition of financial instruments 
A financial asset or liability is derecognised when the contract 
that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires 

Government Grants 
Government Grants of a revenue nature are recognised 
to match costs in relation to the performance of certain 
specified activities 

Auditor's remuneration 
The remuneration paid to auditors is disclosed in the Group 
financial statements (note 4) 

Director's emoluments 
The emoluments paid to Directors are disclosed in the Group 
financial statements (note 6) 
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2 Intangible assets 
IIIIWIIIWiIII:XIW111ab111111IIRil:[IlliillRl11i1IIIIRIIIIIIIIIIIiR111111111n111111111111.IRIIIIetIXll1t111111111t1nllt[IiRIIBRI4IA[1111111JIIIRI114141t11fRtXIHWII1Rln IIIIIIIRIIWIIIIIHIIIWIIili14If111111111R11tl1nml11111~11ntl11R1111111111!l :RIRIIni1:i..... till tIWiRl111WIIRRIR11111 

2014 
£m 

Cost 

At 1 April 2013 208 

Additions 42 

Disposals (7) 

At 30 March 2014 243 

Amortisation and impairment 

At 1 April 2013 208 

Disposals (7) 

Impairment 42 

At 30 March 2014 243 

Net book value 

At 30 March 2014 and 1 April 2013 - 

The above intangible assets relate to software 

3 Tangible fixed assets 
Ilan[.. I .III IIIIIIR I1dIIII111f111111111111111W1Y!f111l[I SIIUIII IXil1R1111W11111011Rt1111111111111.111111SIIIIIW111111nI...........Wl11:1Ilat...11lll111mtlllltllllllil11alltll11111111111RI1111111111I11tit11114[.11111111111111111111YIIIIIIIIIt..Wi11ItllIRIt11i11111 

Land and buildings 
11 11 11 1111 4 1 11Xll1.111111111111111 

Plant Fixtures 
Long Short Motor and and 

Freehold leasehold Leasehold vehicles machinery equipment Total 
Lilt Em fm in fm Em fm 

Cost 

At 1 April 2013 87 18 114 42 1 719 981 

Reclassification (5) - 3 - - 2 - 

Additions 20 - 4 7 - 41 72 

Disposals (2) (1) (8) (5) - (23) (39) 

At 30 March 2014 100 17 113 44 1 739 1,014 

Depreciation 

At 1 April 2013 77 17 114 42 1 719 970 

Impairment (see note 5 in the Group 
Financial Statements) 16 - 7 7 - 43 73 

Disposals (2) (1) (8) (5) - (23) (39) 

At 30 March 2014 91 16 113 44 1 739 1,004 

Net book value 

At 30 March 2014 9 1 - - - 10 

At I April 2013 10 1 - - - - 11 

Depreciation rates are disclosed within accounting policies 4 Investment in subsidiaries 
(note 1) No depreciation is provided on freehold land, which 

The carrying value of £100 relates solely to the Company's 
represents £3 million (2013 £3 million) of the total cost 

investment in Post Office Management Services Limited, a 
of properties 

100% subsidiary of the Company 
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5 Investments in joint ventures 
AlII:IIIIIIIIIIIIItletltlllllllllltHIPIIIIIIIIIIIIIII11Hl111111if11tli11H1414nINrylela1111111911tlllllltlllltl141111t11.li1it111tl1:1111111111iPP11111t11PHI II11191111atEIAIHII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIHIIIHIIIlifl1111111111HIPIIl1eHIn9191H11 PPaIIIH1111[ttHI1InnIIIIHI111111HIIIIHIIItl11C11111111111111111111HP 

2014 2013 
£m fm 

Investment in joint ventures 1 1 

Joint ventures First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited isa company 

During 2013-14 and 2012-13, the Company's only joint registered in the United Kingdom 

venture investment was a 50% interest (1,000 if ordinary 
Associates 

A shares) in First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited 
with a carrying value of £06 million (2013 £06 million), Details of associates are disclosed in the Consolidated 

whose principal activity is the provision of Bureau de Change Group Ilinancal statements (note 11) 

6 Debtors 
HI IIn, II II1111pI111H111 PIn IIIIIII I IIIIII HII I IIII II IIII I IWIIII1.PIIHIII".I.IIII I IIII IIItl I Ilnl P. I IIIn., elWetlenlll II IHIII. t.IPfl III11Is1191H111111I III11111a1ePIIPInvleHenna 11111,, 1,u IIIIHI II,III I,, It1 IH I III Ill III1tltI I, PIHIIxIIIII IIIII.I.I1111tlH1111I1111111p Itl11 

2014 

6 11 11 111 1111 1alei 

2013 

Em £m 

Receivable within one year 

Trade debtors 54 32 

Prepayments and accrued income 82 71 

Client debtors 158 240 

Other receivables 8 9

Total 302 352 

Receivable after more than one year 

Prepayments and accrued income 15 10 

7 Current financial assets — investments 

etltlllela:HlttlHHenuIPI.I111 PI9IHHPIIfliHHIIIe IVIPHII1111H11IIPIPIIIP1ve1eHPII111tI111H111111111911EIIIIttlI1t111111111111111IIIHiH1 ........... ..1IIP11.......111I1111BII111all I...P......HI111tII1f1...... .....Ip....Wnv9HtWP..........uHIW11111111111111............. 

2014 
[..... WItlu.... 

2013 
£m £m 

Money market funds - 86

Short-term deposits - bank 30 6 

Total 30 92 

8 Cash at bank and in hand 
116.1111 H VIII II P I II II I[IItI II IHI I1 Ot11119111E11lP tl0111.IH IHI111P~ 1[H4111 t::PIe111H Illll lHli 11111111tl111NIIIlUI I411PIPI {I II III IIII1 PtH RH Hl n I IIIHIEH I:Ytlll ll ll111ll I It li tll ll ill llltl II II111 HIEI IHR 11FIlIIIII IIPI.gIH11tlHHI11tlf HIeIH 11111111f11111111tl111.II I....... P IIIIIHUI PIIl I1Pll leiul I 

2014 2013 
Em fm 

Cash in the Post Office Limited network 708 879 

9 Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 

!IItllltlutl1111uIII 111111111III11 IIII;IPH1111011IIr:IIIIIPIII11Y IIIIIIIIPIIIIIIIIIIn11vIHHIpII11HIIPI1111tIIH11111HPII IlIIHI1H11HIH111111111PnnlPvlPtlllllllIIII III IIIIIIb1111111%II III11111111111111111IIItuItIltI1111111PI111IIHI1l II1Hlll1uHl.11l111llliltIIIIIIII91EII IlllllllllllllHllu 

2014 2013 
Er,, E.rn 

Bank overdraft 50 -

Trade creditors and accruals 188 159 

Advance customer payments 37 50 

Social security 14 10 

Client creditors 437 528 

Obligations under finance leases 3 3 

Capital creditors 31 18 

Business transformation payments 10 7

Government Grant - 102 

Total 770 877 
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10 Financial liabilities - interest bearing loans and borrowings 
IIIIIIi iiilllllinl111111II1111111Rlll1iiil1llllllln11lii IIIIIIIRIIIIIWIIII.IIiltllulllRI1111.1 ..............IIII.n.II.IIIii.. I.IIIRI.......n111 W In11.WIIt .........................11111111............IIIIRIIIIIi PII1...............................11IIl1ll....4lnill.....................I1 I...1....III 

2014 2013 
Em £m 

Department of Business, Innovation & Skills loans drawn down - 291 

Total faclility 1,150 1,150 

The loans under the facility are short dated on a programme The facility is currently restricted to funding the cash and 
of liquidity management and mature on average 1 day after near cash items held within the Post Office Limited network 
the year end (2013 1 day) On maturity it is expected that The facility (including drawn down loans) is secured by a 
further loans will be drawn down under this facility, which floating charge over all assets of Post Office Limited and a 
expires in 2018 The undrawn committed facility, in respect negative pledge over cash and near cash items The negative 
of which all conditions precedent had been met at the balance pledge is an agreement not to grant security over the assets 
sheet date is £1,150 million (2013 £859 million) The average or to set up a vehicle that has the same effect 
interest rate on the drawn down loans is 10% (2013 10%) 

11 Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 
IntIRIIIIIIIIIWRII 1:rn I:lff RRIIIIIIIIIIiRIIIIRIIilltllll1.141I11t1RI1W11R1111111R11111111111111911t1111111111i11111111111RtW1111IIIIi111R1W1l II11111111111iltpili[IIIIIW1111t1tI111111R1IRIIIRIINIWIIRII.WIIIInI1R111ltini Rnt11111111t1IIRIIIIItl1RittlIWlIIIIIIIIIIIII[GII2IIII1nlf I0IIIt 

2014 2013 
Em Em 

Obligations under finance leases - 4 

Other payables 28 24 

Total 28 28 

12 Provisions for liabilities 
IlEilltltltlllllllllllllitl.YIIIIIIIIIII1111nIYlttllllll.l111111I.Iltllllllllllllillllllllllll llR I . 11.11 I 111111 v 11111111IIIIIItllIRII111111 IIII IIItIiII4IIIII JIllIllIlillIlIl 11111tH,t111111111RIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIl11111111 III NIIIttlllltlllllllllllllllllllillllltlltnllllll1111111 

Crown Conversions 
Project 

Em 

Network 
Transformation 

Em 
Other 

Em 
Total 

Em 

At 1 April 2013 7 10 9 26 

Charged in operating 
exceptional items (21 93 27 118 

Charged in operating costs - - 6 6 

Utilisation (3) (52) (17) (72) 

At 30 March 2014 2 51 25 78 

The Crown Conversions project relates to past franchising Other provisions of £25 million (2013 £9 million) include 
of Crown offices and onerous property lease provisions are property contracts, onerous lease obligations and personal 
expected to be utilised within four years injury claims 

The Network Transformation provision relates tc the major 
transformation programme which is discussed further in the 
Financial Review on page 42 
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13 Pensions 
The disclosures in this note relating to the year ended 
30 March 2014 and the comparatives for the year ended 
31 March 2013 reflect the Post Office Limited sectionalised 
RMPP scheme which is independently operated by the 
Company and the approximate 7% share of the RMSEPP 
scheme Royal Mad Group Limited is the principal employer 
in Royal Mail Senior Executive Pension Plan (RMSEPP) and 
Post Office Limited became a participating employer with 
effect from 1 April 2012 

During the year there was a consultation exercise with 
members of the defined benefit Royal Mail Pension Plan 

on proposed changes to the terms These changes were 
agreed on 15 October 2013 and effective from 1 April 2014 
The key change was to the definition of pensionable pay which 
broadly will increase in line with RPI (capped at 5%) in future 
regardless of actual pay growth The changes have resulted 
in a one-off exceptional gain of £102 million 

The disclosures in this note show how the value of the assets 
and liabilities have been calculated at the balance sheet date 

The Company participates in pension schemes as detailed 
below 

.....a...n ...................11..1.......1............t...........I....1...........................................—an..11.tlII.................................................Y......nai n~nannou...., i~~I~nan...................................I.............IfO•i...roan..............., 

Name Eligibility 

Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) UK employees Defined benefit 

Royal Mail Senior Executive Pension Plan (RMSEPP) UK senior executives Defined benefit 

Royal Mail Defined Contribution Plan (RMDCP) UK employees Defined contribution 

Defined Contribution 
The charge in the profit and loss account for the defined 
contribution schemes and the Company contributions to these 
schemes was £2 million (2013 f1 million) during the year 
A new defined contribution plan (RMDCP) was launched in 
April 2009 New recruits joining from 31 March 2008 are 
able to begin paying contributions to the new plan after 
they have worked for the Company for a year 

Defined Benefit 
Both RMPP and RMSEPP are funded by the payment of 
contributions to separate trustee administered funds The 
latest full actuarial funding valuation of RMPP was carried 
out as at 1 April 2012 using the projected unit method For 
RMPP, this valuation was concluded at £135 million surplus 
The latest full actuarial funding valuation of RMSEPP was 
carried out as at 31 March 2012 using the projected unit 
method For 100% of the RMSEPP plan, the valuation was 
concluded at £83 million deficit RMPP includes sections 
A, 6 and C each with different terms and conditions 

• Section A is for members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined before t December 1971, 
Section B is for members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined after 1 December 1971 and before 1 April 
1987 or to members of Section A who chose to receive 
Section 8 benefits, 

• Section C is for members (or beneficiaries of members) 
who joined after 1 April 1987 and before 1 April 2008 

A series of changes to RMPP and RMSEPP began to take 
effect on 1 April 2008 The changes encompassed 

the Plans closed to new members from 31 March 2008, 
• all pensions and benefits earned before 1 April 2008 

are still linked to final salary at the time of retirement, 
• from 1 April 2008, defined benefits building up for 

employee members of the Plan are earned on a career 
salary basis, 
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• employees can continue to take their pension on reaching 
60 but the normal retirement age increased to 65 for 
benefits earned from 1 April 2010, 

• from 1 April 2010 it is possible to draw pension earned 
before the change to normal retirement age at 55. and 
continue working while still contributing to the Pension Plan 
until the maximum level of benefits has been reached, and 

• RMSEPP was closed to future accruals on 31 December 2012 

Payment of £21 million (2013 £23 million) was made by the 
Company during the year in respect of regular future service 
contributions, nearly all relating to RMPP The regular future 
service contributions for RMPP, expressed as a percentage 
of pensionable pay, has remained at 171% (2013 171%), 
effective from April 2010 This rate is not expected to change 
materially during 2014-15 For RMSEPP, these contributions 
have remained at 35 9% (2013 359%) until its closure 

The Company pays 7% of the total deficit payment required 
to fund the defied in RMSEPP and a payment of 11 million 
(2013 E2 million) was made by the Company during the year 
No RMPP deficit payments were made during 2012-13 or 
2013-14 For RMSEPP, deficit recovery payments will be £1 
million per annum, from 1 April 2010 to 31 January 2024 

A current liability of [nil (2013 [nil) has been recognised for 
payments to the pension schemes relating to redundancy 
During the year, payments of Et million (2013 E2 million) 
relating to redundancy were made 

The weighted average duration of the RMPP fund is 28 years, 
and for the RMSEPP fund i5 20 years Over the next financial 
reporting period to 29 March 2015 it is expected that 
employer contributions to the plans will be 121 million 
and fl million for RMPP and RMSEPP respectively 

The following disclosures relate to the gains/losses and 
surplus/deficit in the scheme recognised for RMPP and 
RMSEPP defined benefit plans in the financial statements 
of the Company 
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a) Major long-term assumptions 

The size of the RMPP pension surplus, which is large in 
the context of the Company and its finances, is materially 

R pIi11111tl1G 111II IRiilRltp lUllptl199111p1111FR1111t1 U ItllRlltlltlipp itl ll ltl111111911:I IIlIi11 G1U 1ptll lAd dIYRn. A........illlltn........IRR 

sensitive to the assumptions adopted Small changes in these 
assumptions could have a significant impact on the surplus 
and overall profit and loss charge The major long-term 
assumptions in relation to both RMPP and RMSEPP were 

III GIIIYIIFR itlp p ®......tiiipl1R.....UII R G8111itl11.......1ti11R......IRRI.. RR p G II"w ri Rlla-Y................ 111[IIII 

At 30 March At 31 March 
2014 2013 
% pa %pa 

Rate of increase in salaries 3 2 4 3 

Rate of pension increases - RMPP sections A/B 2 3 2 3 

Rate of pension increases - RMPP section C 32 3 2 

Rate of pensions increases - RMSEPP members transferred from Section A or B of RMPP 24 3 3 

Rate of pension increases - RMSEPP all other members 3 3 3 2 

Rate of increase for deferred pensions - RMSEPP members transferred from Section A or B of RMPP 24 3 3 

Rate of increase for deferred pensions 23 23 

Discount rate 4 5 4 8 

Inflation assumption (RPI) - RMPP 3 3 3 3 

Inflation assumption (CPI) - RMPP 2 3 2 3 

Inflation assumption (RPO - RMSEPP 34 3 3 

Inflation assumption (CPI) - RMSEPP 24 2 3 

In June 2010, Government announced that it was intending 
to change the inflation measure used to determine statutory 
minimum indexation in deferment and in payment from RPI 
to CPI from April 2011 Where relevant, the inflation 
assumption has changed from RPI to CPI 

The ultimate cost of the RMPP plan to the Company will 
depend upon future events rather than the assumptions 
made The assumptions made may not he home nut in 
practice and as such the cost of the plan may be higher 
(or lower} than disclosed 

In common with other defined benefit schemes, the main risk 
in relation to the arrangements is the value of the assets does 
not keep pace with the increase in the value of the liabilities 
This can arise for many reasons, but the most significant risks 
are as follows 

Investment risk 
If the assets of the arrangements fall short of expectations, 
this will lead to a decrease in the funded status 

Asset volatility 
The arrangements hold return seeking assets (including 
equities and property) which are expected to outperform 
corporate bonds in the long term but give exposure to 
volatility and risk in the short term RMPP does, however, 
invest in liability driven investment (LDII assets which 
mitigates the impact of interest rate and inflation volatility 
on the funded status 

Inflation risk 
Higher inflation rates than expected will act to increase the 
plan liabilities as benefits will increase to a higher level than 
assumed The arrangements have a maximum pension 
increase (generally 596 per annum) written into the rules 
which limits the increase for many benefits, so limiting the 
impact of high inflation This includes pensionable pay in 
RMPP, which was amended with effect from t April 2014 
In addition, the arrangement holds assets that increase in 
value as price inflation expectations rise, so mitigating the 
impact of rising inflation expectations These assets include 
LDI assets in respect of RMPP 

Changes in bond yields 
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the plan 
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase 
in the value of the bond holdings and, to some extent, the 
LDI assets 

Pensioner longevity 
If members live longer than expected, the liabilities would 
increase because pensions would be paid for a longer time 

Liabilities accrued in the Royal Mail Pension Plan to 31 March 
2012 were transferred to the Royal Mail Statutory Pension 
Scheme These liabilities are no longer an obligation of the 
Company and consequently the transfer resulted in a 
significant removal of pension risk from the Company 

The following table shows the potential impact on the RMPP 
assets and pension surplus of changes in key assumptions 

YA.111 tll[eitil 1pollPYIIISIgtgippitl GlAifFNig111FIpi1gU11p111{Uliipill UFUU1W111FiiIIRUUIItltltlp MNFNIFFiplipfhplAU1tlU111U:11181A1A11MUpge1[ISApt811Y{IIUININIINIY p1111F11tla1ppI81GU81hIp11UHAI811YliiY1Wi11 WYI6hdIUUYYdIIYFlediilll!.................YFIU 

2014 2013 
Em Em 

Changes in RPI and CPI inflation of +01% pa (3) (4) 

Changes in discount rate of +0 1%pa 3 4 

Changes in real salary growth of +01% pa (1) (6) 

Changes in CPI assumptions of +01% pa (1) (1) 

An additional 1 year life expectancy (3) (4) 
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The sensitivity analysis has been prepared using projected Mortality 
benefit cash flows as at the latest full actuarial valuation of The mortality assumptions for the RMPP sectionalised 
the plan The same method was applied as at the previous scheme are based on the latest self administered pension 
reporting date The accuracy of this method is limited by scheme (SAPS) mortality tables with appropriate scaling 
the extent to which the profiles of the plan cash flows have factors (106% for male pensioners and 101% for female 
changed since those valuations although any change is pensioners) For future improvements the assumptions 
not expected to be material in the context of the above allow for 'medium cohort projections with a 1 25% floor 
sensitivity analysis These are detailed below 
IIIXIXIIII]I1111111111111111111WWItlWil WItl11WIN111111AW11411t1BI11111AlIIIII1W11111111W11A1 1 4 11 4111 5 111R111111111111111WIWI111111111111111111RI1111111111111iSIIfI11NlIIii11111111NA11141tA1d1WdII4A1111111111111i1141ARIIIII d1Xit11111111111111111111[1411111111111111111 R 1111Whblidllll1111i1 

2014 2013 

Average expected life expectancy from age 60 

For a current 60-year-old male RMPP member 26 years 26 years 

For a current 60-year-old female RMPP member 29 years 29 years 

For a current 40-year-old male RMPP member 29 years 29 years 

For a current 40-year-old female RMPP member 32 years 32 years 

b) Plans' assets 
'The assets in the plans for the Company were 
IIIIIIYIIItII XtlI1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111SIIXllllltll1111lII ICAIRIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIXIIIIIIIIWIIIIII1111NII41111111II111111W IIIIII:1111IIII RXIII111111111111111111111111111WAId.IA11tH.1NI11111111111111111111111111Xd141111111P11ItIIW1111 11 1 1 11111 1 111 1 111111 1 4IIIAlllllllllllllllilll 

Market value Market value 
2014 2013 

£m £m 

Sectionalised RMPP 

UK equities 1 2 

Overseas equities 18 27 

Government bonds - 2 

Corporate bonds 118 134 

Property 5 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 38 69 

Other assets 80 9 

Fair value of RMPP assets • 260 243 

Present value of RMPP liabilities (90) (144) 

Surplus in plan before asset ceiling adjustment 170 99 

Less effect of asset ceiling {23} (3) 

Surplus in plan after asset ceiling adjustment 147 96 

`Other assets include a diverse range of managed funds which include investment in real estate worldwide equities and emerging debt 

11,111111IINIIsiis IIIIIIIIIIIIsss 1111111dd,dd1Ni11X li 1111111111111 tinIIIIA1 dpi111111111111111111X1111tl11A111111111111114XII1I111111P11nId1W.11d11@IIRIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIItt1111111XBIIIIII111111111111WXIIIIIIAIIIIIIIA1WI111111111111111RWInIPAl11111111i1111tt11lllllllli.iultllui 

Market value Market value 
2014 2013 

£m tin 

Share of RMSEPP 

UK equities 1 4 

Overseas equities 9 6 

Government bonds - - 

Corporate bonds 13 12 

Property 2 1 

Other assets 1 2 

Fair value of share in plan assets for RMSEPP 26 25 

Present value of share in plan liabilities for RMSEPP (24) (24) 

Surplus in plan for the share of RMSEPP before asset ceiling adjustment 2 1 

Less effect of asset ceiling (1) - 

Surplus in plan for share of RMSEPP after asset ceiling adjustment 1 1 
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A retirement benefit surplus of £148 million is disclosed on the There is no element of the above present value of liabilities 
balance sheet, representing the surplus in plans of £170 million that arises from plans that are wholly unfunded 
and £2 million for RMPP and RMSEPP respectively, and net of The major categories of RMPP assets as a percentage 
tax of £24 million at a rate of 35% on the element of the of total plan assets are as follows 
surplus which is recoverable through a refund from the plans 

WnnnnnaanmalWntinlm alnamI.naunualnuttnnlnuanunalalnYremnuuntlnamtamlllntauem.Yannaunlllauutnluwnuuuamm~rimmm~uaunatyama..ntlma..aunnlnanwmntluauanenua..........Yn.nnna... 

2014 

.....nn1 

2013 
% 96 

Securities with quoted price in en active market 

UK equities - 1 

Overseas equities 7 11 

Government bonds - 1 

Corporate bonds 45 55 

Property 2 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 15 28 

Other assets 31 4 

Total quoted securities 100 100 

c) Movement in plans' assets and liabilities 
Changes in the fair value of the plans' assets are analysed as follows 
I l l t l l l I. u l l i 1111 e C I b I I I I tl a 1111 N G i v e I t I I l Y l b e t 14 v I I I I t tl Y I 1 e I W l l l a P I I I t t t I t b i n n tl I t b u i l u l P i I I P W P l t a v l i m t l l l 11111 [ I I I I P u P I i tl Y l P P l t. a t. n t i I[ t e n i n t e t u i v. v u t l i v t u t n t i R i v i P l l n u u. n u u t u n n t l n a l i n u t t u t t n v e n i l t W I t v e t tl t I1 n 1 u I t W l l l l t l l i tl tl] l u. tl p. l l l l tl f i tl f l l t a l u i 1411 tl 1111 I,

Sectionah,eo RMPP 2014 Sectionaiued RMPP 2013 
Em Em 

Assets

Assets in sectionalised RMPP at beginning of period 243 2,108 

Transfer of pension assets to Government - (1953),

Contributions paid 22 25 

Employee contributions paid 8 8 

Finance income 12 11 

Actuarial (loss)/gain (24) 46 

Benefits paid to members (1) (2) 

Assets in sectionalised RMPP at end of period 260 243 

111111111111tl11tII11111i111111111htl11VWlflllllitlllllll:111111{q IIIIIIIlV111iI1111111111W111II41111111u1W1nW.11YI111Plllllltlllllall.It IIIIIIIIIIIIIIYIIIVIIIIWIIIIIIIIIIIIIIN{Ilinnl IYWlnl.11llilll Vltl llllluullll111R1II. 11I InlIlIIIr Y11i1ai 111a1ap1trilYall.11Ylltultatllllfll Vitilll{all 

Share of RMSEPP 7014 Share of RMSEPP 2013 
Em Em 

Assets 

Share of assets in RMSEPP at beginning of period 25 21 

Contributions paid 1 2 

Movement in contributions accrued - - 

Employee contributions paid - -

Finance income 1 1 

Actuarial gains - 1 

Benefits paid to members (1) - 

Share of assets in RMSEPP at end of period 26 25 
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are analysed as follows 
Iltptlllllltllllpllllltl[ININ11111viN111N W Ntliiil[iIINIliI1111XN11111NBtl NiII[IIi111111111111PtlI1111tII11icNtl9[[I[NtlY1141YIIN11YXtltlllhNNllnlNllt6tnlu[PIIUP61vvfllvvnllmtllntlllMllNlavvfl[Itvtllr[II[IINttPlh[Inuhhvll1111YNhnnl111[NIIIINNNN111111XIINNNI 

Sectionalised RMPP 2014 Sectionalised RMPP 2013 
Ern fm 

Liabilities 

Liabilities in sectionalised RMPP at beginning of period (144) (2,313) 

Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment 102 - 

Transfer of pension liabilities to Government - 2,239 

Current service cost (25) (24) 

Curtailment costs" (1) (2) 

Finance cost (7) (9) 

Employee contributions (8) (8) 

Actuarial loss (8) (29) 

Benefits paid 1 2 

Liabilities in sectionalised RMPP at end of period (90) (144) 

11111146111 tl1 11 11 111 1 111 1 11 111 1 6 1tlt IIYIIIIIIIIIIIIIIrII1111111111111tlItlIIIIIIIII111111111111111111nI1hIlrh YllllNlllllllllltl11111111'IIIIIIIIII1tln811111111111111111111111111111111111111rtllllh111111111111111111111111111111111111[IINII11 11111111 1 1 11 1 1 111 11 1 

Share of RMSEPP 2014 
11 11 111 11111 11 1 1111 11 1 11 1 11 6vIIII1111111111Yfllllllll 

Share of RMSEPP 2013 
Em £m 

Liabilities 

Share of liabilities in RMSEPP plans at beginning of period (24) (22) 

Current service cost - - 

Curtailment costs -

Finance cost (1) (1) 

Employee contributions - 

Actuarial loss - (1) 

Benefits paid  1 -

Share of liabilities in RMSEPP at end of period (24) (24) 

'The curtailment costs in the profit and loss account are recognised one consistent basis with the associated compensation rests Estimates of both are 

included for example In any redundancy provisions raised The curtailment costs above represent the costs associated with those peoote paid compensation 

In respect of redundancy during the accounting period Such payments may occur in an accounting period subsequent to the recognition of costs In the profit 

and I05S account 
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d) Recognised charges 
An analysis of the separate components of the amounts recognised in the performance statements of the Company is as follows 

4IIYI.11l III11111IIIIIt44IIIIPIIIIallelI141IIIIb1Yltl III IYI'.tll IIIfYIf[Itll VIII IIIIIYI1111111tl1ll I lYlIIIlilIIIIIIII Iblllll111IitlllIIIIlili118111b1e4ltibyI IIII IIII IIIII11111l IIIIIIIIIIII bll IIII[ IYii IlbllYlt[Ill YII IIIktl11bi111t11Y11111111blllbllltllillti1 1111111 11 1 1 4 1 1YI IIlib I[II 

2014 sectionalised RMPP 2013 sectlnnalised RMPP 
Em fm

Analysis of amounts recognised in the profit and loss account 

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit before exceptional items 

Current service cost 25 24 

Total charge to operating profit before exceptional items 

Analysis of amounts charged to operating exceptional items 

Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment (102) -

I oss due to curtailments 1 2 

Total (credit)/charge to operating profit (76) 26 

Analysis of amounts charged/(credited) to net pensions interest 

Interest on plan liabilities 7 9 

Interest income on plan assets (12) (11) 

Net pensions credit to financing (5) (2) 

Net (credit)Icharge to the profit and loss account before deduction for tax (81) 24 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of changes in equity 

Transfer of pension liabilities to Government - 2,239 

Transfer of pension assets to Government - (1,953) 

Gain on transfer to Government - 286 

Total gains recognised in the statement of changes in equity - 286 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 

Actual return on plan assets (12) 57 

Less expected interest income on plan assets (12) (11) 

Less taxation on surplus recoverable through plan refunds (20) (3) 

Actuarial (losses)/gains on assets (all experience adjustments) (44) 43 

Experience adjustments on liabilities - (20) 

Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions on liabilities (8) (9) 

Actuarial losses on liabilities (8) (29) 

Total actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income (52) 14 

14 Share Capital 
IIIIIIIIIIIYIIII411bi111111111111111111111111YII1111tII111111111Y1{SIIIIIgitlllllllllllllllb44911111f 41[1III b4111I4114111111 11 1 11 111 11111 4 111 1 It111i411111[IIIIIIIIIIII1111111IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII Itlt 111 1111 1 4 1 1 lit III II 111111111111111111:4 111 11 111 1 1 Y 111111111411 I IIIII111141111IIIIYIIIIIIIIIIIIIi II Ilip 

2014 2013 
95 'is 

Authorised 

Ordinary shares of £1 each 51,000 51,000 

Total 51,000 51,000 

Allotted and issued 

Ordinary shares of £1 each 50,003 50,003 

Total 50,003 50,003 
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15 Commitments 
Capital commitments contracted for but not provided in the 
financial statements amount to £68 million (2013 £48 million) 

Details of the Company commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases are disclosed in the Group financial 
statements (note 20) 

16 Finance lease liabilities 

Details of the Company's finance lease liabilities are disclosed 
in the Group financial statements (note 21) 

17 Related party disclosures 
Details of transactions with related parties are disclosed 
in the Group financial statements (note 22) 

18 Operating exceptional items 
Details of operating exceptional items are disclosed in the 
Group financial statements (note 5) 

19 Taxation 
Details of the taxation gains recognised in the year are 
disclosed in the Group financial statements (note 8a) 

20 Post balance sheet events 
In accordance with the funding agreement with Government 
announced on 27 October 2010, for which State Aid approval 
was received on 28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
£330 million of funding on 1 April 2014 

21 Immediate and ultimate parent company 
At 30 March 2014, the Directors regarded Postal Services 
Holding Company Limited as the immediate and ultimate 
parent company The largest group to consolidate the results 
of the Company is Postal Services Holding Company Limited, 
a company registered in the United Kingdom Postal Services 
Holding Company Limited financial statements can be 
obtained from Companies House 
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22 Transition to FRS 101 
For all periods up to and including the year ended 
31 March 2013, the Company prepared its financial 
statements in accordance with the previously extant 
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice 
(UK GAAP) These financial statements, for the year ended 
30 March 2014 are the first the Company has prepared 
in accordance with FRS 101 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared individual financial 
statements which comply with FRS 101 applicable for periods 
beginning on or after 26 March 2012 and the significant 
accounting policies meeting those requirements are described 
in the relevant notes 

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has 
started from an opening balance sheet as at 26 March 2012, 
the Company's date of transition to FRS 101, and made those 
charges in accounting policies and other restatements required 
for the first-time adoption of FRS 101 As such, this note 
explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in 
restating Its previously published UK GAAP financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2013 No restatements are 
required in relation to the Company balance sheet for the 
year ended 25 March 2012 

On transition to FRS 101, the Company has applied the 
requirements of paragraphs 6-33 of IFRS 1 'First time 
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' 

IFRS 1 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from 
the general requirements to apply IFRSs as effective for 
March 2014 year ends retrospectively The Company has 
taken advantage of the following exemptions 

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses on pensions and other 
post employment benefits are recognised in full in equity on 
the date of transition to IFRS This is the same treatment as 
under UK GAAP 
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FRS101 
remeasurements/ ems

UK GAAP reciassdications total 
Notes fm Em fm

Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2013 

Intangible assets - - - 

Tangible assets 11 - 11 

Investment in subsidiaries - - 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 1 - 1 

Retirement benefit surplus 1 100 (3) 97 

Debtors - receivable after more than one year 2 10 (t0) - 

Total non-current assets 122 (13) 109 

Current assets 

stocks a - 8 

Debtors - receivable within one year 352 - 352 

Debtors - receivable after more than one year - 10 10 

Financial assets -- investments 92 - 92 

Financial assets -derivatives 1 - 1 

Cash at bank and in hand 879 - 679 

1,332 10 1,342 

Current liabilities 

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year (877) - (877) 

Financial liabilities - interest bearing loans and borrowings 12911 - (291) 

Net current assets 164 10 174 

Total assets less current liabilities 286 (3) 283 

Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year (28) - (28) 

Provisions for liabilities (26) - (26) 

Net assets 232 (3) 229 

Capital and reserves 

Called up share capital - - - 

Share premium 465 - 465 

Profit and loss account (233) (3) (235) 

Shareholder's surplus 232 (3) 229 

1 Under IFRS the retirement benefit surplus as at 31 March The effect of the transition or reported profit of the Company 
2013 was assessed under IFRIC 14 which requires the for the year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows 
maximum asset to be recognised using appropriate recovery IHitlgltJlllY111i1t1111%Ilif+IltlpflliglllllgAJlllill1tl111111111ltIIIII11 gIIP11111111111fYg1Al111nIFIlIII1BI11I11111111PN1111111111lIIIIIPIIAIIPI 

methods An element of the defined benefit surplus on the Em 

balance sheet was recoverable through a reduction in future Profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 
pension contributions which created a separate deferred tax under UK GAAP 76 
liability The remainder was recoverable through a refund - -
from the pension scheme which was subject to a tax deduction Deferred tax asset (2) 

at 35% which was shown net against the pension surplus Profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 
Under UK GAAP no retirement benefit surplus is recognised under IFRS 74 

based on refunds, and the surplus as at 31 March 2013 
was recoverable fully through a reduction in future pension The corresponding movement in the deferred tax liability 
contributions and therefore created a larger deferred is taken through the Company statement of comprehensive 
tax liability income, and therefore has no overall effect on equity 

The impact of transition to FRS 101 has been to decrease the 2 The use of FRS 101 requires preparation of a balance 
retirement benefit surplus as at 31 March 2013 by €3 million sheet in accordance with 'The Large and Medium-sized 
in order to recognise the tax deduction on the element of Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 

the surplus recoverable through a refund from the pension 2008' which requires presentation of debtors falling due 
scheme This also had the effect of reducing the actuarial after more than one year within current assets 
gain recognised through reserves from £17 million under 
UK GAAP, to £14 million under FRS 101 
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